



Journal of the Senate

State of Indiana

118th General Assembly

Second Regular Session

Thirty-second Meeting Day

Wednesday Morning

March 12, 2014

The Senate convened at 9:06 a.m., with the President of the Senate, Sue Ellspermann, in the Chair.

Prayer was offered by Pastor Jack Wolfe.

The Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was led by Senator Howard A. "Luke" Kenley III.

The Chair ordered the roll of the Senate to be called. Those present were:

Alting	Merritt
Arnold	Miller, Patricia
Banks <input type="checkbox"/>	Miller, Pete
Becker	Mishler
Boots	Mrvan
Bray	Nugent
Breaux	Paul
Broden	Randolph
Buck	Rogers
Charbonneau	Schneider
Crider	Skinner
Delph	Smith
Eckerty	Steele
Glick	Stoops
Grooms	Tallian
Head	Taylor
Hershman	Tomes
Holdman	Walker
Hume	Waltz <input type="checkbox"/>
Kenley	Waterman
Kruse	Wyss
Lanane	Yoder
Landske <input type="checkbox"/>	Young, M.
Leising	Young, R.
Long	Zakas

Roll Call 381: present 47; excused 3. [Note: A indicates those who were excused.] The Chair announced a quorum present. Pursuant to Senate Rule 5(d), no motion having been heard, the Journal of the previous day was considered read.

RESOLUTIONS ON SECOND READING

Senate Resolution 13

Senator Waterman called up Senate Resolution 13 for second reading. The resolution was read a second time and adopted by voice vote.

Senate Resolution 55

Senator Steele called up Senate Resolution 55 for second

reading. The resolution was read a second time and adopted by voice vote.

Senate Resolution 59

Senator Waterman called up Senate Resolution 59 for second reading. The resolution was read a second time and adopted by voice vote.

Senate Resolution 60

Senator Hershman called up Senate Resolution 60 for second reading. The resolution was read a second time and adopted by voice vote.

Senate Resolution 61

Senator Steele called up Senate Resolution 61 for second reading. The resolution was read a second time and adopted by voice vote.

MOTIONS TO CONCUR IN HOUSE AMENDMENTS

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that the Senate do concur with the House amendments to Engrossed Senate Bill 396.

HERSHMAN

Roll Call 382: yeas 44, nays 1. Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that the Senate do concur with the House amendments to Engrossed Senate Bill 420.

HEAD

Roll Call 383: yeas 45, nays 0. Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that the Senate do concur with the House amendments to Engrossed Senate Bill 338.

HERSHMAN

Roll Call 384: yeas 45, nays 0. Motion prevailed.

CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORTS

CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

ESB 233-1

Madam President: Your Conference Committee appointed to confer with a like committee from the House upon Engrossed House Amendments to Engrossed Senate Bill 233 respectfully reports that said two committees have conferred and agreed as follows to wit:

that the Senate recede from its dissent from all House amendments and that the Senate now concur in all House amendments to the bill and that the bill be further amended as follows:

Delete everything after the enacting clause and insert the following:

SECTION 1. IC 25-0.5-1-2.3 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A NEW SECTION TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2014]: **Sec. 2.3. IC 25-1-1.1-4 applies to an individual licensed or certified under IC 25-3.7 (anesthesiologist assistants).**

SECTION 2. IC 25-0.5-1-5.5 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A NEW SECTION TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2014]: **Sec. 5.5. IC 25-1-1.1-4 applies to an individual licensed or certified under IC 25-14.3 (diabetes educators).**

SECTION 3. IC 25-0.5-2-34 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A NEW SECTION TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2014]: **Sec. 34. IC 25-1-2-2.1 applies to licenses held by anesthesiologist assistants.**

SECTION 4. IC 25-0.5-2-35 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A NEW SECTION TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2014]: **Sec. 35. IC 25-1-2-2.1 applies to licenses held by diabetes educators.**

SECTION 5. IC 25-3.7 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A NEW ARTICLE TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2014]:

**ARTICLE 3.7. ANESTHESIOLOGIST ASSISTANTS
Chapter 1. Definitions**

Sec. 1. As used in this article, "anesthesiologist assistant" means an individual who:

- (1) meets the qualifications under this article; and
- (2) is licensed under this article.

Sec. 2. As used in this article, "board" refers to the medical licensing board of Indiana.

Chapter 2. Licensure

Sec. 1. (a) The board shall license as an anesthesiologist assistant an individual who:

- (1) applies for licensure on a form approved by the board;
- (2) pays a licensing fee in an amount determined by the board;
- (3) does not have a conviction for a crime that has a direct bearing on the applicant's ability to practice competently; and
- (4) submits evidence satisfactory to the board that the applicant meets all the following requirements:

(A) Has obtained a bachelor's degree from a postsecondary educational institution.

(B) Has satisfactorily completed a medical-based anesthesiologist assistant program that is accredited by the Commission on Accreditation of Allied Health Education Programs, or by its predecessor or successor organization.

(C) Has passed a certifying examination administered by the National Commission for Certification of Anesthesiologist Assistants, or a successor organization.

(D) Is certified by the National Commission for Certification of Anesthesiologist Assistants, or a successor organization.

(b) An individual must be licensed by the board before the individual may practice as an anesthesiologist assistant.

Sec. 2. In order to maintain a license under this article, an individual licensed under this article shall comply with all continuing certification requirements set by the National Commission for Certification of Anesthesiologist Assistants or a successor organization.

Sec. 3. (a) The board shall do the following:

(1) Subject to IC 25-1-8-2, establish the amounts of fees required under this article.

(2) Adopt rules under IC 4-22-2 concerning the scope of practice for an anesthesiologist assistant. The rules must address the public welfare and safety of patients being treated by an anesthesiologist assistant and include the following:

(A) Require that an anesthesiologist assistant be supervised by a licensed anesthesiologist who:

- (i) is licensed under IC 25-22.5;**
- (ii) is actively engaged in the clinical practice of anesthesiology; and**
- (iii) maintains a physical proximity that allows the anesthesiologist to be available immediately if needed at all times that anesthesia services are rendered by the anesthesiologist assistant.**

(B) Allow for the training of anesthesiologist assistant students if a student is:

- (i) enrolled in an anesthesiologist assistant program that is accredited by the Commission on Accreditation of Allied Health Education Programs or by its predecessor or successor organization; and**
- (ii) supervised by an individual who meets the requirements of clause (A).**

(b) In developing the rules required under subsection (a)(2), the board shall appoint a working committee to assist in the development of the rules. The working committee must contain at least the following:

- (1) One (1) individual who is a member of the Indiana State Medical Association, or its successor organization.**
- (2) One (1) individual who is a member of the Indiana Society of Anesthesiologists, or its successor organization.**
- (3) One (1) individual who is a member of the American Academy of Anesthesiologist Assistants, or its successor organization.**

Sec. 4. (a) An anesthesiologist assistant may practice only:

- (1) under the supervision of an anesthesiologist; and**
- (2) as described in a written practice protocol adopted under subsection (b).**

(b) Each anesthesiologist who agrees to act as the supervising anesthesiologist of an anesthesiologist assistant shall adopt a written practice protocol that:

- (1) is consistent with this article;**
- (2) delineates:**

(A) the medical services that the anesthesiologist

assistant is authorized to provide; and

(B) the manner in which the anesthesiologist will supervise the anesthesiologist assistant;

(3) is based on relevant quality assurance standards, including regular review by the supervising anesthesiologist of the medical records of the patients cared for by the anesthesiologist assistant;

(4) is signed by the anesthesiologist and anesthesiologist assistant;

(5) is updated annually; and

(6) is made available to the board upon request.

(c) The supervising anesthesiologist shall oversee the anesthesiologist assistant in accordance with:

(1) the terms of the protocol; and

(2) any rules adopted by the board for the supervision of an anesthesiologist assistant.

The board may randomly audit or inspect any written practice protocol under which an anesthesiologist assistant works.

(d) An anesthesiologist or an anesthesiologist assistant who violates the written practice protocol described in this section may be disciplined under IC 25-1-9.

Chapter 3. Unauthorized Practice; Penalty; Sanctions

Sec. 1. An individual may not:

(1) profess to be an anesthesiologist assistant;

(2) use the title "anesthesiologist assistant"; or

(3) use the initials "A.A." or any other words, letters, abbreviations, or insignia indicating or implying that the individual is an anesthesiologist assistant licensed under this article;

unless the person is licensed under this article.

Sec. 2. An individual who recklessly, knowingly, or intentionally violates this chapter commits a Class B misdemeanor.

SECTION 6. IC 25-14.3 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A NEW ARTICLE TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2014]:

ARTICLE 14.3. DIABETES EDUCATORS

Chapter 1. Definitions

Sec. 1. The definitions in this chapter apply throughout this article.

Sec. 2. "Agency" refers to the Indiana professional licensing agency established by IC 25-1-5-3.

Sec. 3. "Board" refers to the medical licensing board of Indiana established by IC 25-22.5-2-1.

Sec. 4. "Diabetes education" means a collaborative process through which persons with or at risk for diabetes mellitus gain the knowledge and skills needed to modify behavior and successfully self-manage diabetes and conditions related to diabetes.

Sec. 5. "Licensed diabetes educator" refers to an individual who is licensed under this article.

Chapter 2. Duties of the Board

Sec. 1. (a) The board shall adopt rules under IC 4-22-2 establishing:

(1) standards for professional responsibility or a code of ethics for the profession of diabetes educator;

(2) standards of practice that are based upon policies

and positions adopted by the American Association of Diabetes Educators; and

(3) standards for continuing education requirements for diabetes educators.

(b) The board shall adopt rules under IC 4-22-2 to establish fees under IC 25-1-8-2 for:

(1) filing an application for licensure under this article;

(2) issuing an original license under this article;

(3) renewing a license issued under this article;

(4) replacing a license that has been lost or destroyed; and

(5) any other purposes prescribed by IC 25-1-8-2.

(c) The board shall investigate alleged violations brought under this article, conduct investigations, and schedule and conduct administrative hearings under IC 4-21.5.

(d) The board shall keep a record of:

(1) the proceedings of the board; and

(2) all individuals licensed by the board.

Chapter 3. License Requirements

Sec. 1. After July 1, 2015, a person may not use the title of "licensed diabetes educator" or profess to be a licensed diabetes educator unless the person holds a license under this article.

Sec. 2. An applicant for a license must file a written application with the board on forms provided by the board.

Sec. 3. An applicant must provide evidence to the board showing successful completion of one (1) of the following:

(1) The American Association of Diabetes Educators core concepts course with demonstrable experience in the care of individuals with diabetes under supervision that meets requirements specified in rules adopted by the board.

(2) The credentialing program of the American Association of Diabetes Educators or the National Certification Board for Diabetes Educators.

(3) An equivalent credentialing program as determined by the board.

Sec. 4. Requirements established by the board for licensure under this article must include a core body of knowledge and skills in:

(1) diabetes mellitus;

(2) biological and social sciences;

(3) communication;

(4) counseling;

(5) education; and

(6) experience in the care of individuals with diabetes.

Sec. 5. A license issued under this chapter is valid for two (2) years after the date of issuance.

Sec. 6. The board shall require each licensee to complete annually fifteen (15) hours of board approved continuing education.

Chapter 4. License Revocation or Suspension

Sec. 1. For purposes of this chapter, "unprofessional conduct" includes the following:

(1) Obtaining or attempting to obtain a license by fraud, misrepresentation, concealment of material facts, or making a false statement to the board.

(2) Conviction of a felony if the conviction has direct bearing on whether the person is trustworthy to serve the public as a licensed diabetes educator.

(3) Violation of any lawful order issued or rule adopted by the board.

Sec. 2. The board may:

(1) suspend or revoke a license; or

(2) issue a reprimand;

if the licensee engages in unprofessional conduct that has endangered or is likely to endanger the health, welfare, or safety of the public.

Chapter 5. Unlawful Practices

Sec. 1. A person who recklessly, knowingly, or intentionally violates this article commits a Class A misdemeanor.

SECTION 7. IC 25-23-1-1, AS AMENDED BY P.L.232-2013, SECTION 18, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2014]: Sec. 1. As used in this chapter:

(a) "Board" means the Indiana state board of nursing.

(b) "Advanced practice nurse" means:

(1) a nurse practitioner;

(2) a certified nurse midwife; ~~or~~

(3) a clinical nurse specialist; ~~or~~

(4) a certified registered nurse anesthetist;

who is a registered nurse qualified to practice nursing in a specialty role based upon the additional knowledge and skill gained through a formal organized program of study and clinical experience, or the equivalent as determined by the board, which does not limit but extends or expands the function of the nurse which may be initiated by the client or provider in settings that shall include hospital outpatient clinics and health maintenance organizations. **Notwithstanding any other law, this subsection does not add to the powers and duties or scope of practice of certified registered nurse anesthetists as described in section 30 of this chapter.**

(c) "Human response" means those signs, symptoms, behaviors, and processes that denote the individual's interaction with the environment.

SECTION 8. IC 25-23-1-19.4, AS AMENDED BY P.L.105-2008, SECTION 43, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2014]: Sec. 19.4. **(a) This section does not apply to certified registered nurse anesthetists.**

~~(a)~~ **(b)** As used in this section, "practitioner" has the meaning set forth in IC 16-42-19-5. However, the term does not include the following:

(1) A veterinarian.

(2) An advanced practice nurse.

(3) A physician assistant.

~~(b)~~ **(c)** An advanced practice nurse shall operate in collaboration with a licensed practitioner as evidenced by a practice agreement, or by privileges granted by the governing board of a hospital licensed under IC 16-21 with the advice of the medical staff of the hospital that sets forth the manner in which an advanced practice nurse and a licensed practitioner will cooperate, coordinate, and consult with each other in the provision of health care to their patients.

SECTION 9. IC 25-23-1-19.5 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2014]: Sec. 19.5. **(a) This section does not apply to certified registered nurse anesthetists.**

~~(a)~~ **(b)** The board shall establish a program under which advanced practice nurses who meet the requirements established by the board are authorized to prescribe legend drugs, including controlled substances (as defined in ~~IC 35-48-1~~): **IC 35-48-1-9).**

~~(b)~~ **(c)** The authority granted by the board under this section:

(1) expires on October 31 of the odd-numbered year following the year the authority was granted or renewed; and

(2) is subject to renewal indefinitely for successive periods of two (2) years.

~~(c)~~ **(d)** The rules adopted under section 7 of this chapter concerning the authority of advanced practice nurses to prescribe legend drugs must do the following:

(1) Require an advanced practice nurse or a prospective advanced practice nurse who seeks the authority to submit an application to the board.

(2) Require, as a prerequisite to the initial granting of the authority, the successful completion by the applicant of a graduate level course in pharmacology providing at least two (2) semester hours of academic credit.

(3) Require, as a condition of the renewal of the authority, the completion by the advanced practice nurse of the continuing education requirements set out in section 19.7 of this chapter.

SECTION 10. IC 25-26-13-18, AS AMENDED BY P.L.159-2012, SECTION 5, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2014]: Sec. 18. (a) To be eligible for issuance of a pharmacy permit, an applicant must show to the satisfaction of the board that:

(1) Persons at the location will engage in the bona fide practice of pharmacy. The application must show the number of hours each week, if any, that the pharmacy will be open to the general public.

(2) The pharmacy will maintain a sufficient stock of emergency and frequently prescribed drugs and devices as to adequately serve and protect the public health.

(3) Except as provided in section 19 of this chapter, a registered pharmacist will be in personal attendance and on duty in the licensed premises at all times when the practice of pharmacy is being conducted and that the pharmacist will be responsible for the lawful conduct of the pharmacy.

(4) ~~Certified Licensed~~ pharmacy technicians or pharmacy technicians in training **who are licensed or** certified under IC 25-26-19 must practice under a licensed pharmacist's immediate and personal supervision at all times. A pharmacist may not supervise more than six (6) pharmacy technicians or pharmacy technicians in training at any time. As used in this subdivision, "immediate and personal supervision" means within reasonable visual and vocal distance of the pharmacist.

(5) The pharmacy will be located separate and apart from any area containing merchandise not offered for sale under the pharmacy permit. The pharmacy will:

- (A) be stationary;
- (B) be sufficiently secure, either through electronic or physical means, or a combination of both, to protect the products contained in the pharmacy and to detect and deter entry during those times when the pharmacy is closed;
- (C) be well lighted and ventilated with clean and sanitary surroundings;
- (D) be equipped with a sink with hot and cold running water or some means for heating water, a proper sewage outlet, and refrigeration;
- (E) have a prescription filling area of sufficient size to permit the practice of pharmacy as practiced at that particular pharmacy; and
- (F) have such additional fixtures, facilities, and equipment as the board requires to enable it to operate properly as a pharmacy in compliance with federal and state laws and regulations governing pharmacies.

(b) Prior to opening a pharmacy after receipt of a pharmacy permit, the permit holder shall submit the premises to a qualifying inspection by a representative of the board and shall present a physical inventory of the drug and all other items in the inventory on the premises.

(c) At all times, the wholesale value of the drug inventory on the licensed items must be at least ten percent (10%) of the wholesale value of the items in the licensed area.

SECTION 11. IC 25-26-19-4 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2014]: Sec. 4. (a) The board may adopt rules under IC 4-22-2 to:

- (1) implement and enforce this chapter;
- (2) set fees under IC 25-1-8; and
- (3) establish education and training requirements for ~~certification licensure~~ to practice as a pharmacy technician.

(b) The board shall:

- (1) establish standards for the competent practice of pharmacy technicians; and
- (2) subject to IC 4-21.5, IC 25-1-7, and IC 25-1-9, conduct proceedings on any matter under the jurisdiction of the board.

SECTION 12. IC 25-26-19-5, AS AMENDED BY P.L.159-2012, SECTION 7, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2014]: Sec. 5. (a) The board shall issue a pharmacy technician ~~certificate~~ **license** to an individual who:

- (1) applies to the board in the form and manner prescribed by the board;
- (2) is at least eighteen (18) years of age;

(3) **has:**

(A) graduated from high school; or

(B) received a:

(i) high school equivalency certificate; or

(ii) state general educational development (GED) diploma under IC 20-20-6 (before its repeal) or IC 22-4.1-18;

(4) ~~is~~ **has** not been convicted of:

- (A) a crime that has a direct bearing upon the individual's ability to practice competently; or
- (B) a felony involving controlled substances;

~~(4)~~ **(5)** is not in violation of this chapter or rules adopted by the board under section 4 of this chapter;

~~(5)~~ **(6)** has paid the fee set by the board under section 4 of this chapter; ~~and~~

~~(6)~~ **(7)** has: ~~completed a program of education and training approved by the board or has passed a certification examination offered by a nationally recognized certification body approved by the board:~~

(A) graduated from a competency based pharmacy technician education and training program approved by the board;

(B) completed an employer provided training program that:

(i) beginning July 1, 2015, uses training requirements and minimum standards developed by the board;

(ii) has been approved by the board; and

(iii) includes specific training in the duties required to assist the pharmacist in the technical functions associated with the practice of pharmacy; or

(C) successfully passed a certification examination offered by the Pharmacy Technician Certification Board or another nationally recognized certification body approved by the board.

(b) For good cause, the board may waive the age requirement under subsection (a)(2).

(c) A person who has been certified or licensed as a pharmacy technician by the board before July 1, 2014, and who remains in good standing on July 1, 2014, shall, for all purposes, be considered licensed beginning on July 1, 2014. A person described in this subsection is subject to the license renewal requirements set forth in this chapter.

(d) A training program approved by the board before July 1, 2015, must be resubmitted to the board for approval in meeting current standards.

SECTION 13. IC 25-26-19-6 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2014]: Sec. 6. (a) The board shall issue a pharmacy technician in training permit to an individual who:

(1) applies to the board in the form and manner prescribed by the board;

(2) is at least eighteen (18) years of age;

(3) has not been convicted of a crime that has a direct bearing upon the individual's ability to practice competently;

(4) is not in violation of this chapter or rules adopted by the board under section 4 of this chapter; and

(5) has applied for ~~certification licensure~~ under section 5 of this chapter.

(b) An applicant:

(1) may work as a pharmacy technician in training without a permit for not more than thirty (30) consecutive days after the applicant files an application under this section;

(2) shall provide the applicant's employer with a receipt issued by the board that:

(A) provides the date an application under this section was filed; and

(B) indicates that the fee has been paid; before the applicant may begin work as a pharmacy technician in training; and
 (3) may request an additional thirty (30) day period to practice as a pharmacy technician in training without a permit. The board may approve a request under this subdivision if the board determines that the extension is for good cause.

(c) A pharmacy technician in training permit expires on the earliest of the following:

- (1) The date the permit holder is issued a pharmacy technician ~~certificate~~ **license** under this chapter.
- (2) The date the board disapproves the permit holder's application for a pharmacy technician ~~certificate~~ **license** under this chapter.
- (3) The date the permit holder ceases to be enrolled in good standing in a pharmacy technician training program approved by the board. The graduation of a permit holder from a pharmacy technician program does not cause the permit to expire under this subdivision.
- (4) Sixty (60) days after the date that the permit holder successfully completes a program approved by the board.
- (5) Twelve (12) months after the date of issuance.

(d) For good cause, the board may waive the age requirement in subsection (a)(2).

SECTION 14. IC 25-26-19-7, AS AMENDED BY P.L.1-2006, SECTION 466, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2014]: Sec. 7. (a) A pharmacy technician ~~certificate~~ **license** expires on a date set by the Indiana professional licensing agency in each even-numbered year.

(b) An application for renewal of a pharmacy technician ~~certificate~~ **license** must be accompanied by the appropriate fee.

(c) If a person fails to renew a pharmacy technician ~~certificate~~, **license**, the ~~certificate~~ **license** may be reinstated by meeting the requirements under IC 25-1-8-6.

(d) The board may require a person who applies for a ~~certificate~~ **license** under subsection (c) to appear before the board and explain the reason why the person failed to renew a pharmacy technician ~~certificate~~. **license**.

SECTION 15. IC 25-26-19-8 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2014]: Sec. 8. A ~~certified~~ **licensed** pharmacy technician may not perform the following activities:

- (1) Providing advice or consultation with the prescribing practitioner or other licensed health care provider regarding the patient or the interpretation and application of information contained in the prescription or drug order, medical record, or patient profile.
- (2) Providing advice or consultation with the patient regarding the interpretation of the prescription or the application of information contained in the patient profile or medical record.
- (3) Dispensing prescription drug information to the patient.
- (4) Final check on all aspects of the completed prescription and assumption of the responsibility for the filled prescription, including the appropriateness of the drug for

the patient and the accuracy of the:

- (A) drug dispensed;
- (B) strength of the drug dispensed; and
- (C) labeling of the prescription.

(5) Receiving a new prescription drug order over the telephone or electronically unless the original information is recorded so a pharmacist may review the prescription drug order as transmitted.

(6) Any activity required by law to be performed only by a pharmacist.

(7) Any activity that requires the clinical judgment of a pharmacist and is prohibited by a rule adopted by the board.

SECTION 16. IC 25-26-19-9, AS AMENDED BY P.L.158-2013, SECTION 290, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2014]: Sec. 9. (a) An individual may not practice as a pharmacy technician unless the individual is ~~certified~~ **licensed** under this chapter.

(b) An individual may not act as a pharmacy technician in training unless the individual has obtained a permit under this chapter or the individual is acting as a pharmacy technician in training during the period permitted under section 6(b) of this chapter.

(c) An individual who knowingly violates this section commits a Level 6 felony.

SECTION 17. IC 35-51-25-1, AS AMENDED BY P.L.13-2013, SECTION 147, P.L.232-2013, SECTION 26, AND P.L.264-2013, SECTION 16, IS CORRECTED AND AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2014]: Sec. 1. The following statutes define crimes in IC 25:

- IC 25-2.1-13-3 (Concerning accountants).
- IC 25-2.5-3-4 (Concerning acupuncturists).
- IC 25-3.7-3-2 (Concerning anesthesiologist assistants).**
- IC 25-5.1-4-2 (Concerning athletic trainers).
- IC 25-5.2-2-12 (Concerning athlete agents).
- IC 25-6.1-7-1 (Concerning auctioneers and auctions).
- IC 25-6.1-7-2 (Concerning auctioneers and auctions).
- IC 25-8-15.4-25 (Concerning beauty culture).
- IC 25-10-1-11 (Concerning chiropractors).
- IC 25-11-1-12 (Concerning collection agencies).
- IC 25-13-1-3 (Concerning dental hygienists).
- IC 25-14-1-25 (Concerning dentists).
- IC 25-14-1-25.5 (Concerning dentists).*
- IC 25-14-4-6 (Concerning dentists).
- IC 25-14.3-5-1 (Concerning diabetes educators).**
- IC 25-14.5-7-2 (Concerning dietitians).
- IC 25-16-1-18 (Concerning employment services).
- IC 25-17.3-5-3 (Concerning genetic counselors).
- IC 25-17.6-8-2 (Concerning geologists).
- IC 25-18-1-19 (Concerning distress sales).
- IC 25-20-1-21 (Concerning hearing aid dealers).
- IC 25-20.7-5-1 (Concerning interior designers).
- IC 25-21.5-5-10 (Concerning ~~land~~ professional surveyors).
- IC 25-21.5-13-2 (Concerning ~~land~~ professional surveyors).
- IC 25-21.8-7-1 (Concerning massage therapists).
- IC 25-22.5-8-2 (Concerning physicians).
- IC 25-22.5-8-3 (Concerning physicians).
- IC 25-23-1-27 (Concerning nurses).

IC 25-23.4-3-7 (Concerning certified direct entry midwives).

IC 25-23.5-3-2 (Concerning occupational therapists).

IC 25-23.6-3-3 (Concerning marriage and family therapists).

IC 25-23.6-4-4 (Concerning marriage and family therapists).

IC 25-23.6-4.5-4 (Concerning marriage and family therapists).

IC 25-23.6-7-7 (Concerning marriage and family therapists).

IC 25-23.6-10.1-6 (Concerning marriage and family therapists).

IC 25-23.6-11-1 (Concerning marriage and family therapists).

IC 25-23.6-11-2 (Concerning marriage and family therapists).

IC 25-23.6-11-3 (Concerning marriage and family therapists).

IC 25-23.7-7-5 (Concerning manufactured home installers).

IC 25-24-1-18 (Concerning optometrists).

IC 25-24-3-17 (Concerning optometrists).

IC 25-26-13-29 (Concerning pharmacists, pharmacies, and drug stores).

IC 25-26-14-23 (Concerning pharmacists, pharmacies, and drug stores).

IC 25-26-14-25 (Concerning pharmacists, pharmacies, and drug stores).

IC 25-26-14-26 (Concerning pharmacists, pharmacies, and drug stores).

IC 25-26-14-27 (Concerning pharmacists, pharmacies, and drug stores).

IC 25-26-19-9 (Concerning pharmacists, pharmacies, and drug stores).

IC 25-26-21-11 (Concerning pharmacists, pharmacies, and drug stores).

IC 25-27-1-12 (Concerning physical therapists).

IC 25-27.5-7-2 (Concerning physician assistants).

IC 25-28.5-1-31 (Concerning plumbers).

IC 25-29-9-1 (Concerning podiatrists).

IC 25-30-1-21 (Concerning private investigator firms, security guards, and polygraph examiners).

IC 25-30-1.3-23 (Concerning private investigator firms, security guards, and polygraph examiners).

IC 25-31-1-13 (Concerning engineers).

IC 25-31-1-27 (Concerning engineers).

IC 25-31.5-8-7 (Concerning soil scientists).

IC 25-33-1-15 (Concerning psychologists).

IC 25-34.5-3-2 (Concerning respiratory care specialists).

IC 25-35.6-3-10 (Concerning speech pathologists and audiologists).

IC 25-36.1-1-2 (Concerning surgical technologists).

IC 25-36.5-1-10 (Concerning timber buyers).

IC 25-36.5-1-15 (Concerning timber buyers).

IC 25-38.1-4-10 (Concerning veterinarians).

IC 25-38.1-4-11 (Concerning veterinarians).

IC 25-39-5-1 (Concerning water well drilling contractors).

IC 25-39-5-7 (Concerning water well drilling contractors).

IC 25-41-1-2 (Concerning behavior analysts).

(Reference is to ESB 233 as reprinted February 27, 2014.)

Grooms, Chair Davisson

Mrvan Stemler

Senate Conferees House Conferees

Roll Call 385: yeas 42, nays 4. Report adopted.

CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

ESB 308-1

Madam President: Your Conference Committee appointed to confer with a like committee from the House upon Engrossed House Amendments to Engrossed Senate Bill 308 respectfully reports that said two committees have conferred and agreed as follows to wit:

that the Senate recede from its dissent from all House amendments and that the Senate now concur in all House amendments to the bill and that the bill be further amended as follows:

Page 1, delete lines 1 through 16.

Delete pages 2 through 7.

Page 8, delete lines 1 through 21.

Renumber all SECTIONS consecutively.

(Reference is to ESB 308 as reprinted February 27, 2014.)

Wyss, Chair Ober

Tallian GiaQuinta

Senate Conferees House Conferees

Roll Call 386: yeas 46, nays 1. Report adopted.

CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

ESB 329-1

Madam President: Your Conference Committee appointed to confer with a like committee from the House upon Engrossed House Amendments to Engrossed Senate Bill 329 respectfully reports that said two committees have conferred and agreed as follows to wit:

that the Senate recede from its dissent from all House amendments and that the Senate now concur in all House amendments to the bill and that the bill be further amended as follows:

Page 2, delete lines 5 through 42.

Delete page 3.

Renumber all SECTIONS consecutively.

(Reference is to ESB 329 as reprinted February 18, 2014.)

Head, Chair Niemeyer

Rogers Pryor

Senate Conferees House Conferees

Roll Call 387: yeas 45, nays 2. Report adopted.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Delph be added as coauthor of Senate Resolution 61.

STEELE

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senators Alting, Arnold, Banks, Becker, Boots, Bray, Breaux, Broden, Buck, Charbonneau, Crider, Delph, Eckerty, Glick, Grooms, Head, Hershman, Holdman, Hume, Kruse, Lanane, Landske, Leising, Long, Merritt, Patricia Miller, Pete Miller, Mishler, Mrvan, Nugent, Randolph, Rogers, Schneider, Skinner, Smith, Steele, Stoops, Tallian, Taylor, Tomes, Walker, Waltz, Waterman, Wyss, Yoder, M. Young, R. Young, and Zakas be added as coauthors of Senate Resolution 79.

KENLEY

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senators Alting, Arnold, Banks, Becker, Boots, Bray, Breaux, Broden, Buck, Charbonneau, Crider, Delph, Eckerty, Glick, Grooms, Head, Hershman, Holdman, Hume, Kenley, Kruse, Lanane, Landske, Leising, Long, Patricia Miller, Pete Miller, Mishler, Mrvan, Nugent, Paul, Randolph, Rogers, Schneider, Skinner, Smith, Steele, Stoops, Tallian, Taylor, Tomes, Walker, Waltz, Waterman, Yoder, M. Young, R. Young, and Zakas be added as coauthors of Senate Resolution 70.

MERRITT

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senators Alting, Arnold, Banks, Becker, Boots, Bray, Breaux, Broden, Buck, Charbonneau, Crider, Delph, Eckerty, Glick, Grooms, Head, Hershman, Holdman, Hume, Kenley, Kruse, Lanane, Leising, Long, Merritt, Pete Miller, Mishler, Mrvan, Nugent, Paul, Randolph, Rogers, Schneider, Skinner, Smith, Steele, Stoops, Tallian, Taylor, Tomes, Walker, Waltz, Waterman, Wyss, Yoder, M. Young, R. Young, and Zakas be added as coauthors of Senate Resolution 73.

PATRICIA MILLER

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senators Alting, Arnold, Banks, Becker, Boots, Bray, Breaux, Broden, Buck, Charbonneau, Crider, Delph, Eckerty, Glick, Grooms, Head, Hershman, Holdman, Hume, Kenley, Kruse, Lanane, Landske, Leising, Long, Merritt, Patricia Miller, Pete Miller, Mishler, Mrvan, Randolph, Rogers, Schneider, Skinner, Smith, Steele, Stoops, Tallian, Taylor, Tomes, Walker, Waltz, Waterman, Wyss, Yoder, M. Young, R. Young, and Zakas be added as coauthors of Senate Resolution 78.

PAUL

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Charbonneau be added as coauthor of Senate Bill 1.

HERSHMAN

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senators Alting, Arnold, Banks, Becker, Boots, Bray, Breaux, Broden, Buck, Charbonneau, Crider, Delph, Eckerty, Glick, Grooms, Head, Hershman, Holdman, Hume, Kenley, Kruse, Lanane, Landske, Leising, Long, Merritt, Patricia Miller, Pete Miller, Mishler, Mrvan, Paul, Randolph, Rogers, Schneider, Skinner, Smith, Steele, Stoops, Tallian, Taylor, Tomes, Walker, Waltz, Waterman, Wyss, Yoder, M. Young, R. Young, and Zakas be added as coauthors of Senate Concurrent Resolution 39.

NUGENT

Motion prevailed.

9:32 a.m.

The Chair declared a recess until the fall of the gavel.

RECESS

The Senate reconvened at 1:32 p.m., with the President of the Senate in the Chair.

Senator Waltz, who had been excused, was present.

RESOLUTIONS ON FIRST READING

Senate Resolution 88

Senate Resolution 88, introduced by Senator Paul:

A SENATE RESOLUTION urging the Legislative Council to assign to an appropriate study committee the topic of the interaction of the therapeutic privilege and patient access of their condition.

Whereas, The relationship between a patient and doctor is sacred; and

Whereas, This relationship must ensure the fruitful exchange of information so that the patient and the patient's family may be fully aware of all aspects of the patient's condition: Therefore,

Be it resolved by the Senate of the General Assembly of the State of Indiana:

SECTION 1. That the Legislative Council is urged to assign to an appropriate study committee the topic of the interaction of the therapeutic privilege and patient access of their condition.

The resolution was read in full and referred to the Committee on Health and Provider Services.

Senate Resolution 89

Senate Resolution 89, introduced by Senator Tallian:

A SENATE RESOLUTION urging the Legislative Council to assign the topic of medical debt collections to an appropriate study committee.

Whereas, The topic should specifically focus on medical debt collections in small claims courts: Therefore,

Be it resolved by the Senate of the General Assembly of the State of Indiana:

SECTION 1. That the Legislative Council is urged to assign the topic of medical debt collections to an appropriate study committee.

The resolution was read in full and referred to the Committee on Civil Law.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that the following resolutions be adopted:

- SR 90 Senator Mishler
Congratulating the Community Hospital of Bremen on its 65th anniversary.
- SCR 54 Senator Buck
Congratulating the Western High School girls basketball team.
- SCR 55 Senator Buck
Honoring Raven Black.

LONG

Motion prevailed.

RESOLUTIONS ON FIRST READING

Senate Resolution 90

Senate Resolution 90, introduced by Senator Mishler:

A SENATE RESOLUTION congratulating the Community Hospital of Bremen on its 65th anniversary.

Whereas, Since its founding on March 8, 1948, the Community Hospital of Bremen has added to the quality of life of the town of Bremen and its surrounding communities;

Whereas, The legacy of the hospital's competent and dedicated physicians, staff, and volunteers has been the cornerstone of the Community Hospital of Bremen over its 65-year history, and the talent of its current staff will contribute to the hospital's continued success in offering the highest level of care into the future;

Whereas, The Community Hospital of Bremen serves patients from all walks of life, providing quality health care for everyone in need, regardless of their ability to pay; and

Whereas, The Community Hospital of Bremen's physicians and staff remain dedicated to the provision of outstanding medical care to sick and injured patients with compassion and respect: Therefore,

Be it resolved by the Senate of the General Assembly of the State of Indiana:

SECTION 1. That the Indiana Senate recognizes and congratulates the Community Hospital of Bremen on its 65th anniversary.

SECTION 2. The Secretary of the Senate is hereby directed to transmit a copy of this Resolution to the CEO and President of the Community Hospital of Bremen, David H. Bailey.

The resolution was read in full and adopted by voice vote.

Senate Concurrent Resolution 54

Senate Concurrent Resolution 54, introduced by Senator Buck:

A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION congratulating the Western High School girls basketball team.

Whereas, The Western High School girls basketball team celebrated a 38-35 victory over Evansville Mater Dei High School to win the Class 3A state girls basketball championship;

Whereas, This victory represented the first state girls basketball championship for the Western Panthers;

Whereas, Throughout the tournament, the Panthers faced stiff opposition and quality teams but persevered to reach the championship game at Hulman Center in Terre Haute;

Whereas, A close game throughout, the outcome of the game depended on the final seconds;

Whereas, The team worked as one to earn this victory which is deserving of such a dedicated season from the coaching staff, public support, and team effort; and

Whereas, Outstanding accomplishments such as this deserve special recognition: Therefore,

Be it resolved by the Senate of the General Assembly of the State of Indiana, the House of Representatives concurring:

SECTION 1. That the Indiana General Assembly congratulates the Western High School girls basketball team on its Class 3A state championship and wishes continued success in all its future endeavors.

SECTION 2. That the copies of this resolution be transmitted by the Secretary of the Senate to team members Sarah Connolly, Kiersten Durbin, Jessica Givens, Caitlyn O'Neal, Carley O'Neal, Siera Daniel, Kaylee Penning, Hayley Mills, Clair Lechner, Kaysie Mulkey, Brooklyn Campbell, and Raven Black; head coach Chris Keisling; principal Rick Davis; and superintendent Randy McCracken.

The resolution was read in full and adopted by voice vote. The Chair instructed the Secretary to inform the House of the passage of the resolution. House sponsors: Representatives VanNatter and Karickhoff.

Senate Concurrent Resolution 55

Senate Concurrent Resolution 55, introduced by Senator Buck:

A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION honoring Raven Black.

Whereas, The Indiana High School Athletic Association Executive Committee named Raven Black as the winner of the Patricia L. Roy Mental Attitude Award, presented annually to a senior girls basketball player who has been nominated by her principal and coach and has demonstrated excellence in mental attitude, scholarship, leadership, and athletic ability;

Whereas, Raven Black ranks among the top students in her class at Western High School in Russiaville, with a 4.471 grade point average in rigorous honors level and advanced placement classes;

Whereas, Raven is a member of the National Honor Society and the "W Club" at her school and has raised money to fund mission trips to New York following Hurricane Sandy and Joplin, Missouri, following the tornadoes;

Whereas, Raven has been named All-Conference twice and earned her team's rebounding and mental attitude awards twice;

Whereas, Raven also participated two years with the Western softball team and plans to study pre-med at Indiana University in the fall; and

Whereas, She has outstanding accomplishments both on and off the court: Therefore,

*Be it resolved by the Senate
of the General Assembly of the State of Indiana,
the House of Representatives concurring:*

SECTION 1. That the Indiana General Assembly congratulates Raven Black on her selection as the Patricia L. Roy Mental Attitude Award winner for girls Class 3A basketball.

SECTION 2. That copies of this resolution be transmitted by the Secretary of the Senate to Raven Black and her family, Head Coach Chris Keisling, Principal Rick Davis, and Superintendent Randy McCracken.

The resolution was read in full and adopted by voice vote. The Chair instructed the Secretary to inform the House of the passage of the resolution. House sponsors: Representatives VanNatter and Karickhoff.

**MESSAGE FROM THE PRESIDENT
OF THE SENATE**

Members of the Senate: I have on the 11th day of March, 2014, signed Senate Enrolled Act 339.

SUE ELLSPERMANN
Lieutenant Governor

**MESSAGE FROM THE PRESIDENT
OF THE SENATE**

Members of the Senate: I have on the 12th day of March, 2014, signed Senate Enrolled Acts: 56, 60, 61, 117, 160, 171, 186, 282, 304, 387, and 101.

SUE ELLSPERMANN
Lieutenant Governor

REPORTS FROM COMMITTEES

COMMITTEE REPORT

Madam President: Pursuant to Senate Rule 86(k) your Committee on Rules and Legislative Procedure to which was referred Conference Committee Reports filed on Engrossed Senate Bills 233, 308, and 329 has had the same under consideration and begs leave to report back to the Senate with the recommendation that said Conference Committee Reports are eligible for consideration.

LONG, Chair

Report adopted.

COMMITTEE REPORT

Madam President: Pursuant to Senate Rule 86(k) your Committee on Rules and Legislative Procedure to which was referred Conference Committee Reports filed on Engrossed Senate Bills 59, 111, 222, 255, 375, and 421 and the Conference Committee Reports filed on Engrossed House Bills 1020, 1046, 1141, 1235, 1237, 1323, 1346, and 1361 has had the same under consideration and begs leave to report back to the Senate with the recommendation that said Conference Committee Reports are eligible for consideration.

LONG, Chair

Report adopted.

**MOTIONS TO CONCUR
IN HOUSE AMENDMENTS**

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that the Senate do concur with the House amendments to Engrossed Senate Bill 91.

KRUSE

Roll Call 388: yeas 35, nays 13. Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that the Senate do concur with the House amendments to Engrossed Senate Bill 350.

WYSS

After discussion, Senator Wyss withdrew the call.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that the Senate do concur with the House amendments to Engrossed Senate Bill 354.

PAUL

Roll Call 389: yeas 47, nays 0. Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that the Senate do concur with the House amendments to Engrossed Senate Bill 422.

MERRITT

Roll Call 390: yeas 45, nays 0. Motion prevailed.

CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORTS

CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

ESB 59-1

Madam President: Your Conference Committee appointed to confer with a like committee from the House upon Engrossed House Amendments to Engrossed Senate Bill 59 respectfully reports that said two committees have conferred and agreed as follows to wit:

that the Senate recede from its dissent from all House amendments and that the Senate now concur in all House amendments to the bill and that the bill be further amended as follows:

Delete everything after the enacting clause and insert the following:

SECTION 1. IC 29-3-6-3 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2014]: Sec. 3. (a) At any time after the appointment of a guardian or the issuance of a protective order, any person may, in person or by the person's attorney, serve upon the guardian or the guardian's attorney, and file with the clerk of the court where the proceedings are pending, a written request together with a written admission or proof of service stating that the person desires written notice of all hearings and copies of all pleadings or other papers in connection with:

- (1) the settlement of accounts;
- (2) the sale, mortgage, lease, or exchange of any property of the protected person;
- (3) allowances of any nature payable from the protected person's property;
- (4) the investment of funds of the protected person;
- (5) a petition to request the authority to petition for dissolution of marriage, legal separation, or annulment of marriage on behalf of the protected person as provided under IC 29-3-9-12.2;**
- ~~(5)~~ (6) the removal, suspension, or discharge of the guardian;
- ~~(6)~~ (7) the final termination of the guardianship; or

~~(7)~~ (8) any other notice or matter as specified in the request.

The applicant requesting special notice must include in the written request the applicant's post office address or that of the applicant's attorney. The court may determine that any person requesting notice under this section has no interest in the proceeding, either generally or with respect to a particular matter, and is not entitled to the notice requested. Unless the court otherwise directs, upon filing the request, the guardian or the guardian's attorney shall comply with the request.

(b) Failure to comply with a request for notice under this section does not affect the validity of the proceeding.

SECTION 2. IC 29-3-8-4 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2014]: Sec. 4. A guardian (other than a temporary guardian) may exercise all of the powers required to perform the guardian's responsibilities, including the following:

- (1) To receive and issue a receipt for property payable to the protected person or the protected person's parent, guardian, or custodian from any source, including any statutory benefit, insurance system, or any private contract, devise, trust, guardianship, or custodianship.
- (2) If reasonable, to delegate to the protected person certain responsibilities for decisions affecting the protected person's business affairs and well-being.
- (3) To invest and reinvest the property of the protected person in accordance with powers vested in, and according to the standards imposed upon, trustees under IC 30-4-3-3(c).
- (4) To secure the appointment of a guardian or co-guardian in any other state, when needed, with respect to any part or all of the guardianship property located in another state, to confer upon the appointed guardian any or all of the guardian's powers as guardian with respect to the property.
- (5) To continue any business of the protected person, whether in corporate, partnership, or proprietorship form, according to the rules for continuing the business of a decedent specified in IC 29-1-13-11.
- (6) To pay to the person, guardian, department, bureau, or agency having care and custody of the protected person, or to the protected person if at least fourteen (14) years of age, a reasonable amount to be expended for the support of the protected person and the protected person's dependents, with due regard to the following:
 - (A) The size of the guardianship property, the probable duration of the guardianship, and the extent to which the protected person in the future may be self-sufficient and able to manage the protected person's financial affairs and property.
 - (B) The accustomed standard of living of the protected person and the protected person's dependents.
 - (C) Other funds or sources used for the support of the protected person and the protected person's dependents.
- (7) To distribute income and discretionary amounts of principal in one (1) or more of the following ways as the guardian believes to be in the best interests of the protected person:

- (A) Directly to the protected person.
- (B) To a guardian of the protected person appointed in another state.
- (C) To a custodian for the protected person under IC 30-2-8.5.
- (D) To an adult relative of the protected person.
- (E) By expending the money or using the property directly for the benefit of the protected person.
- (8) To apply the guardianship property to or for the benefit of any person, including the protected person, in reimbursement for reasonable expenditures made in good faith on behalf of the protected person that the guardian might have made, or in advance for services to be rendered to the protected person if it is reasonable to expect that the services will be performed and advance payments are reasonably necessary under the circumstances.
- (9) To bind all or any part of the guardianship property in a transaction for the benefit of the protected person, unless the third party dealing with the guardian is acting in bad faith.
- (10) Except as provided in IC 29-3-2-6(d), powers conferred upon trustees and personal representatives respectively by IC 30-4-3-3 and IC 29-1-7.5-3. However, if there is a conflict, the broader power controls.
- (11) To exercise on behalf of the protected person powers that are the same as those granted to the parent of a minor under IC 29-3-3-3.
- (12) To petition the court to request the authority to petition for dissolution of marriage, legal separation, or annulment of marriage on behalf of the protected person, if the protected person is an incapacitated person, as provided under IC 29-3-9-12.2.**

SECTION 3. IC 29-3-8.5-4, AS AMENDED BY P.L.72-2010, SECTION 8, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2014]: Sec. 4. (a) A volunteer advocates for seniors program or a volunteer advocates for incapacitated adults program may:

- (1) consent to medical and other professional care and treatment for the incapacitated person's or senior's health and welfare;
- (2) secure the appointment of a guardian or coguardian in another state;
- (3) take custody of the incapacitated person or senior and establish the incapacitated person's or senior's residence within Indiana or another state in accordance with IC 29-3-9-2;
- (4) institute proceedings or take other appropriate action to compel the performance by any person of a duty to support the incapacitated person's or senior's health or welfare;
- (5) protect and preserve the property of the incapacitated person or senior and preserve any property in excess of the incapacitated person's or senior's current needs; ~~and~~
- (6) delegate to the incapacitated person or senior certain responsibilities for decisions affecting the incapacitated person's or senior's business affairs and well-being; **and**
- (7) petition the court to request the authority to petition for dissolution of marriage, legal separation, or annulment of marriage on behalf of an incapacitated**

person as provided under IC 29-3-9-12.2.

(b) A volunteer advocates for seniors program or a volunteer advocates for incapacitated adults program may exercise the powers of a guardian of a minor listed in IC 29-3-8-2 and IC 29-3-8-4.

SECTION 4. IC 29-3-9-1, AS AMENDED BY P.L.178-2011, SECTION 6, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2014]: Sec. 1. (a) **Except as provided in subsection (b)**, by a properly executed power of attorney, a parent of a minor or a guardian (other than a temporary guardian) of a protected person may delegate to another person for:

- (1) any period during which the care and custody of the minor or protected person is entrusted to an institution furnishing care, custody, education, or training; or
- (2) a period not exceeding twelve (12) months;

any powers regarding support, custody, or property of the minor or protected person. ~~except the power to consent to the marriage or adoption of a protected person who is a minor~~: A delegation described in this subsection is effective immediately unless otherwise stated in the power of attorney.

(b) A parent of a minor or a guardian of a protected person may not delegate under subsection (a) the power to:

- (1) consent to the marriage or adoption of a protected person who is a minor; or**
- (2) petition the court to request the authority to petition for dissolution of marriage, legal separation, or annulment of marriage on behalf of a protected person as provided under IC 29-3-9-12.2.**

~~(b)~~ (c) A person having a power of attorney executed under subsection (a) has and shall exercise, for the period during which the power is effective, all other authority of the parent or guardian respecting the support, custody, or property of the minor or protected person except any authority expressly excluded in the written instrument delegating the power. However, the parent or guardian remains responsible for any act or omission of the person having the power of attorney with respect to the affairs, property, and person of the minor or protected person as though the power of attorney had never been executed.

~~(c)~~ (d) Except as otherwise stated in the power of attorney delegating powers under this section, a delegation of powers under this section may be revoked by a written instrument of revocation that:

- (1) identifies the power of attorney revoked; and
- (2) is signed by the:
 - (A) parent of a minor; or
 - (B) guardian of a protected person;
 who executed the power of attorney.

SECTION 5. IC 29-3-9-12, AS ADDED BY SEA 36-2014, SECTION 7, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2014]: Sec. 12. (a) This section applies only to a guardianship of the property of a minor or an incapacitated adult.

(b) If a third party fails to comply with a guardian's written demand or instruction that:

- (1) was issued within the scope of the guardian's authority; and
- (2) is consistent with this article;

the guardian may bring an enforcement proceeding to compel compliance in the court having jurisdiction over the guardianship.

(c) A court may award attorney's fees and costs to the guardian in an enforcement proceeding under subsection (b), if the person indebted to the guardianship estate or holding property of the guardianship estate:

- (1) acted in bad faith in failing to comply with the guardian's written demand or instruction; or
- (2) refused to respond within ~~ten (10)~~ **thirty (30)** business days after receiving the guardian's written demand or instruction, if the demand or instruction is consistent with this article.

(d) A court may, upon notice and hearing, award attorney's fees and costs to an estate bringing an enforcement proceeding under subsection (a) against an insurer regulated under IC 27 if:

- (1) the insurer failed to respond under IC 27 after receiving a written demand or instruction from the personal guardian; and
- (2) the written demand or instruction is consistent with this article.

SECTION 6. IC 29-3-9-12.2 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A NEW SECTION TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2014]: **Sec. 12.2. (a) If a guardian of an incapacitated person determines that:**

- (1) a dissolution of the incapacitated person's marriage;
- (2) a legal separation of the incapacitated person and the incapacitated person's spouse; or
- (3) an annulment of the incapacitated person's marriage;

is in the best interests of the incapacitated person, the guardian shall petition the court to request the authority to petition for a dissolution of marriage, a legal separation, or an annulment of marriage on behalf of the incapacitated person.

(b) The petition to request authority described in subsection (a) must set forth the following:

- (1) The purpose for petitioning for dissolution of marriage, legal separation, or annulment of marriage.
- (2) The names and addresses of all the following:
 - (A) The incapacitated person's spouse.
 - (B) If the incapacitated person has adult children, any adult children of the incapacitated person who are not guardians of the incapacitated person.
 - (C) If the incapacitated person is a minor, a parent of the incapacitated person whose parental rights have not been terminated.

(c) A guardian that petitions the court to request authority as described in subsection (a) shall provide a copy of the petition, on or before the date the petition is filed, to all the following:

- (1) The individuals listed in subsection (b)(2).
- (2) Any other interested person as ordered by the court.

(d) The court shall:

- (1) set a date for a hearing on the petition to request authority described in subsection (a);
- (2) notify:

(A) all the parties; and

(B) any other individual listed in subsection (c); of the hearing at least thirty (30) days before the hearing; and

(3) hold a hearing on the petition to request authority described in subsection (a).

(e) If the court determines by clear and convincing evidence that petitioning for:

- (1) a dissolution of the incapacitated person's marriage;
- (2) a legal separation of the incapacitated person and the incapacitated person's spouse; or
- (3) an annulment of the incapacitated person's marriage;

is in the best interests of the incapacitated person, considering the totality of the circumstances, including the desire and interests of the spouse in remaining married, the court shall grant the petition and authorize the guardian to petition for dissolution of marriage, legal separation, or annulment of marriage on behalf of the incapacitated person.

(f) In making a determination under subsection (e), the court shall consider the risk of harm to the incapacitated person's physical or mental health, safety, or property if the court does not grant the petition and authorize the guardian to petition for dissolution of marriage, legal separation, or annulment of marriage on behalf of the incapacitated person.

(g) In making a determination under subsection (e), the court shall also give appropriate weight to evidence of:

- (1) the incapacitated person's intent or preferences; or
- (2) a prior decision of the incapacitated person;

for or against a dissolution of marriage, a legal separation, or an annulment of marriage. The court may reduce the weight given to evidence of the intent, preferences, or prior decisions of the incapacitated person if the court concludes, from all of the relevant facts and circumstances, that the passage of time, the relevant circumstances at the time of a prior statement or action by the incapacitated person, or changed circumstances after a prior statement or action make the prior statement or action less reliable evidence of the incapacitated person's best interests and current preferences. The court may give no weight to evidence considered under this subsection that the court concludes is unreliable evidence of the incapacitated person's best interests and current preferences.

(h) This section does not require a guardian of an incapacitated person to file a petition under this section in order to:

- (1) defend the incapacitated person against a petition for dissolution, legal separation, or annulment of marriage that was filed before or after the filing of the petition for guardianship; or
- (2) finalize:

- (A) a dissolution of the incapacitated person's marriage;
- (B) a legal separation between the incapacitated person and the incapacitated person's spouse; or
- (C) an annulment of the incapacitated person's marriage;

if the petition for dissolution of marriage, legal separation, or annulment of marriage was filed by the incapacitated person or the incapacitated person's spouse before the appointment of the guardian.

SECTION 7. IC 29-3-9-13 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A NEW SECTION TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2014]: **Sec. 13. (a) This section applies if a court has authorized a guardian to petition for dissolution of marriage, legal separation, or annulment of marriage on behalf of an incapacitated person under section 12.2 of this chapter.**

(b) A guardian may file a petition for dissolution on behalf of an incapacitated person under IC 31-15-2 in the county where the guardian resides in accordance with IC 31-15-2-6.

(c) A guardian may file a petition for legal separation on behalf of an incapacitated person under IC 31-15-3-4 in the county where the guardian resides in accordance with IC 31-15-3-6.

(d) A guardian may file an action to annul a marriage under IC 31-11-10 in the county where the guardian resides in accordance with IC 31-11-10-4.

SECTION 8. IC 30-4-3-6, AS AMENDED BY SEA 36-2014, SECTION 21, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2014]: (a) The trustee has a duty to administer a trust according to the terms of the trust.

(b) Unless the terms of the trust or the provisions of section 1.3 of this chapter provide otherwise, the trustee also has a duty to do the following:

- (1) Administer the trust in a manner consistent with IC 30-4-3.5.
- (2) Take possession of and maintain control over the trust property.
- (3) Preserve the trust property.
- (4) Make the trust property productive for both the income and remainder beneficiary. As used in this subdivision, "productive" includes the production of income or investment for potential appreciation.
- (5) Keep the trust property separate from the trustee's individual property and separate from or clearly identifiable from property subject to another trust.
- (6) Maintain clear and accurate accounts with respect to the trust estate.
- (7) Keep the following beneficiaries reasonably informed about the administration of the trust and of the material facts necessary for the beneficiaries to protect their interests:
 - (A) A current income beneficiary.
 - (B) A beneficiary who will become an income beneficiary upon the expiration of the term of the current income beneficiary, if the trust has become irrevocable by:
 - (i) the terms of the trust instrument; or
 - (ii) the death of the settlor.

A trustee satisfies the requirements of this subdivision by providing a beneficiary described in clause (A) or (B), upon the beneficiary's written request, access to the trust's accounting and financial records concerning the administration of trust property and the administration of

the trust.

(8) Upon:

- (A) the trust becoming irrevocable:
 - (i) by the terms of the trust instrument; or
 - (ii) by the death of the settlor; and
- (B) the written request of an income beneficiary or remainderman;

promptly provide a copy of the complete trust instrument to the income beneficiary or remainderman.

(9) Take whatever action is reasonable to realize on claims constituting part of the trust property.

(10) Defend actions involving the trust estate.

(11) Supervise any person to whom authority has been delegated.

(12) Determine the trust beneficiaries by acting on information:

- (A) the trustee, by reasonable inquiry, considers reliable; and
- (B) with respect to heirship, relationship, survivorship, or any other issue relative to determining a trust beneficiary.

SECTION 9. IC 31-9-2-49 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2014]: **Sec. 49. (a) "Guardian", for purposes of IC 31-11-10-1, IC 31-15-2-5, and IC 31-15-3-4, has the meaning set forth in IC 29-3-1-6.**

(b) "Guardian", for purposes of the juvenile law, means a person appointed by a court to have the care and custody of a child or the child's estate, or both.

SECTION 10. IC 31-9-2-54.5 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A NEW SECTION TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2014]: **Sec. 54.5. "Incapacitated person", for purposes of IC 31-11-10-1, IC 31-15-2-5, and IC 31-15-3-4, has the meaning set forth in IC 29-3-1-7.5.**

SECTION 11. IC 31-11-10-1 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2014]: **Sec. 1. (a) This section applies to a marriage that is voidable under IC 31-11-9-2 on the ground that a party to the marriage was incapable because of age or mental incompetency of contracting the marriage.**

(b) The incapable party described in subsection (a) may file an action to annul the marriage in a court that has jurisdiction over the action under section 3 of this chapter.

(c) If a guardian of an incapacitated person is filing a petition for annulment of a marriage on behalf of the incapacitated person, the petition for annulment must set forth the name and address of the guardian.

(d) If a guardian of an incapacitated person files a petition for annulment of a marriage on behalf of the incapacitated person, the guardian shall file with the petition a copy of the court order granting authority to petition for annulment of marriage described in IC 29-3-9-12.2.

SECTION 12. IC 31-11-10-4 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2014]: **Sec. 4. (a) An action to annul a voidable marriage under this chapter must be conducted in accordance with IC 31-15.**

(b) If a court has authorized a guardian to file an action to annul a marriage on behalf of an incapacitated person under IC 29-3-9-12.2, the guardian may file an action to annul a

marriage in the guardian's county of residence if the guardian has resided in that county for at least three (3) months immediately preceding the filing of the action.

SECTION 13. IC 31-15-2-5 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2014]: Sec. 5. (a) A petition for dissolution of marriage must:

- (1) be verified; and
- (2) set forth the following:
 - (A) The residence of each party and the length of residence in the state and county.
 - (B) The date of the marriage.
 - (C) The date on which the parties separated.
 - (D) The name, age, and address of:
 - (i) any living child less than twenty-one (21) years of age; and
 - (ii) any incapacitated child;
 - of the marriage and whether the wife is pregnant.
 - (E) The grounds for dissolution of the marriage.
 - (F) The relief sought.
 - (G) If a guardian of an incapacitated person is filing the petition for dissolution of marriage on behalf of the incapacitated person, the name and address of the guardian.**

(b) If a guardian of an incapacitated person files a petition for dissolution of a marriage on behalf of the incapacitated person, the guardian shall file with the petition a copy of the court order granting authority to petition for dissolution of marriage described in IC 29-3-9-12.2.

SECTION 14. IC 31-15-2-6 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2014]: Sec. 6. (a) At the time of the filing of a petition under section 4 of this chapter, at least one (1) of the parties must have been:

- (1) a resident of Indiana; or
- (2) stationed at a United States military installation within Indiana;

for six (6) months immediately preceding the filing of the petition.

(b) **Except as provided in subsection (c)**, at the time of the filing of a petition under section 4 of this chapter, at least one (1) of the parties must have been:

- (1) a resident of the county; or
- (2) stationed at a United States military installation within the county;

where the petition is filed for three (3) months immediately preceding the filing of the petition.

(c) If a court has authorized a guardian to file a petition under section 4 of this chapter on behalf of an incapacitated person under IC 29-3-9-12.2, the guardian may file the petition for dissolution in the guardian's county of residence if the guardian has resided in that county for at least three (3) months immediately preceding the filing of the petition.

SECTION 15. IC 31-15-3-4 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2014]: Sec. 4. (a) A proceeding for legal separation is commenced by the filing of a petition entitled, "In Re the legal separation of _____ and _____". The petition must:

- (1) be verified; and
- (2) set forth the following:

(A) The residence of each party and the length of residence in the state and county.

(B) The date of the marriage.

(C) The date on which the parties separated.

(D) The names, ages, and addresses of:

(i) any living child less than twenty-one (21) years of age; and

(ii) any incapacitated child;

of the marriage and whether the wife is pregnant.

(E) The grounds for legal separation.

(F) The relief sought.

(G) If a guardian of an incapacitated person is filing the petition for legal separation on behalf of the incapacitated person, the name and address of the guardian.

(b) If a guardian of an incapacitated person files a petition for legal separation on behalf of the incapacitated person, the guardian shall file with the petition a copy of the court order granting authority to petition for legal separation described in IC 29-3-9-12.2.

SECTION 16. IC 31-15-3-6 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2014]: Sec. 6. (a) At the time of the filing of a petition for legal separation under section 4 of this chapter, at least one (1) of the parties must have been:

- (1) a resident of Indiana; or
- (2) stationed at a United States military installation within Indiana;

for six (6) months immediately preceding the filing of each petition.

(b) **Except as provided in subsection (c)**, at the time of the filing of a petition for legal separation under section 4 of this chapter, at least one (1) of the parties must have been:

- (1) a resident of the county; or
- (2) stationed at a United States military installation within the county;

where the petition is filed for three (3) months immediately preceding the filing of the petition.

(c) If a court has authorized a guardian to file a petition for legal separation under section 4 of this chapter on behalf of an incapacitated person under IC 29-3-9-12.2, the guardian may file the petition in the guardian's county of residence if the guardian has resided in that county for at least three (3) months immediately preceding the filing of the petition.

(Reference is to ESB 59 as reprinted February 28, 2014.)

Bray, Chair	Mayfield
Brodén	Bauer
Senate Conferees	House Conferees

Roll Call 391: yeas 39, nays 6. Report adopted.

CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

ESB 111-1

Madam President: Your Conference Committee appointed to confer with a like committee from the House upon Engrossed House Amendments to Engrossed Senate Bill 111 respectfully reports that said two committees have conferred and agreed as follows to wit:

that the Senate recede from its dissent from all House amendments and that the Senate now concur in all House amendments to the bill and that the bill be further amended as follows:

Delete everything after the enacting clause and insert the following:

SECTION 1. IC 6-1.1-4-13, AS AMENDED BY P.L.1-2013, SECTION 1, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2014 (RETROACTIVE)]: Sec. 13. (a) In assessing or reassessing land, the land shall be assessed as agricultural land only when it is devoted to agricultural use.

(b) The department of local government finance shall give written notice to each county assessor of:

- (1) the availability of the United States Department of Agriculture's soil survey data; and
- (2) the appropriate soil productivity factor for each type or classification of soil shown on the United States Department of Agriculture's soil survey map.

All assessing officials and the property tax assessment board of appeals shall use the data in determining the true tax value of agricultural land. However, notwithstanding the availability of new soil productivity factors and the department of local government finance's notice of the appropriate soil productivity factor for each type or classification of soil shown on the United States Department of Agriculture's soil survey map for the March 1, 2012, assessment date, the soil productivity factors used for the March 1, 2011, assessment date shall be used for the March 1, 2012, assessment date, ~~and for the March 1, 2013, assessment date,~~ **and the March 1, 2014, assessment date.** New soil productivity factors shall be used for assessment dates occurring after March 1, ~~2013.~~ **2014.**

(c) The department of local government finance shall by rule provide for the method for determining the true tax value of each parcel of agricultural land.

(d) This section does not apply to land purchased for industrial, commercial, or residential uses.

SECTION 2. An emergency is declared for this act.

(Reference is to ESB 111 as reprinted February 28, 2014.)

Leising, Chair	Lehe
Skinner	Goodin
Senate Conferees	House Conferees

Roll Call 392: yeas 45, nays 0. Report adopted.

CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT
ESB 222-1

Madam President: Your Conference Committee appointed to confer with a like committee from the House upon Engrossed House Amendments to Engrossed Senate Bill 222 respectfully reports that said two committees have conferred and agreed as follows to wit:

that the Senate recede from its dissent from all House amendments and that the Senate now concur in all House amendments to the bill and that the bill be further amended as follows:

Delete everything after the enacting clause and insert the following:

SECTION 1. IC 20-34-7-1.5 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A NEW SECTION TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2014]: **Sec. 1.5. As used in this chapter, "organizing entity" means any person that:**

- (1) operates:**
 - (A) a recreational;**
 - (B) an intramural; or**
 - (C) an extracurricular;****athletic or sports program for individuals who are less than twenty (20) years of age; and**
- (2) uses a facility, field, park, or other property that is owned, leased, operated, or maintained by any of the following:**

- (A) The state.**
- (B) A political subdivision (as defined in IC 36-1-2-13).**
- (C) An agency or instrumentality of an entity described in clause (A) or (B).**

SECTION 2. IC 20-34-7-5, AS ADDED BY P.L.144-2011, SECTION 1, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2014]: Sec. 5. (a) A high school student athlete who has been removed from play under section 4 of this chapter may not return to play until:

- (1) the student athlete:**
 - (+) (A) is evaluated by a licensed health care provider trained in the evaluation and management of concussions and head injuries; and**
 - (-) (B) receives a written clearance to return to play from the health care provider who evaluated the student athlete; and**
- (2) not less than twenty-four (24) hours have passed since the student athlete was removed from play.**

(b) A licensed health care provider who evaluates a student athlete under subsection (a) may conduct the evaluation as a volunteer. A volunteer health care provider who in good faith and gratuitously authorizes a student athlete to return to play is not liable for civil damages resulting from an act or omission in the rendering of an evaluation, except for acts or omissions that constitute gross negligence or willful or wanton misconduct.

SECTION 3. IC 20-34-7-6 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A NEW SECTION TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2014]: **Sec. 6. (a) As used in this section, "football" does not include flag football.**

(b) Beginning July 1, 2014, prior to coaching football to individuals who are less than twenty (20) years of age, each head football coach and assistant football coach shall complete a certified coaching education course that:

- (1) is sport specific;**
- (2) contains player safety content, including content on:**
 - (A) concussion awareness;**
 - (B) equipment fitting;**
 - (C) heat emergency preparedness; and**
 - (D) proper technique;**
- (3) requires a coach to complete a test demonstrating comprehension of the content of the course; and**
- (4) awards a certificate of completion to a coach who successfully completes the course.**

(c) For a coach's completion of a course to satisfy the requirement imposed by subsection (b), the course must have been approved by the department.

(d) A coach shall complete a course not less than once during a two (2) year period. However, if the coach receives notice from the organizing entity that new information has been added to the course before the end of the two (2) year period, the coach must:

(1) complete instruction; and

(2) successfully complete a test;

concerning the new information to satisfy the requirement imposed by subsection (b).

(e) An organizing entity shall maintain a file of certificates of completion awarded under subsection (b)(4) to any of the organizing entity's head coaches and assistant coaches.

(f) A coach who complies with this section and provides coaching services in good faith is not personally liable for damages in a civil action as a result of a concussion or head injury incurred by an athlete participating in an athletic activity in which the coach provided coaching services, except for an act or omission by the coach that constitutes gross negligence or willful or wanton misconduct.

SECTION 4. IC 34-30-2-85.9 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A NEW SECTION TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2014]: **Sec. 85.9. IC 20-34-7-6 (Concerning coaches).**

(Reference is to ESB 222 as printed February 25, 2014.)

Holdman, Chair	Arnold
Stoops	McNamara
Senate Conferees	House Conferees

Roll Call 393: yeas 44, nays 1. Report adopted.

CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

ESB 255-1

Madam President: Your Conference Committee appointed to confer with a like committee from the House upon Engrossed House Amendments to Engrossed Senate Bill 255 respectfully reports that said two committees have conferred and agreed as follows to wit:

that the Senate recede from its dissent from all House amendments and that the Senate now concur in all House amendments to the bill and that the bill be further amended as follows:

Page 6, delete lines 17 through 42.

Page 7, delete lines 1 through 16.

Renumber all SECTIONS consecutively.

(Reference is to ESB 255 as reprinted February 25, 2014.)

Patricia Miller, Chair	Clere
Lanane	Lawson
Senate Conferees	House Conferees

Roll Call 394: yeas 45, nays 0. Report adopted.

CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

ESB 375-1

Madam President: Your Conference Committee appointed to confer with a like committee from the House upon Engrossed

House Amendments to Engrossed Senate Bill 375 respectfully reports that said two committees have conferred and agreed as follows to wit:

that the Senate recede from its dissent from all House amendments and that the Senate now concur in all House amendments to the bill and that the bill be further amended as follows:

Page 21, delete lines 14 through 24, begin a new line triple block indented and insert:

"(iv) Provide the commissioner a copy of an escrow agreement with a bank, regulated trust company or corporate fiduciary, savings bank, savings and loan association, or credit union authorized to do business in Indiana in which the issuer will deposit the investor funds or cause the investor funds to be deposited. The bank, regulated trust company or corporate fiduciary, savings bank, savings and loan association, or credit union in which the investor funds are deposited is only responsible to act at the direction of the party establishing the escrow agreement and does not have any duty or liability, contractual or otherwise, to any investor or other person.

(v) The issuer shall not access the escrow funds until the aggregate funds raised from all investors equals or exceeds the minimum amount specified in the escrow agreement.

(vi) An investor may cancel the investor's commitment to invest if the target offering amount is not raised before the time stated in the escrow agreement."

(Reference is to ESB 375 as reprinted February 26, 2014.)

Holdman, Chair	Heuer
Taylor	Shackleford
Senate Conferees	House Conferees

Roll Call 395: yeas 44, nays 0. Report adopted.

CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

ESB 421-1

Madam President: Your Conference Committee appointed to confer with a like committee from the House upon Engrossed House Amendments to Engrossed Senate Bill 421 respectfully reports that said two committees have conferred and agreed as follows to wit:

that the Senate recede from its dissent from all House amendments and that the Senate now concur in all House amendments to the bill and that the bill be further amended as follows:

Page 11, delete lines 10 through 18, begin a new paragraph and insert:

"SECTION 9. IC 25-1-16-13, AS AMENDED BY SEA 80-2014, SECTION 135, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2014]: Sec. 13. The committee shall submit a report to the:

(1) governor; **and**

(2) ~~interim study committee on public health, behavioral~~

health, and human services established by IC 2-5-1.3-4 in an electronic format under IC 5-14-6; and

(3) (2) legislative services agency;

not later than July 1 of each year. The report submitted to the legislative services agency must be in an electronic format under IC 5-14-6."

Page 11, line 37, strike "financial statement".

Re-number all SECTIONS consecutively.

(Reference is to ESB 421 as reprinted February 28, 2014.)

Head, Chair	McMillin
Taylor	Moseley
Senate Conferees	House Conferees

Roll Call 396: yeas 45, nays 0. Report adopted.

CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT
EHB 1046-1

Madam President: Your Conference Committee appointed to confer with a like committee from the House upon Engrossed Senate Amendments to Engrossed House Bill 1046 respectfully reports that said two committees have conferred and agreed as follows to wit:

that the House recede from its dissent from all Senate amendments and that the House now concur in all Senate amendments to the bill and that the bill be further amended as follows:

Delete everything after the enacting clause and insert the following:

SECTION 1. IC 5-29-3-1.5 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A NEW SECTION TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2014]: **Sec. 1.5. As used in this chapter, "heritage barn" has the meaning set forth in IC 6-1.1-12-26.2.**

SECTION 2. IC 5-29-3-4, AS ADDED BY P.L.229-2005, SECTION 4, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2014]: Sec. 4. (a) The tourism information and promotion fund is established within the state treasury. The fund shall be used for the purposes of this chapter.

(b) The fund consists of appropriations from the general assembly and gifts, donations, bequests, devises, and contributions received by the office.

(c) The office shall administer the fund. The following may be paid from money in the fund:

- (1) Grants.
- (2) Expenses of administering the fund.
- (3) Nonrecurring administrative expenses incurred to carry out the purposes of this chapter.
- (4) Expenses incurred to promote heritage barns under section 9 of this chapter.**

(d) The money in the fund at the end of a state fiscal year does not revert to the state general fund but remains in the fund.

(e) The treasurer of state shall invest the money in the fund not currently needed to meet the obligations of the fund in the same manner as other public funds may be invested. Interest that accrues from these investments shall be deposited in the state general fund.

SECTION 3. IC 5-29-3-9 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA

CODE AS A NEW SECTION TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2014]: **Sec. 9. Before July 1, 2015, the office shall, using only the resources available to the office under P.L.205-2013 and this chapter, develop print and electronic media promoting tourism, visitation, and other hospitality opportunities that feature heritage barns located in Indiana. The department of agriculture and the office of community and rural affairs shall provide the office assistance in developing a heritage barn tourism program in Indiana.**

SECTION 4. IC 6-1.1-12-26.2 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A NEW SECTION TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2014]: **Sec. 26.2. (a) The following definitions apply throughout this section:**

(1) "Barn" means a building (other than a dwelling) that was designed to be used for:

- (A) housing animals;**
- (B) storing or processing crops;**
- (C) storing and maintaining agricultural equipment;**
- or**
- (D) serving an essential or useful purpose related to agricultural activities conducted on the adjacent land.**

(2) "Heritage barn" means a barn that on the assessment date:

- (A) was constructed before 1950;**
- (B) retains sufficient integrity of design, materials, and construction to clearly identify the building as a barn;**
- (C) is not being used for agricultural purposes in the operation of an agricultural enterprise; and**
- (D) is not being used for a business purpose.**

(3) "Eligible applicant" means:

- (A) an owner of a heritage barn; or**
- (B) a person that is purchasing property, including a heritage barn, under a contract that:**
 - (i) gives the person a right to obtain title to the property upon fulfilling the terms of the contract;**
 - (ii) does not permit the owner to terminate the contract as long as the person buying the property complies with the terms of the contract;**
 - (iii) specifies that during the term of the contract the person must pay the property taxes on the property; and**
 - (iv) has been recorded with the county recorder.**

(b) An eligible applicant is entitled to a deduction against the assessed value of the structure and foundation of a heritage barn beginning with assessments after 2014. The deduction is equal to one hundred percent (100%) of the assessed value of the structure and foundation of the heritage barn.

(c) An eligible applicant that desires to obtain the deduction provided by this section must file a certified deduction application with the auditor of the county in which the heritage barn is located. The application may be filed in person or by mail. The application must contain the information and be in the form prescribed by the department of local government finance. If mailed, the mailing must be

postmarked on or before the last day for filing.

(d) Subject to subsection (e) and section 45 of this chapter, the application must be filed during the year preceding the year in which the deduction will first be applied. Upon verification of the application by the county assessor of the county in which the property is subject to assessment or by the township assessor of the township in which the property is subject to assessment (if there is a township assessor for the township), the auditor of the county shall allow the deduction.

(e) The auditor of a county shall, in a particular year, apply the deduction provided under this section to the heritage barn of the owner that received the deduction in the preceding year unless the auditor of the county determines that the property is no longer eligible for the deduction. A person that receives a deduction under this section in a particular year and that remains eligible for the deduction in the following year is not required to file an application for the deduction in the following year. A person that receives a deduction under this section in a particular year and that becomes ineligible for the deduction in the following year shall notify the auditor of the county in which the property is located of the ineligibility in the year in which the person becomes ineligible. A deduction under this section terminates following a change in ownership of the heritage barn. However, a deduction under this section does not terminate following the removal of less than all the joint owners of property or purchasers of property under a contract described in subsection (a).

(f) A county fiscal body may adopt an ordinance to require a person receiving the deduction under this section to pay an annual public safety fee for each heritage barn for which the person receives a deduction under this section. The fee may not exceed fifty dollars (\$50). The county auditor shall distribute any public safety fees collected under this section equitably among the police and fire departments in whose territories each heritage barn is located. If a county fiscal body adopts an ordinance under this subsection, the county fiscal body shall furnish a copy of the ordinance to the department in the manner prescribed by the department.

(Reference is to EHB 1046 as printed February 26, 2014.)

Cherry, Chair	Waterman
Goodin	Hume
House Conferees	Senate Conferees

Roll Call 397: yeas 45, nays 0. Report adopted.

CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

EHB 1141-1

Madam President: Your Conference Committee appointed to confer with a like committee from the House upon Engrossed Senate Amendments to Engrossed House Bill 1141 respectfully reports that said two committees have conferred and agreed as follows to wit:

that the House recede from its dissent from all Senate amendments and that the House now concur in all Senate amendments to the bill and that the bill be further amended as follows:

Delete everything after the enacting clause and insert the following:

SECTION 1. IC 5-2-6-3, AS AMENDED BY P.L.85-2013, SECTION 2, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2014]: Sec. 3. The institute is established to do the following:

- (1) Evaluate state and local programs associated with:
 - (A) the prevention, detection, and solution of criminal offenses;
 - (B) law enforcement; and
 - (C) the administration of criminal and juvenile justice.
- (2) Improve and coordinate all aspects of law enforcement, juvenile justice, and criminal justice in this state.
- (3) Stimulate criminal and juvenile justice research.
- (4) Develop new methods for the prevention and reduction of crime.
- (5) Prepare applications for funds under the Omnibus Act and the Juvenile Justice Act.
- (6) Administer victim and witness assistance funds.
- (7) Administer the traffic safety functions assigned to the institute under IC 9-27-2.
- (8) Compile and analyze information and disseminate the information to persons who make criminal justice decisions in this state.
- (9) Serve as the criminal justice statistical analysis center for this state.
- (10) Identify grants and other funds that can be used by the department of correction to carry out its responsibilities concerning sex or violent offender registration under IC 11-8-8.
- (11) Administer the application and approval process for designating an area of a consolidated or second class city as a public safety improvement area under IC 36-8-19.5.
- (12) Develop and maintain a meth watch program to inform retailers and the public about illicit methamphetamine production, distribution, and use in Indiana.
- ~~(13) Establish, maintain, and operate, subject to specific appropriation by the general assembly, a web site containing a list of properties (as defined in IC 5-2-6-19(b)) that have been used as the site of a methamphetamine laboratory.~~
- ~~(14)~~ (13) Develop and manage the gang crime witness protection program established by section 21 of this chapter.
- ~~(15)~~ (14) Identify grants and other funds that can be used to fund the gang crime witness protection program.
- ~~(16)~~ (15) Administer any sexual offense services.
- ~~(17)~~ (16) Administer domestic violence programs.
- ~~(18)~~ (17) Administer assistance to victims of human sexual trafficking offenses as provided in IC 35-42-3.5-4.
- ~~(19)~~ (18) Administer the domestic violence prevention and treatment fund under IC 5-2-6.7.
- ~~(20)~~ (19) Administer the family violence and victim assistance fund under IC 5-2-6.8.

SECTION 2. IC 5-2-6-19, AS ADDED BY P.L.186-2007, SECTION 4, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2014]: Sec. 19. (a) As used in this

section, "institute" "department" refers to the Indiana criminal justice institute established by section 3 of this chapter: state police department.

(b) As used in this section, "property" refers to a structure or part of a structure that is used as a home, residence, or sleeping unit.

(c) Subject to specific appropriation by the general assembly, the institute department shall establish, maintain, and operate a web site containing a list of properties that have been used as the site of a methamphetamine laboratory. The list of properties shall be based on information received from a law enforcement agency under IC 5-2-15-3.

(d) Subject to specific appropriation by the general assembly, and in accordance with subsections (h) and (i), subsection (g), the institute department shall publish the list of properties that have been used as the site of a methamphetamine laboratory on a web site maintained by the institute department. If methamphetamine is manufactured in an apartment that is a unit of a multi-unit apartment complex, the department shall publish only the address, including the apartment number, of the particular apartment in which the methamphetamine was manufactured. The institute department shall design the web site to enable a user to easily determine whether a particular property has been used as the site of a methamphetamine laboratory. The web site shall be referred to as the "methamphetamine laboratory web site".

(e) Except as provided in subsection (h), the institute department shall remove a listed property from the web site not later than ninety (90) days after the property has been certified as decontaminated by an inspector approved under IC 13-14-1-15. or not more than two (2) years after the date the methamphetamine laboratory was seized by a law enforcement agency.

(f) Notwithstanding subsection (e), If property has been certified as decontaminated by an inspector approved under IC 13-14-1-15 before it is placed on the list required under subsection (c), the institute department may not place the property on the list.

(g) Records concerning a listed property that has been removed from the web site under subsection (e) are confidential.

(h) (g) This subsection only applies to a rental unit (as defined in IC 32-31-3-8). The institute department may not list a rental unit property that has been used as the site of a methamphetamine laboratory on the web site until the one hundred eighty (180) days after the date on which the department receives information from a law enforcement agency that the property has been the site of a methamphetamine laboratory. later of the following:

(1) Thirty (30) days after the date on which the institute receives information from a law enforcement agency under IC 5-2-15-3 that the rental unit has been the site of a methamphetamine laboratory; if the owner or operator of the rental property has not provided documentation to the institute showing:

(A) that the property has been inspected by a person certified to inspect property that is polluted by a contaminant under IC 13-14-1-15; and

(B) that the owner or operator has begun the process of decontaminating the property.

(2) If the owner or operator of the rental unit provides the documentation described in subdivision (1)(A) and (1)(B) not later than thirty (30) days after the date on which the institute receives information from a law enforcement agency under IC 5-2-15-3 that the rental unit has been the site of a methamphetamine laboratory; one hundred eighty (180) days after the date on which the institute receives information from a law enforcement agency that the rental unit has been the site of a methamphetamine laboratory.

However, if the owner or operator provides documentation to the institute within the appropriate time period described in subdivision (1) or (2) that a person authorized to inspect property that is polluted by a contaminant under IC 13-14-1-15 has certified that the property is decontaminated or was not contaminated by a methamphetamine laboratory; the institute may not list the property on the web site.

(1) This subsection only applies to a rental unit (as defined in IC 32-31-3-8). The institute shall remove a rental unit listed on the web site not more than five (5) days after receiving documentation from the owner or operator of the rental property that:

(1) the property has been inspected by a person certified to inspect property that is polluted by a contaminant under IC 13-14-1-15; and

(2) that the owner or operator has begun the process of decontaminating the property.

The institute shall relist the rental unit on the web site not less than one hundred fifty (150) days after receiving documentation described in subdivisions (1) and (2); unless the owner or operator of the rental property provides documentation to the institute that a person authorized to inspect property that is polluted by a contaminant under IC 13-14-1-15 has certified that the property is decontaminated or was not contaminated by a methamphetamine laboratory.

SECTION 3. IC 10-11-2-31.1 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A NEW SECTION TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2014]: Sec. 31.1. (a) The superintendent shall adopt:

(1) guidelines; and

(2) a reporting form or a specified electronic format, or both;

for receiving an approved certificate of cleanup from the department of environmental management that property used for the manufacture of methamphetamine or polluted by waste from the manufacture of methamphetamine has been certified as decontaminated by an inspector approved under IC 13-14-1-15.

(b) Guidelines adopted under this section must require that the department remove, in accordance with the time periods described in IC 5-2-6-19, the decontaminated property from any publicly available list of methamphetamine contaminated properties compiled or made available by the department.

SECTION 4. IC 13-14-1-15, AS ADDED BY P.L.192-2005, SECTION 6, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2014]: Sec. 15. (a) The department shall

maintain a list of persons certified to inspect and clean property that is polluted by a contaminant. The list may specifically note persons with particular expertise or experience in the inspection or cleanup of property contaminated by chemicals used in the illegal manufacture of a controlled substance (as defined in IC 35-48-1-9) or by waste produced from the illegal manufacture of a controlled substance.

(b) The department may specify by rule that a person who meets certain qualifications prescribed by the department is a person certified to inspect and clean property that is polluted by a contaminant.

(c) The department shall specify by rule that any person:

(1) certified under this section to inspect and clean contaminated property; and

(2) who has decontaminated property polluted by the manufacture of methamphetamine or by waste from the manufacture of methamphetamine;

shall notify the department when the person has decontaminated a property polluted by the manufacture of methamphetamine or by waste from the manufacture of methamphetamine.

(c) (d) The department shall adopt rules under IC 4-22-2:

(1) to implement this section; and

(2) concerning the inspection and remediation of contaminated property.

SECTION 5. IC 32-21-5-7, AS AMENDED BY P.L.159-2011, SECTION 41, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2014]: Sec. 7. The Indiana real estate commission established by IC 25-34.1-2-1 shall adopt a specific disclosure form that contains the following:

(1) Disclosure by the owner of the known condition of the following:

(A) The foundation.

(B) The mechanical systems.

(C) The roof.

(D) The structure.

(E) The water and sewer systems.

(F) Additions that may require improvements to the sewage disposal system.

(G) Other areas that the Indiana real estate commission determines are appropriate.

(2) Disclosure by the owner of known:

(A) contamination caused by the manufacture of a controlled substance on the property that has not been certified as decontaminated by an inspector approved under IC 13-14-1-15; or

(B) manufacture of methamphetamine or dumping of waste from the manufacture of methamphetamine in a residential structure on the property.

(3) A notice to the prospective buyer that contains substantially the following language:

"The prospective buyer and the owner may wish to obtain professional advice or inspections of the property and provide for appropriate provisions in a contract between them concerning any advice, inspections, defects, or warranties obtained on the property."

(4) A notice to the prospective buyer that contains substantially the following language:

"The representations in this form are the representations of the owner and are not the representations of the agent, if any. This information is for disclosure only and is not intended to be a part of any contract between the buyer and owner."

(5) A disclosure by the owner that an airport is located within a geographical distance from the property as determined by the Indiana real estate commission. The commission may consider the differences between an airport serving commercial airlines and an airport that does not serve commercial airlines in determining the distance to be disclosed.

SECTION 6. IC 35-50-5-3, AS AMENDED BY P.L.73-2012, SECTION 2, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2014]: Sec. 3. (a) Except as provided in subsection (i), (j), (l), or (m), in addition to any sentence imposed under this article for a felony or misdemeanor, the court may, as a condition of probation or without placing the person on probation, order the person to make restitution to the victim of the crime, the victim's estate, or the family of a victim who is deceased. The court shall base its restitution order upon a consideration of:

(1) property damages of the victim incurred as a result of the crime, based on the actual cost of repair (or replacement if repair is inappropriate);

(2) medical and hospital costs incurred by the victim (before the date of sentencing) as a result of the crime;

(3) the cost of medical laboratory tests to determine if the crime has caused the victim to contract a disease or other medical condition;

(4) earnings lost by the victim (before the date of sentencing) as a result of the crime including earnings lost while the victim was hospitalized or participating in the investigation or trial of the crime; and

(5) funeral, burial, or cremation costs incurred by the family or estate of a homicide victim as a result of the crime.

(b) A restitution order under subsection (a), (i), (j), (l), or (m), is a judgment lien that:

(1) attaches to the property of the person subject to the order;

(2) may be perfected;

(3) may be enforced to satisfy any payment that is delinquent under the restitution order by the person in whose favor the order is issued or the person's assignee; and

(4) expires;

in the same manner as a judgment lien created in a civil proceeding.

(c) When a restitution order is issued under subsection (a), the issuing court may order the person to pay the restitution, or part of the restitution, directly to:

(1) the victim services division of the Indiana criminal justice institute in an amount not exceeding:

(A) the amount of the award, if any, paid to the victim under IC 5-2-6.1; and

- (B) the cost of the reimbursements, if any, for emergency services provided to the victim under IC 16-10-1.5 (before its repeal) or IC 16-21-8; or
- (2) a probation department that shall forward restitution or part of restitution to:
 - (A) a victim of a crime;
 - (B) a victim's estate; or
 - (C) the family of a victim who is deceased.

The victim services division of the Indiana criminal justice institute shall deposit the restitution it receives under this subsection in the violent crime victims compensation fund established by IC 5-2-6.1-40.

(d) When a restitution order is issued under subsection (a), (i), (j), (l), or (m), the issuing court shall send a certified copy of the order to the clerk of the circuit court in the county where the felony or misdemeanor charge was filed. The restitution order must include the following information:

- (1) The name and address of the person that is to receive the restitution.
- (2) The amount of restitution the person is to receive.

Upon receiving the order, the clerk shall enter and index the order in the circuit court judgment docket in the manner prescribed by IC 33-32-3-2. The clerk shall also notify the department of insurance of an order of restitution under subsection (i).

(e) An order of restitution under subsection (a), (i), (j), (l), or (m), does not bar a civil action for:

- (1) damages that the court did not require the person to pay to the victim under the restitution order but arise from an injury or property damage that is the basis of restitution ordered by the court; and
- (2) other damages suffered by the victim.

(f) Regardless of whether restitution is required under subsection (a) as a condition of probation or other sentence, the restitution order is not discharged by the completion of any probationary period or other sentence imposed for a felony or misdemeanor.

(g) A restitution order under subsection (a), (i), (j), (l), or (m), is not discharged by the liquidation of a person's estate by a receiver under IC 32-30-5 (or IC 34-48-1, IC 34-48-4, IC 34-48-5, IC 34-48-6, IC 34-1-12, or IC 34-2-7 before their repeal).

(h) The attorney general may pursue restitution ordered by the court under subsections (a) and (c) on behalf of the victim services division of the Indiana criminal justice institute established under IC 5-2-6-8.

(i) The court may order the person convicted of an offense under IC 35-43-9 to make restitution to the victim of the crime. The court shall base its restitution order upon a consideration of the amount of money that the convicted person converted, misappropriated, or received, or for which the convicted person conspired. The restitution order issued for a violation of IC 35-43-9 must comply with subsections (b), (d), (e), and (g), and is not discharged by the completion of any probationary period or other sentence imposed for a violation of IC 35-43-9.

(j) The court may order the person convicted of an offense under IC 35-43-5-3.5 to make restitution to the victim of the

crime, the victim's estate, or the family of a victim who is deceased. The court shall base its restitution order upon a consideration of the amount of fraud or harm caused by the convicted person and any reasonable expenses (including lost wages) incurred by the victim in correcting the victim's credit report and addressing any other issues caused by the commission of the offense under IC 35-43-5-3.5. If, after a person is sentenced for an offense under IC 35-43-5-3.5, a victim, a victim's estate, or the family of a victim discovers or incurs additional expenses that result from the convicted person's commission of the offense under IC 35-43-5-3.5, the court may issue one (1) or more restitution orders to require the convicted person to make restitution, even if the court issued a restitution order at the time of sentencing. For purposes of entering a restitution order after sentencing, a court has continuing jurisdiction over a person convicted of an offense under IC 35-43-5-3.5 for five (5) years after the date of sentencing. Each restitution order issued for a violation of IC 35-43-5-3.5 must comply with subsections (b), (d), (e), and (g), and is not discharged by the completion of any probationary period or other sentence imposed for an offense under IC 35-43-5-3.5.

(k) The court shall order a person convicted of an offense under IC 35-42-3.5 to make restitution to the victim of the crime in an amount equal to the greater of the following:

- (1) The gross income or value to the person of the victim's labor or services.
- (2) The value of the victim's labor as guaranteed under the minimum wage and overtime provisions of:
 - (A) the federal Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938, as amended (29 U.S.C. 201-209); or
 - (B) IC 22-2-2 (Minimum Wage);
 whichever is greater.

(l) The court shall order a person who:

- (1) is convicted of dealing in methamphetamine under ~~IC 35-48-4-1.1(a)(1)(A)~~; **IC 35-48-4-1.1**; and
- (2) manufactured the methamphetamine on property owned by another person, without the consent of the property owner;

to pay liquidated damages to the property owner in the amount of ten thousand dollars (\$10,000) **or to pay actual damages to the property owner, including lost rent and the costs of decontamination by an inspector approved under IC 13-14-1-15.**

(m) The court shall order a person who:

- (1) is convicted of dealing in marijuana under IC 35-48-4-10(a)(1)(A); and
- (2) manufactured the marijuana on property owned by another person, without the consent of the property owner;

to pay liquidated damages to the property owner in the amount of two thousand dollars (\$2,000).

(Reference is to EHB 1141 as reprinted February 28, 2014.)

McNamara, Chair	Head
Macer	Arnold
House Conferees	Senate Conferees

Roll Call 398: yeas 45, nays 0. Report adopted.

CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT
EHB 1235-1

Madam President: Your Conference Committee appointed to confer with a like committee from the House upon Engrossed Senate Amendments to Engrossed House Bill 1235 respectfully reports that said two committees have conferred and agreed as follows to wit:

that the House recede from its dissent from all Senate amendments and that the House now concur in all Senate amendments to the bill and that the bill be further amended as follows:

Delete everything after the enacting clause and insert the following:

SECTION 1. IC 4-32.2-1-1, AS AMENDED BY P.L.95-2008, SECTION 1, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE UPON PASSAGE]: Sec. 1. (a) This article applies only to a qualified organization.

(b) This article applies only to the following approved gambling events conducted as fundraising activities by qualified organizations:

(1) Bingo events, charity game nights, door prize events, raffle events, festivals, and other gaming events approved by the commission.

(2) The sale of pull tabs, punchboards, and tip boards:

(A) at bingo events, charity game nights, door prize events, raffle events, and festivals conducted by qualified organizations; or

(B) at any time on the premises owned or leased by a qualified organization and regularly used for the activities of the qualified organization.

This article does not apply to any other sale of pull tabs, punchboards, and tip boards.

(c) This article does not apply to a promotion offer subject to IC 24-8.

(d) This article does not apply to the following:

(1) A type II gambling game authorized by IC 4-36.

(2) A raffle or other gambling game authorized by IC 4-36-5-1(b).

(e) This article does not apply to a prize linked savings program that:

(1) is offered or conducted by an eligible financial institution under IC 28-1-23.2; or

(2) is:

(A) offered or conducted by a credit union organized or reorganized under United States law; and

(B) conducted in the same manner as a prize linked savings program under IC 28-1-23.2.

SECTION 2. IC 24-8-1-1 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE UPON PASSAGE]: Sec. 1. (a) This article applies to a promotion offer made:

(1) by a person in Indiana; or

(2) to a person in Indiana.

(b) This article does not apply to a prize linked savings program that:

(1) is offered or conducted by an eligible financial institution under IC 28-1-23.2; or

(2) is:

(A) offered or conducted by a credit union organized

or reorganized under United States law; and
(B) conducted in the same manner as a prize linked savings program under IC 28-1-23.2.

SECTION 3. IC 28-1-23.2 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A NEW CHAPTER TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE UPON PASSAGE]:

Chapter 23.2. Prize Linked Savings Programs

Sec. 1. As used in this chapter, "director" refers to the director of the department of financial institutions.

Sec. 2. As used in this chapter, "eligible depository financial institution" means a credit union that is organized or reorganized under Indiana law with the express power to receive and accept deposits of money subject to withdrawal by any of the methods set forth in IC 28-1-23-16.

Sec. 3. As used in this chapter, "eligible individual", with respect to a prize linked savings program, means an individual who:

(1) is at least eighteen (18) years of age;

(2) is a member of the eligible depository financial institution conducting the prize linked savings program; and

(3) maintains a qualified account with the eligible depository financial institution conducting the prize linked savings program.

Sec. 4. (a) As used in this chapter, "qualified account", for purposes of a prize linked savings program, means:

(1) a savings account;

(2) a time deposit; or

(3) a savings program;

that is offered by an eligible depository financial institution to an eligible individual.

(b) The term includes:

(1) an account described in subsection (a) that is a share account; and

(2) an account described in subsection (a) in which an eligible individual has an interest:

(A) individually; or

(B) jointly with another eligible individual.

Sec. 5. (a) As used in this chapter, "qualified financial program", for purposes of a prize linked savings program, means any savings, debt reduction, or financial education program or product that an eligible depository financial institution offers to eligible individuals for the purpose of:

(1) educating eligible individuals in the concepts of thrift;

(2) encouraging savings by eligible individuals; or

(3) providing eligible individuals the opportunity to use and control their own money in order to improve their economic and social condition.

(b) Subject to the approval of the director, and of the eligible depository financial institution's board of directors, the term includes the following:

(1) Programs or products that encourage or require eligible individuals to open one (1) or more qualified accounts or to increase deposits or contributions to one (1) or more qualified accounts.

(2) Programs or products that encourage or require eligible individuals to deposit or transfer money into

one (1) or more qualified accounts on a recurring or automatic basis.

(3) Programs or products that encourage an eligible individual to:

- (A) refinance or consolidate existing debt to obtain a lower interest rate;
- (B) lower the eligible individual's total debt ratio or revolving debt ratio by paying off or reducing outstanding balances; or
- (C) prepare a budget or a debt reduction plan.

(4) Programs that encourage eligible individuals to:

- (A) attend financial education seminars or counseling sessions sponsored by the eligible financial institution and offered free of charge; or
- (B) use free online financial education, budgeting, or debt reduction tools.

(5) Any other similar savings, debt reduction, or financial education program or product that an eligible depository financial institution offers to eligible individuals for any of the purposes set forth in subsection (a).

Sec. 6. As used in this chapter, "prize linked savings program" means a contest:

- (1) that is associated with one (1) or more qualified accounts or one (1) or more qualified financial programs offered by an eligible depository financial institution to eligible individuals;
- (2) that is conducted by an eligible depository financial institution, alone or together with one (1) or more other businesses;
- (3) that offers eligible individuals one (1) or more chances to win designated prizes; and
- (4) in which:
 - (A) the sole consideration for a chance to win a designated prize is obtained by:
 - (i) depositing a minimum specified amount of money in a qualified account; or
 - (ii) participating in one (1) or more qualified financial programs; and
 - (B) each entry has an equal chance of being drawn.

Sec. 7. (a) Subject to subsections (b) and (c) and section 8 of this chapter, and subject to any rules, policies, or guidance adopted by the director under section 9 of this chapter, an eligible depository financial institution may offer and conduct a prize linked savings program if the following conditions are met:

(1) The terms and conditions of the prize linked savings program must allow an eligible individual to obtain one (1) or more entries to win a specified prize. Subject to any limits that the eligible depository financial institution may place on the number of entries that an eligible individual is permitted to obtain for any given prize linked savings program, as set forth in the terms and conditions of the prize linked savings program, the eligible depository financial institution must allow an eligible individual to obtain an entry for a prize linked savings program only by doing either or both of the following:

(A) Depositing a minimum specified amount of money in a qualified account in accordance with the terms and conditions of the prize linked savings program.

(B) Participating in one (1) or more qualified financial programs in accordance with the terms and conditions of the prize linked savings program.

(2) Each entry in the prize linked savings program must have an equal chance of being drawn.

(3) The prize linked savings program must be approved by:

(A) the director; and

(B) the eligible depository financial institution's board of directors;

before it is offered or promoted to eligible individuals by the eligible depository financial institution.

(b) An eligible depository financial institution may not conduct a prize linked savings program if the prize linked savings program will:

(1) harm the eligible depository financial institution's ability to operate in a safe and sound manner; or

(2) mislead eligible individuals or the public.

(c) An eligible depository financial institution that conducts a prize linked savings program under this chapter shall maintain books and records relating to the conduct of the prize linked savings program in the manner and for the length of time that the director may prescribe in rules, policies, or guidance adopted under section 9 of this chapter.

Sec. 8. (a) An eligible depository financial institution that offers a prize linked savings program under this chapter shall:

(1) post in any location where entries may be submitted; and

(2) disclose in any:

(A) printed materials; or

(B) electronic media;

promoting the prize linked savings program;

a statement describing the terms and conditions of the prize linked savings program.

(b) The statement required under subsection (a) must include language specifying the following:

(1) That, except for:

(A) making a deposit described in section 7(a)(1)(A) of this chapter; or

(B) participating in one (1) or more qualified financial programs, as described in section 7(a)(1)(B) of this chapter;

no other action, and no purchase or other consideration, is necessary for an entry into the prize linked savings program.

(2) That, except for:

(A) making a deposit described in section 7(a)(1)(A) of this chapter; or

(B) participating in one (1) or more qualified financial programs, as described in section 7(a)(1)(B) of this chapter;

taking any other action, or purchasing any goods or services, will not improve the odds of winning.

(3) That the odds of winning are determined based on the number of entries received.

Sec. 9. The director may do any of the following:

(1) Prescribe the form or manner in which an eligible depository financial institution may seek approval from the department to offer a prize linked savings program to eligible individuals.

(2) Adopt rules, policies, or guidance concerning the conduct of prize linked savings programs in Indiana.

(3) Examine the conduct of an eligible depository financial institution's prize linked savings program.

(4) Issue cease and desist orders or otherwise exercise the department's enforcement powers under IC 28-11-4 for a violation of this chapter.

SECTION 4. IC 35-45-5-7, AS AMENDED BY P.L.233-2007, SECTION 33, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE UPON PASSAGE]: Sec. 7. This chapter does not apply to the publication or broadcast of an advertisement, a list of prizes, or other information concerning:

(1) pari-mutuel wagering on horse races or a lottery authorized by the law of any state;

(2) a game of chance operated in accordance with IC 4-32.2; or

(3) a gambling game operated in accordance with IC 4-35; or

(4) a prize linked savings program that:

(A) is offered or conducted by an eligible financial institution under IC 28-1-23.2; or

(B) is:

(i) offered or conducted by a credit union organized or reorganized under United States law; and

(ii) conducted in the same manner as a prize linked savings program under IC 28-1-23.2.

SECTION 5. IC 35-45-5-13 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A NEW SECTION TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE UPON PASSAGE]: Sec. 13. This chapter does not apply to a prize linked savings program that:

(1) is offered or conducted by an eligible financial institution under IC 28-1-23.2; or

(2) is:

(A) offered or conducted by a credit union organized or reorganized under United States law; and

(B) conducted in the same manner as a prize linked savings program under IC 28-1-23.2.

SECTION 6. An emergency is declared for this act.

(Reference is to EHB 1235 as reprinted March 4, 2014.)

Dermody, Chair

Holdman

Riecken

Taylor

House Conferees

Senate Conferees

Roll Call 399: yeas 32, nays 13. Report adopted.

CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

EHB 1237-1

Madam President: Your Conference Committee appointed to confer with a like committee from the House upon Engrossed Senate Amendments to Engrossed House Bill 1237 respectfully

reports that said two committees have conferred and agreed as follows to wit:

that the House recede from its dissent from all Senate amendments and that the House now concur in all Senate amendments to the bill and that the bill be further amended as follows:

Delete everything after the enacting clause and insert the following:

SECTION 1. IC 5-16-9-1, AS AMENDED BY P.L.2-2007, SECTION 104, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 1. (a) The definitions in this section apply throughout this chapter.

(b) "Accessible parking space" refers to a parking space that conforms with the standards of section 4 of this chapter.

(c) "Motor vehicle" has the meaning set forth in IC 9-13-2-105.

(d) "Parking facility" means any facility or combination of facilities for motor vehicle parking which contains parking spaces for the public.

(e) "Person with a physical disability" means a person who has been issued a placard under IC 9-14-5, a person who has been issued a modified Purple Heart plate under IC 9-18-19-1(b), or a person with a disability registration plate for a motor vehicle by the bureau of motor vehicles under IC 9-18-22.

(f) "Public agency" means:

(1) the state of Indiana, its departments, agencies, boards, commissions, and institutions, including state educational institutions; and

(2) a county, city, town, township, school or conservancy district, other governmental unit or district, or any department, board, or other subdivision of the unit of government.

SECTION 2. IC 5-16-9-5, AS AMENDED BY P.L.50-2013, SECTION 1, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 5. (a) Any person who parks a motor vehicle which does not have displayed a placard of a person with a physical disability or a disabled veteran, issued under IC 9-14-5 or under the laws of another state, or a registration plate of a person with a physical disability or a disabled veteran, issued under IC 9-18-18, IC 9-18-19-1(b), IC 9-18-22, or under the laws of another state, in a parking space reserved under this chapter for a vehicle of a person with a physical disability commits a Class C infraction.

(b) Any person who knowingly parks in a parking space reserved for a person with a physical disability while displaying a placard to which neither the person nor the person's passenger is entitled commits a Class C infraction.

(c) Any person who displays for use in parking in a parking space reserved for a person with a physical disability a placard or a special license plate that was not issued under IC 9-14-5, IC 9-18-18, IC 9-18-19-1(b), IC 9-18-22, or under the laws of another state commits a Class C misdemeanor.

(d) A person who, in a parking space reserved for a person with a physical disability, parks a vehicle that displays a placard or special registration plate entitling a person to park in a parking space reserved for a person with a physical disability commits a Class C infraction if that person is not, at that time, in the process

of transporting a person with a physical disability or disabled veteran.

(e) Notwithstanding IC 34-28-5-4(c), a civil judgment of not less than one hundred dollars (\$100) must be imposed for an infraction committed in violation of this section.

SECTION 3. IC 5-16-9-8, AS AMENDED BY P.L.50-2013, SECTION 2, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 8. (a) As used in this section, "owner" means a person in whose name a motor vehicle is registered under:

- (1) IC 9-18;
- (2) the laws of another state; or
- (3) the laws of a foreign country.

(b) As used in this section, "lessee" means a person who has care, custody, or control of a motor vehicle under a written agreement for the rental or lease of the motor vehicle for less than sixty-one (61) days. The term does not include an employee of the owner of the motor vehicle.

(c) An owner or lessee of a motor vehicle commits a Class C infraction if the motor vehicle:

- (1) is located in a parking space in a parking facility that is marked under section 2 of this chapter as a parking space reserved for a person with a physical disability; and
- (2) does not display:

(A) an unexpired parking permit for a person with a physical disability issued under IC 9-14-5;

(B) an unexpired disabled veteran's registration plate issued under IC 9-18-18 **or an unexpired modified Purple Heart license plate under IC 9-18-19-1(b)**;

(C) an unexpired registration plate or decal for a person with a physical disability issued under IC 9-18-22; or

(D) an unexpired parking permit for a person with a physical disability, an unexpired disabled veteran's registration plate, or an unexpired registration plate or decal for a person with a physical disability issued under the laws of another state.

(d) It is a defense that IC 9-30-11-8 applies to the violation.

(e) It is a defense that the motor vehicle was the subject of an offense described in IC 35-43-4 at the time of the violation of this section.

(f) Notwithstanding IC 34-28-5-4(c), a civil judgment of not less than one hundred dollars (\$100) must be imposed for an infraction committed in violation of this section.

SECTION 4. IC 5-16-9-9 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 9. (a) This chapter does not prohibit a county, city, or town from adopting and enforcing an ordinance that regulates standing or parking of motor vehicles in a space reserved for a person with a physical disability under section 2 of this chapter, IC 9-21-1-3, or IC 9-21-18-4.

(b) An ordinance described in subsection (a) may not conflict with this chapter.

(c) An ordinance described in subsection (a) may not require a person to obtain or display any permit, registration plate, or registration decal to stand or park in a space reserved for a person with a physical disability under section 2 of this chapter, except the following:

(1) A parking permit for a person with a physical disability issued under IC 9-14-5.

(2) A disabled veteran's registration plate issued under IC 9-18-18 **or a modified Purple Heart license plate under IC 9-18-19-1(b)**.

(3) A registration plate or decal for a person with a physical disability issued under IC 9-18-22.

(d) An ordinance described in subsection (a) must permit a motor vehicle displaying an unexpired parking permit for a person with a physical disability, an unexpired disabled veteran's registration plate, or an unexpired registration plate or decal for a person with a physical disability issued under the laws of another state to stand or park in a space reserved for a person with a physical disability but only when the vehicle is being used to transport a person with a physical disability.

SECTION 5. IC 5-26-4-1 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 1. (a) The integrated public safety communications fund is established to be used only to carry out the purposes of this article. The fund shall be administered by the commission.

(b) The fund consists of:

(1) appropriations from the general assembly;

(2) gifts;

(3) federal grants;

(4) fees and contributions from user agencies that the commission considers necessary to maintain and operate the system;

(5) amounts distributed to the fund under IC 9-29; and

~~(6)~~ (6) money from any other source permitted by law.

(c) The treasurer of state shall invest the money in the fund not currently needed to meet the obligations of the fund in the same manner as other public funds may be invested. Interest that accrues from these investments shall be deposited in the fund.

(d) Money in the fund at the end of a state fiscal year does not revert to the state general fund.

(e) If federal funds are not sufficient to pay for the system, the commission shall transfer money from the fund to the communications system infrastructure fund established by IC 5-26-5-4 in amounts sufficient to pay rentals and other obligations under use and occupancy agreements or other contracts or leases relating to the financing of the system under IC 4-13.5.

SECTION 6. IC 6-6-5.5-7, AS AMENDED BY P.L.293-2013(ts), SECTION 24, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 7.(a) The annual excise tax for a commercial vehicle will be determined by the motor carrier services division on or before October 1 of each year in accordance with the following formula:

STEP ONE: Determine the total amount of base revenue for all taxing units using the base revenue determined for each taxing unit under section 19 of this chapter.

STEP TWO: Determine the sum of **registration fees paid and collected under IC 9-29-5** to register the following commercial vehicles in Indiana under the following statutes during the fiscal year that ends June 30 immediately preceding the calendar year for which the tax is first due and payable:

(A) ~~Total registration fees collected under IC 9-29-5-3~~ for Commercial vehicles with a declared gross weight in excess of eleven thousand (11,000) pounds, including trucks, tractors not used with semitrailers, traction engines, and other similar vehicles used for hauling purposes.

(B) ~~Total registration fees collected under IC 9-29-5-5~~ for Tractors used with semitrailers.

(C) ~~Total registration fees collected under IC 9-29-5-6~~ for Semitrailers used with tractors.

(D) ~~Total registration fees collected under IC 9-29-5-4~~ for Trailers having a declared gross weight in excess of three thousand (3,000) pounds. ~~and~~

(E) ~~Total registration fees collected under IC 9-29-5-13~~ for Trucks, tractors and semitrailers used in connection with agricultural pursuits usual and normal to the user's farming operation, multiplied by two hundred percent (200%).

STEP THREE: Determine the tax factor by dividing the STEP ONE result by the STEP TWO result.

(b) Except as otherwise provided in this chapter, the annual excise tax for commercial vehicles with a declared gross weight in excess of eleven thousand (11,000) pounds, including trucks, tractors not used with semitrailers, traction engines, and other similar vehicles used for hauling purposes, shall be determined by multiplying the registration fee under ~~IC 9-29-5-3~~ **IC 9-29-5-3.2** by the tax factor determined in subsection (a).

(c) Except as otherwise provided in this chapter, the annual excise tax for tractors used with semitrailers shall be determined by multiplying the registration fee under IC 9-29-5-5 by the tax factor determined in subsection (a).

(d) Except as otherwise provided in this chapter, the annual excise tax for trailers having a declared gross weight in excess of three thousand (3,000) pounds shall be determined by multiplying the registration fee under IC 9-29-5-4 by the tax factor determined in subsection (a).

(e) The annual excise tax for a semitrailer shall be determined by multiplying the average annual registration fee under IC 9-29-5-6 by the tax factor determined in subsection (a). The average annual registration fee for a semitrailer under IC 9-29-5-6 is sixteen dollars and seventy-five cents (\$16.75).

(f) The annual excise tax determined under this section shall be rounded upward to the next full dollar amount.

SECTION 7. IC 6-6-11-29, AS AMENDED BY P.L.261-2013, SECTION 36, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 29. (a) The bureau of motor vehicles shall transfer the department of natural resources fee, the lake and river enhancement fee, the delinquent excise taxes, and the delinquent fees collected under this chapter during the preceding month as follows:

(1) On or before the eleventh day of each month, the bureau of motor vehicles shall transfer to the ~~state license branch bureau of motor vehicles commission~~ fund an amount equal to five percent (5%) of each excise tax transaction completed by the bureau. The money is to be used to cover the expenses incurred by the bureau of motor vehicles and the license branches for returns, decals,

collecting the fees and excise taxes and ~~to cover any service charges by the commission under IC 9-29-3.~~ **for amounts deposited in the commission fund.** An additional charge may not be imposed for the services of the license branches under this chapter.

(2) At least quarterly, the bureau of motor vehicles shall set aside for the department of natural resources the fees and the delinquent fees collected under this chapter to use as provided in section 35 of this chapter.

(3) On or before the tenth day of each month, the bureau of motor vehicles shall distribute to each county the excise tax collections, including delinquent tax collections, for the county for the preceding month. The bureau of motor vehicles shall include a report with each distribution showing the information necessary for the county auditor to allocate the revenue among the taxing units of the county.

(4) The bureau of motor vehicles shall deposit the revenue from the lake and river enhancement fee imposed by section 12(b) of this chapter in the lake and river enhancement fund established by section 12.5 of this chapter.

(b) Money credited to each county's account in the state general fund is appropriated to make the distributions and the transfers required by subsection (a). The distributions shall be made upon warrants drawn from the state general fund.

SECTION 8. IC 8-14-1-1, AS AMENDED BY P.L.145-2011, SECTION 2, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 1. As used in this chapter:

(1) "Motor vehicle highway account" means the account of the general fund of the state known as the "motor vehicle highway account" to which is credited collections from motor vehicle registration fees, licenses, driver's and chauffeur's license fees, gasoline taxes, auto transfer fees, certificate of title fees, weight taxes or excise taxes and all other similar special taxes, duties or excises of all kinds on motor vehicles, trailers, motor vehicle fuel, or motor vehicle owners or operators. The account also includes ~~fees collected under IC 9-27-6-9(d).~~ **amounts distributed to the fund under IC 9-29.**

(2) The term "department" refers to the Indiana department of transportation.

(3) The term "highways" includes roadway, rights of way, bridges, drainage structures, signs, guard rails, protective structures in connection with highways, drains, culverts, and bridges and the substructure and superstructure of bridges and approaches thereto and streets and alleys of cities or towns.

(4) The term "construction" means the planning, supervising, inspecting, actual building, draining, and all expenses incidental to the construction of a highway.

(5) The term "reconstruction" means a widening or a rebuilding of the highway or any portion thereof.

(6) The term "maintenance" when used in reference to cities, towns, and counties as applied to that part of the highway other than bridges, means the constant making of

needed repairs, to preserve a smooth surfaced highway, adequately drained, marked and guarded by protective structures for public safety and, as to bridges, means the constant making of needed repairs to preserve a smooth surfaced highway thereon and the safety and preservation of the bridge and its approaches, together with the substructure and superstructure thereof; and such term also means and includes the acquisition and use, in any manner, of all needed equipment, fuel, materials, and supplies essential and incident thereto.

(7) The term "vehicle registration" means the number of vehicles subject to registration under IC 9-18 which are registered thereunder, and, when used with respect to the state, shall mean the number of vehicles registered in the state and, when used in respect to a county, city, or town, shall mean the number of vehicles registered by owners resident in the county, city, or town.

SECTION 9. IC 8-14-2-2.1 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 2.1. The auditor shall create a special fund to be known as the "Highway, Road and Street Fund" for the deposit of the revenues from:

(1) the gasoline and special fuel taxes dedicated to the fund under IC 6-6-1.1-802 and IC 6-6-2.5; and

(2) ~~the increases in fees levied under IC 9-29-4, IC 9-29-5, IC 9-29-9, and IC 9-29-11, which increases are attributable to Acts 1969, Chapter 321, SECTION 1.~~ **amounts deposited in or distributed to the fund under IC 9-29.**

SECTION 10. IC 8-14-10-9, AS AMENDED BY P.L.92-2013, SECTION 3, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 9. (a) The crossroads 2000 fund is established for the purpose of constructing or reconstructing state highways. The crossroads 2000 fund consists of distributions received under ~~IC 9-29-1-2, IC 9-29-15-1, IC 9-29-15-3, IC 9-29-15-4, and IC 9-29-17-14.~~ **IC 9-29.**

(b) The crossroads 2000 fund shall be administered by the department. The treasurer of state shall invest the money in the crossroads 2000 fund not currently needed to meet the obligations of the crossroads 2000 fund in the same manner as other public funds may be invested.

(c) Money in the crossroads 2000 fund at the end of a state fiscal year does not revert to the state general fund.

(d) The department may use the money in the crossroads 2000 fund only to pay the following costs:

(1) The cost of construction or reconstruction of a state highway.

(2) The cost of acquisition of all land, rights-of-way, property, rights, easements, and any other legal or equitable interests acquired by the department for the construction or reconstruction of a state highway, including the cost of any relocations incident to the acquisition.

(3) The cost of demolishing or removing any buildings, structures, or improvements on property acquired by the department for the construction or reconstruction of a state highway.

(4) Engineering and legal expenses and the costs of plans, specifications, surveys, estimates, and any necessary feasibility studies.

(5) Payment of rentals and performance of other obligations under contracts or leases securing bonds issued under IC 8-14.5-6.

SECTION 11. IC 9-13-2-32.7 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A **NEW SECTION TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 32.7. "Commission fund" refers to the bureau of motor vehicles commission fund established by IC 9-29-14-1.**

SECTION 12. IC 9-13-2-39.8 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A **NEW SECTION TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 39.8. "Crossroads 2000 fund" refers to the crossroads 2000 fund established by IC 8-14-10-9.**

SECTION 13. IC 9-13-2-73.3 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A **NEW SECTION TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 73.3. "Highway, road and street fund" refers to the highway, road and street fund established by IC 8-14-2-2.1.**

SECTION 14. IC 9-13-2-82.5 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A **NEW SECTION TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 82.5. "Integrated public safety communications fund" refers to the integrated public safety communications fund established by IC 5-26-4-1.**

SECTION 15. IC 9-13-2-94.3 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A **NEW SECTION TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 94.3. "Local road and street account" refers to the local road and street account established by IC 8-14-2-4.**

SECTION 16. IC 9-13-2-102.3, AS ADDED BY P.L.6-2009, SECTION 1, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 102.3. "Metered space", for purposes of IC 9-18-17, ~~and IC 9-18-18, and IC 9-18-19,~~ means a public parking space at which parking is regulated by:

(1) a parking meter; or

(2) an official traffic control device that imposes a maximum parking time for the public parking space.

The term does not include parking spaces or areas regulated under IC 9-21-18.

SECTION 17. IC 9-13-2-105.3 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A **NEW SECTION TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 105.3. "Motor vehicle highway account" refers to the motor vehicle highway account as defined in IC 8-14-1-1(1).**

SECTION 18. IC 9-13-2-108.3 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A **NEW SECTION TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 108.3. "Motorcycle operator safety education fund" refers to the motorcycle operator safety education fund established by IC 9-27-7-7.**

SECTION 19. IC 9-13-2-144.5 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 144.5. "Pull service charge" ~~for purposes of IC 9-29-3-19, has the meaning set forth in IC 9-29-3-19.~~ **refers to the charge that the commission or bureau may require for a motor vehicle registration plate requested for issuance out of its established numerical sequence.**

SECTION 20. IC 9-13-2-150 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 150. (a) "Recreational vehicle" means a vehicle with or without motive power equipped exclusively for living quarters for persons traveling upon the highways. **The term does not include a truck camper.**

(b) "Recreational vehicle", for purposes of IC 9-18-2-8, does not include a mobile structure (as defined in IC 22-12-1-17).

SECTION 21. IC 9-13-2-170.5 IS REPEALED [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]. ~~Sec. 170.5: "Special numbered motor vehicle registration plate" for purposes of IC 9-29-3-19, has the meaning set forth in IC 9-29-3-19.~~

SECTION 22. IC 9-13-2-173.3 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A NEW SECTION TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: **Sec. 173.3. "State highway fund" refers to the state highway fund established by IC 8-23-9-54. The term is synonymous with the primary highway system special account described in IC 8-14-2-1(1).**

SECTION 23. IC 9-13-2-173.5 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A NEW SECTION TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: **Sec. 173.5. "State police building account" refers to the state police building account established by IC 9-29-1-4.**

SECTION 24. IC 9-13-2-173.7 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A NEW SECTION TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: **Sec. 173.7. "State motor vehicle technology fund" refers to the state motor vehicle technology fund established by IC 9-29-16-1.**

SECTION 25. IC 9-14-3-4, AS AMENDED BY P.L.125-2012, SECTION 33, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 4. (a) **Upon request**, the bureau shall prepare and deliver ~~upon request and payment of the fees prescribed in IC 9-29-2-1~~, a certified copy of any record of the bureau that is not otherwise declared by law to be confidential. **The fee for a certified copy is the amount set forth in IC 9-29-2-1.**

(b) A certified copy of a record obtained under subsection (a) is admissible in a court proceeding as if the copy were the original.

(c) An electronic record of the bureau obtained from the bureau that bears an electronic signature is admissible in a court proceeding as if the copy were the original.

SECTION 26. IC 9-14-5-7, AS AMENDED BY P.L.262-2013, SECTION 18, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 7. A placard issued under this chapter must be displayed on the dashboard or rear view mirror of a motor vehicle that is parked in a parking space reserved for persons with physical disabilities under this chapter unless the motor vehicle bears a license plate for a person with a disability issued under IC 9-18-22, a disabled Hoosier veteran's license plate issued under IC 9-18-18, **a modified Purple Heart license plate issued under IC 9-18-19-1(b)**, or an equivalent parking permit issued under the laws of another state. If a placard is lost, stolen, damaged, or destroyed, the bureau shall provide a duplicate placard upon the application of the person who was issued the placard.

SECTION 27. IC 9-14-5-8, AS AMENDED BY P.L.125-2012, SECTION 49, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 8. **(a) The bureau may establish by rule and charge a fee of not more than five dollars (\$5) to cover the cost of issuing fee to issue** a placard or duplicate placard under this chapter to an individual having a temporary disability **is five dollars (\$5). The fee shall be deposited in the commission fund.**

~~However, the bureau may not establish or charge a~~ **(b) There is no fee for issuing** a placard or duplicate placard **issued** under this chapter to an individual having a permanent disability.

SECTION 28. IC 9-15-2-1, AS AMENDED BY P.L.125-2012, SECTION 53, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 1. The commission board shall do the following:

- (1) Recommend legislation needed to operate the license branches.
- (2) Recommend rules needed to operate the license branches.
- (3) Review budget proposals for the commission and the license branches operated under IC 9-16, including the budget required by IC 9-16-3-3.
- (4) Establish the determination criteria and determine the number and location of license branches to be operated under IC 9-16. However, there must be at least one (1) full service license branch in each county.
- (5) Establish and adopt minimum standards for the operation and maintenance of each full or partial service license branch operated under IC 9-16.
- (6) Administer the ~~state license branch commission~~ fund established under IC 9-29-14.

SECTION 29. IC 9-16-1-5, AS AMENDED BY P.L.210-2005, SECTION 19, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 5. Each license branch, full service provider, or partial services provider shall:

- (1) collect the service charges prescribed by IC 9-29-3 and deposit the service charges in the state license branch fund established under IC 9-29-14; and fees as set forth in IC 9-29 and in policies and other documents of the bureau; and**
- (2) remit the amounts collected to the bureau for deposit as set forth in this title.**

SECTION 30. IC 9-16-3-2, AS AMENDED BY P.L.125-2012, SECTION 63, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 2. The commission shall develop a statewide license branch budget. If the commission board determines that the total of:

- (1) revenues from license branch operations; and
 - (2) appropriations received by the commission;
- are insufficient to support license branch operations, the commission ~~shall increase the branch service charges under IC 9-29-3; may increase fees by rule under IC 9-29-1-12.~~

SECTION 31. IC 9-17-3-8, AS AMENDED BY P.L.262-2013, SECTION 26, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 8. The bureau shall ~~(+)~~ enable the owner of a motor vehicle titled in

Indiana to determine:

- ~~(A)~~ (1) whether that motor vehicle has previously been titled in Indiana; and
- ~~(B)~~ (2) if the motor vehicle has previously been titled in Indiana, whether the title was issued as a salvage title under IC 9-22-3. ~~and~~
- ~~(2) impose a service charge under IC 9-29 for services performed by the bureau under this section.~~

SECTION 32. IC 9-18-2-8, AS AMENDED BY SEA 238-2014, SECTION 1, AND AS AMENDED BY HEA 1343-2014, SECTION 19, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 8. (a) Except as provided in section 7(h) of this chapter and subsection (f), the bureau shall determine the schedule for registration for the following categories of vehicles:

- (1) Passenger motor vehicles.
- (2) Recreational vehicles.
- (3) Motorcycles.
- (4) Trucks that:
 - (A) are regularly rented to others for not more than twenty-nine (29) days in the regular course of the corporation's business; and
 - (B) have a declared gross weight of not more than eleven thousand (11,000) pounds.
- (5) Motor driven cycles.

(b) Except as provided in IC 9-18-12-2.5, a person that owns a vehicle shall receive a license plate, renewal ~~tag; sticker~~, or other indicia upon registration of the vehicle. The bureau may determine the indicia required to be displayed.

(c) A corporation that owns a vehicle that is regularly rented to others for periods of not more than twenty-nine (29) days in the regular course of the corporation's business must register the vehicle on the date prescribed by the bureau.

(d) A person that owns a vehicle in a category required to be registered under this section and desires to register the vehicle for the first time must apply to the bureau for a certificate of registration. The bureau shall do the following:

- (1) Administer the certificate of registration.
- (2) Issue the license plate according to the bureau's central fulfillment processes.
- (3) Collect the proper ~~registration and service fees~~ ~~fee~~ in accordance with the procedure established by the bureau.

(e) Except as provided in IC 9-18-12-2.5, the bureau shall issue a semipermanent plate under section 30 of this chapter, or:

- (1) an annual renewal ~~tag; sticker~~; or
- (2) other indicia;

to be affixed on the semipermanent plate.

(f) After June 30, 2011, the registration of a vehicle under IC 9-18-16-1(a)(1) or IC 9-18-16-1(a)(2) expires on December 14 of each year. However, if a vehicle is registered under IC 9-18-16-1(a)(1) or IC 9-18-16-1(a)(2) and the registration of the vehicle is in effect on June 30, 2011, the registration of the vehicle remains valid:

- (1) throughout calendar year 2011; and
- (2) during the period that:
 - (A) begins January 1, 2012; and
 - (B) ends on the date on which the vehicle was due for

reregistration under the law in effect before this subsection took effect.

(g) After December 31, 2015, a person that:

- (1) owns a private bus; and
 - (2) desires to:
 - (A) register for the first time; or
 - (B) reregister;
- the private bus;

must present to the bureau an unexpired certificate indicating compliance with an inspection program established under IC 9-19-22-3, in addition to any other information required by the bureau.

SECTION 33. IC 9-18-2-8.5, AS AMENDED BY P.L.286-2013, SECTION 7, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 8.5. (a) Notwithstanding section 8 of this chapter, a school bus owned by a person other than a school corporation shall be registered before September 28 of each year.

(b) Registration and reregistration for a school bus under this section is for one (1) year.

(c) A certificate of inspection as described under IC 20-27-7-3 must accompany a registration and reregistration application of a school bus under this section.

(d) A person registering a school bus under this section shall pay the annual registration fee required under IC 9-29-5-8 and any **other applicable fees.** ~~and service charges required of a vehicle registered under this chapter.~~

(e) Upon registration of a school bus under this section, the bureau shall issue a license plate under section 30 of this chapter, including:

- (1) an annual renewal ~~tag; sticker~~; or
- (2) other indicia;

to be attached on the semipermanent plate.

(f) A license plate with a renewal ~~tag sticker~~ or other indicia of registration issued under this section may be displayed during:

- (1) the calendar year for which the school bus is registered; and
- (2) the period:
 - (A) after the calendar year; and
 - (B) before September 28 of the subsequent year.

SECTION 34. IC 9-18-2-20 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 20. (a) The bureau, upon registering a vehicle required to be registered by this chapter, shall issue a certificate of registration.

(b) The certificate of registration shall be delivered to the person leasing the vehicle or to the person who owns the vehicle and shall contain upon the face of the card the following information:

- (1) The name and address of the person leasing the vehicle or the person who owns the vehicle.
- (2) The date the card was issued.
- (3) The registration number assigned to the vehicle.
- (4) A description of the vehicle as determined by the bureau.

(c) If a certificate of registration is mutilated, destroyed, or lost, a duplicate certificate of registration must be purchased. The application for a duplicate certificate of registration must be

accompanied by the ~~service charge fee~~ prescribed under IC 9-29.

SECTION 35. IC 9-18-2-48 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 48. (a) The commissioner may enter into a contract or an agreement authorizing a person to create and use a reproduction of a license plate issued under this article.

(b) A person may not create or use a reproduction of a license plate issued under this article unless the creation or use of the reproduction is expressly authorized in writing by the commissioner. The commissioner may impose under IC 4-21.5 a civil penalty upon a person who violates this subsection. The amount of a civil penalty imposed under this subsection:

- (1) shall be determined by the commissioner; and
- (2) may not exceed ten thousand dollars (\$10,000).

(c) Money paid to the bureau as:

- (1) compensation to the state under a contract or an agreement entered into under subsection (a); or
- (2) a civil penalty imposed under subsection (b);

shall be collected and deposited ~~according to IC 9-29-1-1~~ **in the motor vehicle highway account.**

SECTION 36. IC 9-18-6-2, AS AMENDED BY P.L.262-2013, SECTION 67, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 2. (a) Except as provided in subsection (b), if a license plate is:

- (1) lost or stolen;
- (2) damaged as to not be legible; or
- (3) destroyed;

the person in whose name the license plate was issued may obtain from the bureau a duplicate or a replacement license plate by filing with the bureau an application on a form provided by the bureau duly sworn to as provided in IC 9-18-2.

(b) If a license plate is lost or stolen, the bureau may not issue a duplicate or replacement license plate until the person in whose name the plate was issued has first notified:

- (1) the Indiana law enforcement agency that has jurisdiction where the loss or theft occurred; or
- (2) the law enforcement agency that has jurisdiction over the address listed on the registration;

that the original license plate has been lost or stolen.

(c) A law enforcement agency to whom a loss or theft is reported shall complete and present to the person reporting the loss or theft a form provided by the bureau indicating that the loss or theft has been reported.

(d) The person must present the form described under subsection (c) to the bureau before a **duplicate or** replacement license plate may be obtained.

(e) The bureau shall charge a fee for a **duplicate or** replacement license plate as set forth in IC 9-29-5-17.

(f) A **duplicate or** replacement license plate must be displayed in the same manner as the original license plate was displayed.

SECTION 37. IC 9-18-6-2.1 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A **NEW SECTION** TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: **Sec. 2.1. (a) Except as provided in subsection (b), if a certificate of registration:**

- (1) is lost or stolen;**
- (2) is damaged as to not be legible;**

(3) is destroyed; or

(4) requires changes to the information included on the certificate;

the person to whom the certificate is issued may obtain from the bureau a duplicate, an amended, or a replacement certificate by filing with the bureau an application on a form provided by the bureau duly sworn to as provided in IC 9-18-2.

(b) If a certificate of registration is lost or stolen, the bureau may not issue a duplicate or replacement certificate of registration until the person to whom the lost or stolen certificate was issued has first notified:

- (1) the Indiana law enforcement agency that has jurisdiction where the loss or theft occurred; or**
- (2) the law enforcement agency that has jurisdiction over the address listed on the registration;**

that the original certificate of registration has been lost or stolen.

(c) A law enforcement agency to which a loss or theft is reported shall complete and present to the person reporting the loss or theft a form provided by the bureau indicating that the loss or theft has been reported.

(d) The person must present the form described under subsection (c) to the bureau before a duplicate or replacement certificate of registration may be obtained.

(e) The bureau shall charge a fee for a duplicate, an amended, or a replacement certificate of registration as set forth in IC 9-29-5-17.1.

(f) A duplicate, an amended, or a replacement certificate of registration must be carried in the manner required by IC 9-18-2-21.

SECTION 38. IC 9-18-6-4 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 4. (a) If the ownership of a vehicle registered under this article is transferred, except a transfer from a manufacturer or dealer:

- (1) the registration of the vehicle expires; and
- (2) the person transferring the vehicle shall remove the license plates and certificate of registration from the vehicle.

(b) A person who transfers to another person the ownership of a registered vehicle owned by the person, upon the filing of an application for the transfer of the registration and the payment of a fee under IC 9-29-5-23, may have another vehicle registered in the person's name either individually or jointly with another for the remainder of the registration year if the vehicle to which the registration **is and license plate are** transferred is:

- (1) of the same type; and
- (2) in the same fee class;

as the vehicle for which the registration ~~was and license plate were~~ originally issued.

(c) If a vehicle to which the registration **is and license plate are** transferred is in a ~~higher~~ **different** fee class than the vehicle for which the registration ~~was and license plate were~~ originally issued, the person applying for the transfer shall pay ~~in addition to~~ the transfer fee **under IC 9-29-5-23(b). If the vehicle to which the registration and license plate are transferred is in a higher fee class than the vehicle for which the registration and license plate were originally issued, the person shall also**

pay the difference between the fee paid for the registration of the vehicle to which the registration is transferred.

(d) If a person who owns a vehicle wants to change the ownership of the vehicle by the addition of another person as owner, the person shall be issued a certificate of registration with the name of the other person included after the person who owns the vehicle has complied with IC 9-17.

(e) If at least one (1) person who is a joint owner transfers the person's ownership interest in a vehicle to at least one (1) remaining joint owner, the certification of registration shall be issued to the remaining joint owner or owners if the transferring owner or owners relinquish any interest in the use of the registration.

(f) If a person who owns a vehicle wants to display on the vehicle a license plate that is different from the license plate that was issued upon registration of the vehicle, the person shall:

- (1) apply to the bureau on a form prescribed by the bureau;**
- (2) pay the fee under IC 9-29-5-23(c); and**
- (3) comply with any other requirements, including payment of fees under IC 9-29, associated with the license plate.**

SECTION 39. IC 9-18-15-10, AS AMENDED BY P.L.262-2013, SECTION 79, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 10. (a) In addition to the applicable excise tax imposed under IC 6-6-5, the regular registration fees, and any additional fee required to receive a special recognition license plate described in section 1(b) of this chapter, a person applying for or renewing the registration of a personalized license plate shall pay the personalized license plate fee under IC 9-29-5-32.5 upon an original application or registration renewal, as provided in this chapter.

(b) The bureau shall collect the personalized license plate fee at the time of application or registration renewal for the personalized license plate.

(c) Upon the payment of the required fee and service charges for an original application or renewal of a personalized license plate, the bureau shall issue a receipt.

~~(d) The bureau shall collect the service charge prescribed under IC 9-29 for each initial or renewal application for a personalized license plate as a reservation and special processing fee.~~

SECTION 40. IC 9-18-15-13.5 IS REPEALED [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]. ~~Sec. 13.5. The bureau shall:~~

- ~~(1) deduct thirty-seven dollars (\$37) of the fee collected for an initial or a renewal application for a personalized license plate; and~~
- ~~(2) deposit:~~
 - ~~(A) seven dollars (\$7) of the fee described in subdivision (1) in the motor vehicle highway account established under IC 8-14-1; and~~
 - ~~(B) thirty dollars (\$30) of the fee described in subdivision (1) as a service charge into the state license branch fund established by IC 9-29-14-1.~~

SECTION 41. IC 9-18-17-5 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A NEW SECTION TO READ AS FOLLOWS

[EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: **Sec. 5. A vehicle for a which a license plate is issued under section 1 of this chapter is exempt from the following fees:**

- (1) The applicable annual registration fee for the vehicle under IC 9-29-5.**
- (2) The annual supplemental fee under IC 9-29-5-38(a).**
- (3) A special group recognition license plate fee under IC 9-18-25-17.5 or IC 9-18-25-17.7.**

However, the vehicle is subject to a service charge under IC 9-29-5-38(c).

SECTION 42. IC 9-18-19-1, AS AMENDED BY P.L.262-2013, SECTION 82, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 1. (a) The bureau shall design a license plate that will designate a vehicle as being registered to a person who has received a Purple Heart decoration that is awarded to a person who suffers an injury while serving as a member of the armed forces of the United States.

(b) Upon proper application, the bureau may modify a license plate designed under subsection (a) to designate a vehicle as being registered to a person who is:

- (1) described in subsection (a); and**
- (2) eligible to be issued:**
 - (A) a placard under IC 9-14-5; or**
 - (B) a person with a disability registration plate under IC 9-18-22.**

~~(b)~~ **(c) The bureau may issue a license plate designed under subsection (a) or modified under subsection (b) to the following types of vehicles:**

- (1) A passenger motor vehicle.**
- (2) A truck with a declared gross weight of at least seven thousand (7,000) pounds but less than eleven thousand (11,000) pounds.**
- (3) A recreational vehicle.**
- (4) A motorcycle.**

SECTION 43. IC 9-18-19-4 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A NEW SECTION TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: **Sec. 4. (a) A person who knowingly and falsely professes to have the qualifications to obtain a license plate under section 1(b) of this chapter commits a Class C misdemeanor.**

(b) A person who owns a motor vehicle bearing a license plate issued under section 1(b) of this chapter when the person knows that the person is not entitled to a license plate issued under section 1(b) of this chapter commits a Class C misdemeanor.

SECTION 44. IC 9-18-24-3 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 3. The bureau may adopt rules under IC 4-22-2 to establish the following:

- (1) The term of a civic event license plate.**
- (2) The qualifications of a person applying for a civic event license plate.**
- (3) The conditions that apply to the use of a civic event license plate.**
- (4) The fee for a civic event license plate, which must be reasonably related to the cost to the bureau for the manufacture and distribution of the plate.**

SECTION 45. IC 9-18-25-17.5, AS AMENDED BY P.L.117-2006, SECTION 2, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 17.5. (a) This section applies to a special group if at least five thousand (5,000) of the special group's license plates are issued under this chapter during one (1) calendar year beginning after December 31, 2004.

(b) Notwithstanding section 2 of this chapter, the representatives of the special group may petition the bureau to design a distinctive license plate that identifies a vehicle as being registered to a person who is a member of the special group.

(c) The design of the special group license plate must include a basic design for the special group recognition license plate with consecutive numerals or letters, or both, to properly identify the vehicle.

(d) A special group license plate must be treated with special reflective material designed to increase the visibility and legibility of the special group license plate.

(e) Beginning with the calendar year following the year in which the representatives petition the bureau under subsection (b), the bureau shall issue the special group's license plate to a person who is eligible to register a vehicle under this title who:

(1) completes an application for the license plate; and

(2) pays the following fees:

(A) The appropriate fee under IC 9-29-5-38(a).

(B) An annual **special group recognition license plate** fee of twenty-five dollars (\$25).

(f) The annual fee referred to in subsection (e)(2)(B) shall be collected by the bureau and deposited in a trust fund for the special group established under subsection (g). However, the bureau shall retain two dollars (\$2) for each license plate issued until the cost of designing and issuing the special group license plate is recovered by the bureau.

(g) The treasurer of state shall establish a trust fund for each special group for which the bureau collects fees under this section.

(h) The treasurer of state shall invest the money in the fund not currently needed to meet the obligations of the fund in the same manner as other public funds are invested. Interest that accrues from these investments shall be deposited in the fund. Money in the fund is continuously appropriated for the purposes of this section. Money in the fund at the end of a state fiscal year does not revert to the state general fund.

(i) The commissioner shall administer the fund. Expenses of administering the fund shall be paid from money in the fund.

(j) On June 30 of each year, the commissioner shall distribute the money from the fund to the special group for which the bureau has collected fees under this section.

(k) The bureau may not disclose information that identifies the persons to whom special group license plates have been issued under this section.

SECTION 46. IC 9-18-25-17.7, AS AMENDED BY P.L.87-2010, SECTION 19, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 17.7. (a) Notwithstanding any other law, representatives of a special group that participates in the special group recognition plate program may request that the bureau collect an annual fee of twenty-five

dollars (\$25) **or less** on behalf of the special group.

(b) If a request is made under subsection (a), the bureau shall collect the following fees:

(1) The appropriate fee under IC 9-29-5-38(a).

(2) An annual fee of twenty-five dollars (\$25) **or less, as requested by the special group.**

(c) The annual fee referred to in subsection (b)(2) shall be collected by the bureau and deposited in a trust fund for the special group established under subsection (d).

(d) The treasurer of state shall establish a trust fund for each special group for which the bureau collects fees under this section.

(e) The treasurer of state shall invest the money in the fund not currently needed to meet the obligations of the fund in the same manner as other public funds are invested. Interest that accrues from these investments shall be deposited in the fund. Money in the fund is continuously appropriated for the purposes of this section. Money in the fund at the end of a state fiscal year does not revert to the state general fund.

(f) The commissioner shall administer the fund. Expenses of administering the fund shall be paid from money in the fund.

(g) Before June 30 of each year, the commissioner shall distribute the money from the fund to the special group for which the bureau has collected fees under this section.

(h) Subject to section 18 of this chapter, the bureau may not disclose information that identifies the persons to whom special group license plates have been issued under this section.

(i) If:

(1) representatives of a special group have collected an annual fee as set forth in subsection (a) from purchasers of the special group recognition license plates that was paid directly to the special group; and

(2) the representatives of the special group request the bureau to collect the annual fee on behalf of the special group as set forth in subsection (a);

representatives of the special group may request the bureau to change the method of collection of the annual fee for the following calendar year. The representatives of the special group must make a request under this subsection by July 1 of the year preceding the year for which the change has been requested. The group may request only one (1) change in the method of collection in a plate cycle.

(j) If:

(1) the bureau collects an annual fee as set forth in subsection (a) on behalf of a special group; and

(2) representatives of the special group request the bureau to cease collection of the annual fee as set forth in subsection (a) on behalf of the special group as the annual fee will be paid directly to the special group by purchasers of the special group recognition license plates;

representatives of the special group may request the bureau to change the method of collection of the annual fee for the following calendar year. The representatives of the special group must make a request under this subsection by July 1 of the year preceding the year for which the change has been requested. The group may request only one (1) change in the method of collection in a plate cycle.

SECTION 47. IC 9-18-29-6 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 6. (a) A corporation (as defined in IC 6-5.5-1-6), a municipal corporation (as defined in IC 36-1-2-10), a partnership (as defined in IC 6-3-1-19), or a sole proprietor that registers a vehicle under this title is eligible to receive an environmental license plate under this chapter.

(b) A corporation, partnership, or sole proprietor must comply with section 3 of this chapter to receive an environmental license plate.

(c) This subsection applies only to a license plate issued under IC 9-18-3-5(b). If an officer or employee of a municipal corporation requests an environmental license plate for a vehicle that is assigned to or customarily used by the officer or employee, the officer or employee is responsible for paying the annual fee for the environmental license plate under section 4(2) of this chapter, the annual supplemental fee under IC 9-29-5-38, and all annual registration fees under ~~IC 9-29-1-4, IC 9-29-3-17, IC 9-29-5-1, and IC 9-29-5-3.~~ **IC 9-29.**

(d) Notwithstanding subsection (c):

- (1) an environmental license plate that is issued under this section; and
- (2) all fees and taxes that have been paid to have the plate issued;

are considered issued to and paid by the corporation, municipal corporation, partnership, or sole proprietor that registered the vehicle for which the plate was issued, and the corporation, municipal corporation, partnership, or sole proprietor is entitled to retain possession of the plate.

SECTION 48. IC 9-18-30-6 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 6. (a) This section applies only to a license plate issued under IC 9-18-3-5(b).

(b) A municipal corporation (as defined in IC 36-1-2-10) that registers a vehicle under this title is eligible to receive a kids first trust license plate under this chapter.

(c) If an officer or employee of a municipal corporation requests a kids first trust license plate for a vehicle that is assigned to or customarily used by the officer or employee, the officer or employee is responsible for paying the annual fee for the kids first trust license plate under section 4(a)(2) of this chapter, the annual supplemental fee under IC 9-29-5-38, and all **applicable** annual registration fees under ~~IC 9-29-1-4, IC 9-29-3-17, IC 9-29-5-1, and IC 9-29-5-3.~~ **IC 9-29.**

(d) Notwithstanding subsection (c):

- (1) a kids first trust license plate that is issued under this section; and
- (2) all fees and taxes that have been paid to have the plate issued;

are considered issued to and paid by the municipal corporation that registered the vehicle for which the license plate was issued, and the municipal corporation is entitled to retain possession of the license plate.

SECTION 49. IC 9-19-10-1, AS AMENDED BY P.L.214-2007, SECTION 6, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 1. This chapter does not apply to an occupant of a motor vehicle who

meets any of the following conditions:

- (1) For medical reasons should not wear safety belts, provided the occupant has written documentation of the medical reasons from a physician.
- (2) Is a child required to be restrained by a child restraint system under IC 9-19-11.
- (3) Is traveling in a commercial or a United States Postal Service vehicle that makes frequent stops for the purpose of pickup or delivery of goods or services.
- (4) Is a rural carrier of the United States Postal Service and is operating a vehicle while serving a rural postal route.
- (5) Is a newspaper motor route carrier or newspaper bundle hauler who stops to make deliveries from a vehicle.
- (6) Is a driver examiner designated and appointed under IC 9-14-2-3 and is conducting an examination of an applicant for a permit or license under IC 9-24-10.
- (7) Is an occupant of a farm truck being used on a farm in connection with agricultural pursuits that are usual and normal to the farming operation, as set forth in ~~IC 9-29-5-13(b)(2).~~ **IC 9-21-21-1.**
- (8) Is an occupant of a motor vehicle participating in a parade.
- (9) Is an occupant of the living quarters area of a recreational vehicle.
- (10) Is an occupant of the treatment area of an ambulance (as defined in IC 16-18-2-13).
- (11) Is an occupant of the sleeping area of a tractor.
- (12) Is an occupant other than the operator of a vehicle described in IC 9-20-11-1(1).
- (13) Is an occupant other than the operator of a truck on a construction site.
- (14) Is a passenger other than the operator in a cab of a Class A recovery vehicle or a Class B recovery vehicle who is being transported in the cab because the motor vehicle of the passenger is being towed by the recovery vehicle.
- (15) Is an occupant other than the operator of a motor vehicle being used by a public utility in an emergency as set forth in IC 9-20-6-5.

SECTION 50. IC 9-21-21-3, AS AMENDED BY HEA 1219-2014, SECTION 7, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 3. Except as provided in section 4.3 of this chapter, if the owner of a farm truck, farm trailer, or farm semitrailer and tractor begins to operate the farm truck, farm trailer, or farm semitrailer and tractor or permits the farm truck, farm trailer, or farm semitrailer and tractor to be operated:

- (1) in the conduct of a commercial enterprise; or
- (2) for the transportation of farm products after the commodities have entered the channels of commerce during a registration year for which the **license applicable registration** fee under ~~IC 9-29-5-13~~ **IC 9-29-5** has been paid;

the owner shall pay the amount computed under IC 9-29-5-13.5(b) due for the remainder of the registration year for the license fee.

SECTION 51. IC 9-21-21-4.3, AS AMENDED BY HEA 1219-2014, SECTION 8, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 4.3. (a) Notwithstanding section 3 of this chapter, subsection (b), and IC 9-18-2-4, a farm truck, farm trailer, or farm semitrailer and tractor may be operated intrastate for the transportation of seasonal, perishable, fruit or vegetables to the first point of processing for not more than one (1) thirty (30) day period in a registration year established by IC 9-18-2-7. Before a vehicle may be operated as provided in this subsection, the owner shall pay to the bureau:

(1) the **applicable** license fee due under ~~IC 9-29-5-13(b); IC 9-29-5;~~ and

(2) eight and one-half percent (8.5%) of the **applicable** license fee paid under ~~IC 9-29-5-13(b); IC 9-29-5;~~ for the farm truck, farm trailer, or farm semitrailer and tractor.

(b) Notwithstanding section 3 of this chapter, subsection (a), and IC 9-18-2-4, a farm truck, farm trailer, or farm semitrailer and tractor may be operated intrastate for the transportation of tomatoes or silage to the first point of processing for a period of not more than one (1) seventy-one (71) day period in a registration year established by IC 9-18-2-7. Before a vehicle may be operated as provided in this subsection, the owner shall pay to the bureau:

(1) the **applicable** license fee due under ~~IC 9-29-5-13(b); IC 9-29-5;~~ and

(2) seventeen percent (17%) of the **applicable** license fee paid under ~~IC 9-29-5-13(b); IC 9-29-5;~~ for the farm truck, farm trailer, or farm semitrailer and tractor.

(c) The bureau shall adopt rules under IC 4-22-2 to authorize the operation of a farm truck, farm trailer, or farm semitrailer and tractor in the manner provided in this section.

SECTION 52. IC 9-24-11-5, AS AMENDED BY P.L.85-2013, SECTION 44, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 5. (a) Except as provided in subsection (h), a permit or license issued under this chapter must contain the following information:

- (1) The full legal name of the permittee or licensee.
- (2) The date of birth of the permittee or licensee.
- (3) The address of the principal residence of the permittee or licensee.
- (4) The hair color and eye color of the permittee or licensee.
- (5) The date of issue and expiration date of the permit or license.
- (6) The gender of the permittee or licensee.
- (7) The unique identifying number of the permit or license.
- (8) The weight of the permittee or licensee.
- (9) The height of the permittee or licensee.
- (10) A reproduction of the signature of the permittee or licensee.

(11) If the permittee or licensee is less than eighteen (18) years of age at the time of issuance, the dates on which the permittee or licensee will become:

- (A) eighteen (18) years of age; and
- (B) twenty-one (21) years of age.

(12) If the permittee or licensee is at least eighteen (18)

years of age but less than twenty-one (21) years of age at the time of issuance, the date on which the permittee or licensee will become twenty-one (21) years of age.

(13) Except as provided in subsections (b), ~~and (c), and (j),~~ a digital **color** photograph of the permittee or licensee.

(b) A motorcycle learner's permit issued under IC 9-24-8 does not require a digital photograph.

(c) The bureau may provide for the omission of a photograph or computerized image from any license or permit if there is good cause for the omission. However, a license issued without a digital photograph must include the language described in subsection (f).

(d) The information contained on the permit or license as required by subsection (a)(11) or (a)(12) for a permittee or licensee who is less than twenty-one (21) years of age at the time of issuance shall be printed prominently on the permit or license.

(e) This subsection applies to a permit or license issued after January 1, 2007. If the applicant for a permit or license submits information to the bureau concerning the applicant's medical condition, the bureau shall place an identifying symbol on the face of the permit or license to indicate that the applicant has a medical condition of note. The bureau shall include information on the permit or license that briefly describes the medical condition of the holder of the permit or license. The information must be printed in a manner that alerts a person reading the permit or license to the existence of the medical condition. The permittee or licensee is responsible for the accuracy of the information concerning the medical condition submitted under this subsection. The bureau shall inform an applicant that submission of information under this subsection is voluntary.

(f) Any license or permit issued by the state that does not require a digital photograph must include a statement that indicates that the license or permit may not be accepted by any federal agency for federal identification or any other federal purpose.

(g) A license or permit issued by the state to an individual who:

- (1) has a valid, unexpired nonimmigrant visa or has nonimmigrant visa status for entry in the United States;
- (2) has a pending application for asylum in the United States;
- (3) has a pending or approved application for temporary protected status in the United States;
- (4) has approved deferred action status; or
- (5) has a pending application for adjustment of status to that of an alien lawfully admitted for permanent residence in the United States or conditional permanent residence status in the United States;

must be clearly identified as a temporary license or permit. A temporary license or permit issued under this subsection may not be renewed without the presentation of valid documentary evidence proving that the licensee's or permittee's temporary status has been extended.

(h) The bureau may adopt rules under IC 4-22-2 to carry out this section.

(i) For purposes of subsection (a), an individual certified as a program participant in the address confidentiality program under

IC 5-26.5 is not required to provide the address of the individual's principal residence, but may provide an address designated by the office of the attorney general under IC 5-26.5 as the address of the individual's principal residence.

(j) Subsection (a)(13) does not apply to temporary paper credentials or paper extension credentials issued by the bureau.

SECTION 53. IC 9-24-18-11 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 11. (a) The commissioner may enter into a contract or an agreement authorizing a person to create and use a reproduction of a driver's license issued under this article.

(b) A person may not create or use a reproduction of a driver's license issued under this article unless the creation or use of the reproduction is expressly authorized in writing by the commissioner. The commissioner may impose under IC 4-21.5 a civil penalty upon a person who violates this subsection. The amount of a civil penalty imposed under this subsection:

- (1) shall be determined by the commissioner; and
- (2) may not exceed ten thousand dollars (\$10,000).

(c) Money paid to the bureau as:

- (1) compensation to the state under a contract or an agreement entered into under subsection (a); or
- (2) a civil penalty imposed under subsection (b);

shall be collected and deposited according to ~~IC 9-29-1-1~~. **in the motor vehicle highway account.**

SECTION 54. IC 9-29-1-1 IS REPEALED [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]. Sec. 1. Except as provided in sections 2 through 4 of this chapter, all money collected by the bureau under ~~IC 9-14-5, IC 9-18-2, IC 9-18-5, IC 9-18-6, IC 9-18-7, IC 9-18-9, IC 9-18-10, IC 9-18-11, IC 9-18-16, IC 9-24-3, IC 9-24-4, IC 9-24-5, IC 9-24-7, IC 9-24-8, IC 9-24-10, IC 9-24-11, IC 9-24-12, IC 9-24-13, and IC 9-24-14~~ shall be deposited daily with the treasurer of state and credited to the motor vehicle highway account established under ~~IC 8-14-1~~.

SECTION 55. IC 9-29-1-2 IS REPEALED [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]. Sec. 2. (a) Money from the increases in fees levied by the 1969 regular session of the general assembly in ~~IC 9-18-2, IC 9-18-5, IC 9-18-6, IC 9-18-7, IC 9-18-9, IC 9-18-10, IC 9-18-16, IC 9-24-3, IC 9-24-4, IC 9-24-5, IC 9-24-7, IC 9-24-8, IC 9-24-10, IC 9-24-11, IC 9-24-12, IC 9-24-13, IC 9-24-14, and IC 9-29-9-15 (IC 9-1-4 before its repeal on July 1, 1991)~~ shall be deposited daily with the treasurer of state and credited to the highway, road, and street fund established under ~~IC 8-14-2-2.1~~.

(b) For the purpose of providing adequate and sufficient funds for the crossroads 2000 fund established under ~~IC 8-14-10-9~~, and subject to subsection (c), after June 30, 1997, with the approval of the bureau of motor vehicles commission the bureau of motor vehicles may adopt rules under ~~IC 4-22-2~~ to increase, by an amount that is in addition to the fees specified by statute, the fees under the following:

- ~~IC 9-29-4-3~~
- ~~IC 9-29-5 (excluding fees under IC 9-29-5-44)~~
- ~~IC 9-29-9-1~~
- ~~IC 9-29-9-2~~
- ~~IC 9-29-9-3~~
- ~~IC 9-29-9-4~~

- ~~IC 9-29-9-5~~
- ~~IC 9-29-9-7~~
- ~~IC 9-29-9-8~~
- ~~IC 9-29-9-9~~
- ~~IC 9-29-9-11~~
- ~~IC 9-29-9-13~~
- ~~IC 9-29-9-14~~
- ~~IC 9-29-15-1~~
- ~~IC 9-29-15-2~~
- ~~IC 9-29-15-3~~
- ~~IC 9-29-15-4~~
- ~~IC 9-29-17-1~~
- ~~IC 9-29-17-2~~
- ~~IC 9-29-17-3~~
- ~~IC 9-29-17-4~~

The amount of fees increased under this section shall first be deposited into the crossroads 2000 fund established under ~~IC 8-14-10-9~~.

(c) The bureau's authority to adopt rules under subsection (b) is subject to the condition that a fee increase must be uniform throughout all license branches and at all partial service locations in Indiana.

(d) If a fee imposed by a statute listed in subsection (b) is eliminated, the amount of the fee increase set forth in a rule adopted under this section before July 1, 2007, with respect to the fee must be:

- (1) collected by the bureau notwithstanding the elimination of the underlying fee;
- (2) collected in addition to all other fees collected at the time of the underlying transaction; and
- (3) deposited in the crossroads 2000 fund established under ~~IC 8-14-10-9~~.

However, this subsection does not apply to a fee imposed under ~~IC 9-29-5-14, IC 9-29-5-14.5, IC 9-29-5-15, or IC 9-29-5-39~~, which were repealed by legislation enacted in 2013.

SECTION 56. IC 9-29-1-4, AS AMENDED BY P.L.259-2013, SECTION 27, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 4. (a) A public service fee of twenty-five cents (\$0.25) is imposed. The public service fee shall be collected in addition to all registration fees collected under ~~IC 9-18 (excluding fees under IC 9-18-2.5) and IC 9-32~~.

(b) Money collected under subsection (a) shall be deposited in (a) The state police building account is established. **The account consists of amounts deposited in the account under this article. The state police department shall administer the account.**

(b) Money in the account:

- (1) does not revert to the state general fund or the motor vehicle highway account under IC 8-14-1, except as provided under subsection (c); and
- (2) shall be expended for the following:
 - (A) The construction, maintenance, leasing, and equipping of state police facilities.
 - (B) Other projects provided for by law.

(c) At the end of each state fiscal year, the auditor of state shall transfer to the state general fund the balance in the state police building account that is in excess of appropriations made

for the construction, maintenance, leasing, or equipping of state police facilities and other projects provided for by law.

(d) Transfers under subsection (c) shall be made until one million five hundred thousand dollars (\$1,500,000) has been transferred to the state general fund.

SECTION 57. IC 9-29-1-5 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 5. **(a) The motor vehicle odometer fund is established. The fund consists of the following:**

(1) Amounts deposited in the fund under this article.

(2) Money deposited in the fund from any other source.

(b) All money in the motor vehicle odometer fund shall be allocated each July as follows:

(1) Forty percent (40%) is to be deposited in the motor vehicle highway account (IC 8-14-1).

(2) Thirty percent (30%) is to be appropriated to the bureau for use in enforcing odometer laws.

(3) Twenty percent (20%) is to be appropriated to the state police for use in enforcing odometer laws.

(4) Ten percent (10%) is to be appropriated to the attorney general for use in enforcing odometer laws.

SECTION 58. IC 9-29-1-6 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 6. If a person who holds a certificate of registration and a license plate under this title has:

(1) been charged by the bureau a fee higher than that required by law; and

(2) ~~has~~ paid the higher fee;

the person shall be refunded the amount of the overcharge by a warrant issued by the auditor of state drawn on the treasurer of state after the person presents a request for the refund of the overcharge on a form furnished by the bureau. **The bureau shall determine the manner of a refund under this section in consultation with the auditor of state.** The amount of the refund shall be charged to the motor vehicle highway account.

SECTION 59. IC 9-29-1-10 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A NEW SECTION TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 10. **The bureau may impose a service charge of one dollar and seventy cents (\$1.70) for each excise tax collection made under IC 6-6-5, IC 6-6-5.1, or IC 6-6-5.5. The service charge shall be deposited in the commission fund.**

SECTION 60. IC 9-29-1-11 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A NEW SECTION TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 11. **Money distributed to or deposited in the highway, road and street fund under this article shall be allocated as follows:**

(1) Fifty-five percent (55%) to the state highway fund as provided in IC 8-14-2-3.

(2) Forty-five percent (45%) to the local road and street account as provided in IC 8-14-2-4.

SECTION 61. IC 9-29-1-12 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A NEW SECTION TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 12. **With the approval of the commission, the bureau may adopt rules under IC 4-22-2 to do the following:**

(1) Increase or decrease any fee or charge imposed under this article.

(2) Impose a fee on any other license branch service for which a fee is not imposed under this article.

(3) Increase or decrease a fee imposed under subdivision (2).

(4) Designate the fund or account in which a:

(A) fee increase under subdivision (1) or (3); or

(B) new fee under subdivision (2);

shall be deposited.

SECTION 62. IC 9-29-2-1 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 1. (a) The fee to obtain:

(1) a certified copy of a record; or

(2) an electronic record;

of the bureau under IC 9-14-3-4 is four dollars (\$4) for each document. This fee is in addition to the uniform copying fee established under IC 5-14-3-8. **The fee shall be deposited in the motor vehicle highway account.**

(b) The fee imposed by this section does not apply to a law enforcement agency and an agency of government.

(c) The bureau shall give precedence to requests from law enforcement agencies and agencies of government for certified copies of records.

SECTION 63. IC 9-29-2-2, AS AMENDED BY P.L.198-2007, SECTION 5, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 2. (a) The fee to obtain information regarding vehicle titles under IC 9-14-3-5 is ~~(1)~~ four dollars (\$4) for each record requested, ~~in writing; and (2) a fee to be determined by the bureau not to exceed four dollars (\$4); in conformance with IC 5-14-3-8; for each record requested electronically through the computer gateway administered under IC 4-13.1-2-2(a)(5) by the office of technology;~~ plus any service fee charged by the office of technology established by IC 4-13.1-2-1.

(b) **Except as provided in subsection (c),** the fee to obtain information regarding a license, vehicle registration, or permit under IC 9-14-3-5 is four dollars (\$4) for ~~a each~~ record requested, ~~either: (1) in writing; or (2) electronically through the computer gateway administered under IC 4-13.1-2-2(a)(5) by the office of technology;~~ plus any service fee charged by the office of technology established by IC 4-13.1-2-1.

(c) **The fee to obtain a driver's license history under IC 9-14-3 is eight dollars (\$8) for each history requested, plus any service fee charged by the office of technology established by IC 4-13.1-2-1.**

~~(c) The~~ (d) A fee imposed by this section and paid to the bureau is in lieu of fees established under IC 5-14-3-8 and does not apply to a law enforcement agency or an agency of government.

(e) **A fee imposed by this section shall be deposited in the motor vehicle highway account.**

SECTION 64. IC 9-29-2-3.5 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A NEW SECTION TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 3.5. **The fee to obtain a driving record maintained under IC 9-14-3-7 is four dollars (\$4). The fee shall be deposited in the motor vehicle highway account.**

SECTION 65. IC 9-29-3 IS REPEALED [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]. (Fees Under IC 9-16).

SECTION 66. IC 9-29-4-1 IS REPEALED [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]. ~~Sec. 1. The fees imposed under this chapter are in addition to a service fee imposed under IC 9-29-3.~~

SECTION 67. IC 9-29-4-3 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 3. (a) The fee for a certificate of title is ~~five dollars (\$5); fifteen dollars (\$15).~~ Except as provided in subsection (b), the fee shall be distributed as follows:

- (1) Fifty cents (\$0.50) to the state motor vehicle technology fund.
- (2) One dollar (\$1) to the motor vehicle highway account.
- (3) Three dollars (\$3) to the highway, road and street fund.
- (4) Five dollars (\$5) to the crossroads 2000 fund.
- (5) For amounts collected before July 1, 2019 as follows:

(A) One dollar and twenty-five cents (\$1.25) to the integrated public safety communications fund.

(B) Four dollars and twenty-five cents (\$4.25) to the commission fund.

- (6) For amounts collected after June 30, 2019, five dollars and fifty cents (\$5.50) to the commission fund.

(b) This subsection applies to a dealer who titles a vehicle in the dealership's name for purposes of selling the vehicle or putting the vehicle in rental, leasing, or demonstrating service. The dealer shall pay the fee described in subsection (a). However, the fee shall be distributed as set forth in section 7 of this chapter.

SECTION 68. IC 9-29-4-3.5 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A NEW SECTION TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 3.5. The fee for a certificate of title issued under IC 9-17-6 for a manufactured home is fifteen dollars (\$15). The fee shall be distributed as follows:

- (1) Fifty cents (\$0.50) to the state motor vehicle technology fund.
- (2) One dollar (\$1) to the motor vehicle highway account.
- (3) Three dollars (\$3) to the highway road and street fund.
- (4) Five dollars (\$5) to the crossroads 2000 fund.
- (5) For amounts collected before July 1, 2019, as follows:

(A) One dollar and twenty-five cents (\$1.25) to the integrated public safety communications fund.

(B) Four dollars and twenty-five cents (\$4.25) to the commission fund.

- (6) For amounts collected after June 30, 2019, five dollars and fifty cents (\$5.50) to the commission fund.

SECTION 69. IC 9-29-4-4, AS AMENDED BY P.L.83-2008, SECTION 7, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 4. (a) ~~The fee for a delinquent title is ten dollars (\$10).~~ Except as provided in subsections (b); (c); (d); and (e); the bureau shall collect this fee For purposes of this section, and except as provided in subsection (e), a title is considered delinquent when a purchaser or transferee of a vehicle fails to apply for an original

certificate of title or a transfer of title, by assignment, for the vehicle within thirty-one (31) days after the vehicle is purchased or otherwise acquired.

(b) The fee for a delinquent title is twenty-one dollars and fifty cents (\$21.50). The fee shall be distributed as follows:

(1) Twenty-five cents (\$0.25) to the crossroads 2000 fund.

(2) Fifty cents (\$0.50) to the state motor vehicle technology fund.

(3) Three dollars (\$3) to the highway, road and street fund.

(4) Five dollars (\$5) to the motor vehicle highway account.

(5) For an application received before July 1, 2019, as follows:

(A) One dollar and fifty cents (\$1.50) to the integrated public safety communications fund.

(B) Eleven dollars and twenty-five cents (\$11.25) to the commission fund.

(6) For an application received after June 30, 2019, twelve dollars and seventy-five cents (\$12.75) to the commission fund.

This fee is in addition to all other fees imposed for the issuance of a certificate of title.

~~(b)~~ (c) A dealer who titles a vehicle in the dealership's name for purposes of putting the vehicle in rental, leasing, or demonstrating service is not required to pay a delinquent title fee under this section. ~~but shall pay the following for each title:~~

~~(1) The title fee under section 3 of this chapter.~~

~~(2) A service charge under IC 9-29-3.~~

~~(c)~~ A dealer who titles a vehicle in the dealership's name for the purpose of selling the vehicle shall pay the following:

~~(1) The title fee under section 3 of this chapter.~~

~~(2) A service charge under IC 9-29-3.~~

(d) IC 9-17-2-1.5 applies to the purchase or acquisition of an off-road vehicle that is less than five (5) model years old.

(e) An individual who acquires a vehicle by a conveyance subject to IC 9-17-3-9 is not required to pay a delinquent title fee under this section unless the individual fails to apply for a certificate of title within sixty (60) days after the vehicle is acquired.

SECTION 70. IC 9-29-4-5 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 5. The fee for a duplicate certificate of title is ~~three dollars (\$3); eight dollars (\$8).~~ The fee shall be distributed as follows:

(1) One dollar (\$1) to the motor vehicle highway account.

(2) One dollar (\$1) to the highway, road and street fund.

(3) Six dollars (\$6) to the commission fund.

SECTION 71. IC 9-29-4-5.5 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 5.5. The fee for an affidavit of transfer to real estate furnished by the bureau under IC 9-17-6-15.1 is ~~ten dollars (\$10); twenty dollars (\$20).~~ The fee shall be distributed as follows:

(1) Ten dollars (\$10) to the motor vehicle highway account.

(2) Ten dollars (\$10) to the commission fund.

SECTION 72. IC 9-29-4-7 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 7. (a) Except as provided in subsection (b), fees for titles collected or documents furnished under this chapter shall be paid into the state general fund for credit to the motor vehicle highway account.

(b) Fees from dealers for titles collected under this chapter shall be credited to the motor vehicle odometer fund and allocated under IC 9-29-1-5.

SECTION 73. IC 9-29-4-8 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A NEW SECTION TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 8. (a) The bureau may impose an additional fee of twenty-five dollars (\$25) if the bureau processes a motor vehicle title in a period of time that is substantially shorter than the normal processing period. The bureau shall deposit the fee in the commission fund.

(b) A fee imposed under this section is in addition to any other fee imposed under this chapter.

SECTION 74. IC 9-29-4-9 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A NEW SECTION TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 9. (a) The fee for a sale certificate for a vehicle described in IC 9-22-6-2 is fifteen dollars (\$15). The fee shall be distributed as follows:

- (1) Fifty cents (\$0.50) to the state motor vehicle technology fund.
- (2) Four dollars (\$4) to the motor vehicle highway account.
- (3) Five dollars (\$5) to the crossroads 2000 fund.
- (4) For amounts collected before July 1, 2019, as follows:

(A) One dollar and twenty-five cents (\$1.25) to the integrated public safety communications fund.

(B) Four dollars and twenty-five cents (\$4.25) to the commission fund.

- (5) For amounts collected after June 30, 2019, five dollars and fifty cents (\$5.50) to the commission fund.

(b) A fee under this section is in addition to any other fee imposed under this chapter.

SECTION 75. IC 9-29-5-0.5 IS REPEALED [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]. Sec. 0.5. (a) This section applies after December 31, 2008:

(b) In addition to the fees to be collected for the registration of a vehicle as set forth in:

(1) IC 9-29-5-1; and

(2) IC 9-29-5-2;

the bureau shall collect an additional fee of thirty cents (\$0.30) at the time of the registration. The fee collected under this subsection shall be deposited into the spinal cord and brain injury fund under IC 16-41-42.2-3.

(c) In addition to the fees to be collected for the registration of a truck greater than zero (0) pounds declared gross weight but equal to or less than ten thousand (10,000) pounds declared gross weight, as set forth in section 3 of this chapter, the bureau shall collect an additional fee of thirty cents (\$0.30) at the time of the registration. The fee collected under this subsection shall be deposited into the spinal cord and brain injury fund under IC 16-41-42.2-3.

SECTION 76. IC 9-29-5-1, AS AMENDED BY P.L.97-2008,

SECTION 2, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 1. The annual registration fee for to register a passenger motor vehicle is twelve dollars and thirty cents (\$12.30), including after December 31, 2008; the fee set forth in section 0.5(b) of this chapter: twenty-one dollars and thirty-five cents (\$21.35). The fee shall be distributed as follows:

(1) Twenty-five cents (\$0.25) to the state police building account.

(2) Thirty cents (\$0.30) to the spinal cord and brain injury fund.

(3) Fifty cents (\$0.50) to the state motor vehicle technology fund.

(4) Three dollars (\$3) to the crossroads 2000 fund.

(5) For a passenger motor vehicle registered before July 1, 2019, as follows:

(A) One dollar and twenty-five cents (\$1.25) to the integrated public safety communications fund.

(B) Five dollars (\$5) to the commission fund.

(6) For a passenger motor vehicle registered after June 30, 2019, six dollars and twenty-five cents (\$6.25) to the commission fund.

(7) Eleven dollars and five cents (\$11.05) to the motor vehicle highway account.

SECTION 77. IC 9-29-5-1.2 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A NEW SECTION TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 1.2. The fee for a duplicate certificate of registration issued under IC 9-18 is six dollars and twenty-five cents (\$6.25). The fee shall be distributed as follows:

(1) Twenty-five cents (\$0.25) to the state police building account.

(2) Fifty cents (\$0.50) to the state motor vehicle technology fund.

(3) For amounts collected before July 1, 2019, as follows:

(A) One dollar and twenty-five cents (\$1.25) to the integrated public safety communications fund.

(B) Four dollars and twenty-five cents (\$4.25) to the commission fund.

(4) For amounts collected after June 30, 2019, five dollars and fifty cents (\$5.50) to the commission fund.

SECTION 78. IC 9-29-5-2, AS AMENDED BY HEA 1343-2014, SECTION 75, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 2. The fee for the registration of to register a motorcycle or motor driven cycle is seventeen dollars and thirty cents (\$17.30). The revenue from this fee shall be allocated as follows: (1) Seven dollars (\$7) to the motorcycle operator safety education fund established by IC 9-27-7-7. (2) An amount prescribed as a license branch service charge under IC 9-29-3. (3) Thirty cents (\$0.30) to the spinal cord and brain injury fund under IC 16-41-42.2-3, as provided under section 0.5 of this chapter. (4) The balance to the state general fund for credit to the motor vehicle highway account: twenty-six dollars and thirty-five cents (\$26.35). The fee shall be distributed as follows:

(1) Twenty-five cents (\$0.25) to the state police building account.

- (2) Thirty cents (\$0.30) to the spinal cord and brain injury fund.
- (3) Fifty cents (\$0.50) to the state motor vehicle technology fund.
- (4) Three dollars (\$3) to the crossroads 2000 fund.
- (5) For a motorcycle or motor driven cycle registered before July 1, 2019, as follows:
 - (A) One dollar and fifty-five cents (\$1.55) to the integrated public safety communications fund.
 - (B) Five dollars (\$5) to the commission fund.
- (6) For a motorcycle or motor driven cycle registered after June 30, 2019, six dollars and fifty-five cents (\$6.55) to the commission fund.
- (7) Seven dollars (\$7) to the motorcycle operator safety education fund.
- (8) Eight dollars and seventy-five cents (\$8.75) to the motor vehicle highway account.

SECTION 79. IC 9-29-5-3 IS REPEALED [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]. Sec. 3: (a) Except as otherwise provided in this chapter, the annual registration fee for:

- (1) a truck subject to registration under IC 9-18; and
- (2) a tractor not used with a semitrailer, a traction engine, or other similar vehicle used for hauling purposes;

is as follows:

Declared Gross Weight (Pounds)		Fee
Greater than	Equal to or less than	
0	7,000	\$ 20
7,000	9,000	40
9,000	10,000	70
10,000	11,000	75
11,000	16,000	135
16,000	20,000	175
20,000	23,000	235
23,000	26,000	235
26,000	30,000	295
30,000	36,000	413
36,000	42,000	506
42,000	48,000	627
48,000	54,000	730
54,000	60,000	810
60,000	66,000	858
66,000		956

(b) In addition to the annual registration fee set forth in subsection (a); an additional registration fee of thirty cents (\$0.30) shall be collected after December 31, 2008; for a truck greater than zero (0) pounds declared gross weight but equal to or less than ten thousand (10,000) pounds declared gross weight:

SECTION 80. IC 9-29-5-3.1 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A NEW SECTION TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 3.1. (a) The fee to register a truck weighing ten thousand (10,000) pounds or less is as follows:

Declared Gross Weight (Pounds)		Fee (\$)
Greater than	Equal to or less than	
0	7,000	30.35
7,000	9,000	50.35
9,000	10,000	80.35

(b) A fee described in subsection (a) shall be distributed

as follows:

- (1) Twenty-five cents (\$0.25) to the state police building account.
- (2) Thirty cents (\$0.30) to the spinal cord and brain injury fund.
- (3) Fifty cents (\$0.50) to the state motor vehicle technology fund.
- (4) Four dollars and thirty cents (\$4.30) to the crossroads 2000 fund.
- (5) For a truck registered before July 1, 2019, as follows:
 - (A) One dollar and twenty-five cents (\$1.25) to the integrated public safety communications fund.
 - (B) Five dollars (\$5) to the commission fund.
- (6) For a truck registered after June 30, 2019, six dollars and twenty-five cents (\$6.25) to the commission fund.
- (7) For a truck with a declared gross weight equal to or less than seven thousand (7,000) pounds, three dollars and fifty cents (\$3.50) to the highway, road and street fund.
- (8) Any remaining portion of the applicable fee to the motor vehicle highway account.

SECTION 81. IC 9-29-5-3.2 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A NEW SECTION TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 3.2. (a) The fee to register a truck weighing more than ten thousand (10,000) pounds is as follows:

Declared Gross Weight (Pounds)		Fee (\$)	
Greater than	Equal to or less than	if registered before August 1	if registered after July 31
10,000	11,000	84.75	84.75
11,000	16,000	144.75	75.25
16,000	20,000	184.75	95.25
20,000	23,000	244.75	125.25
23,000	26,000	244.75	125.25
26,000	30,000	304.75	155.25
30,000	36,000	422.75	214.25
36,000	42,000	515.75	260.75
42,000	48,000	636.75	321.75
48,000	54,000	739.75	372.75
54,000	60,000	819.75	412.75
60,000	66,000	867.75	436.75
66,000		965.75	485.75

(b) A fee described in subsection (a) shall be distributed as follows:

- (1) Twenty-five cents (\$0.25) to the state police building account.
- (2) Fifty cents (\$0.50) to the state motor vehicle technology fund.
- (3) Four dollars (\$4) to the crossroads 2000 fund.
- (4) For a truck registered before July 1, 2019, as follows:
 - (A) One dollar and twenty-five cents (\$1.25) to the integrated public safety communications fund.
 - (B) Five dollars (\$5) to the commission fund.
- (5) For a truck registered after June 30, 2019, six

dollars and twenty-five cents (\$6.25) to the commission fund.

(6) To the highway, road and street fund as follows:

Declared Gross Weight (Pounds)

Greater than Equal to or less than Distribution Distribution if registered if registered before August 1 after July 31

11,000	16,000	19.5	9.75
16,000	20,000	49.50	24.75
20,000	23,000	0	0
23,000	26,000	44.50	22.25
26,000	30,000	64.50	32.25
30,000	36,000	24.50	12.25
36,000	42,000	74.50	37.25
42,000	48,000	124.50	62.25
48,000	54,000	174.50	87.25
54,000	60,000	199.50	99.75
60,000	66,000	224.50	112.25
66,000		249.50	124.75

A distribution to the highway, road and street fund under this subdivision shall be credited to the state highway fund as provided in IC 8-14-2-3 and to the local road and street account as provided in IC 8-14-2-4.

(7) Any remaining portion of the applicable fee to the motor vehicle highway account.

SECTION 82. IC 9-29-5-3.3 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A NEW SECTION TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 3.3. The fee for a tractor not for use with a semitrailer, a traction engine, or other similar vehicle used for hauling purposes is the fee under section 3.1 or 3.2 of this chapter for a truck with the same declared gross weight.

SECTION 83. IC 9-29-5-4 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 4. Except as otherwise provided in this chapter, the annual registration (a) The fee for to register a trailer used with a motor vehicle is as follows: based on the declared gross weight of the trailer:

Declared Gross Weight (Pounds)

Greater than	Equal to or less than	Fee
0	3,000	\$ 7
3,000	5,000	16
5,000	7,000	22
7,000	9,000	27
9,000	12,000	70
12,000	16,000	110
16,000	22,000	170
22,000		230

Declared Gross Weight (Pounds)

Greater than	Equal to or less than	Fee (\$)	Fee (\$)
		if registered	if registered
		before August 1	after July 31
0	3,000	16.75	11.25
3,000	5,000	25.75	15.75
5,000	7,000	31.75	18.75
7,000	9,000	36.75	21.25

9,000	12,000	79.75	42.75
12,000	16,000	119.75	62.75
16,000	22,000	179.75	92.75
22,000		239.75	122.75

(b) A fee described in subsection (a) shall be distributed as follows:

(1) Twenty-five cents (\$0.25) to the state police building account.

(2) Fifty cents (\$0.50) to the state motor vehicle technology fund.

(3) For a trailer registered before July 1, 2019, as follows:

(A) One dollar and twenty-five cents (\$1.25) to the integrated public safety communications fund.

(B) Five dollars (\$5) to the commission fund.

(4) For a trailer registered after June 30, 2019, six dollars and twenty-five cents (\$6.25) to the commission fund.

(5) To the crossroads 2000 fund as follows:

(A) For a trailer registered before August 1 of a year, four dollars (\$4).

(B) For a trailer registered after July 31 of a year, two dollars (\$2).

(6) To the highway, road and street fund as follows:

Declared Gross Weight Distribution

Greater than Equal to or less than Distribution Distribution if registered if registered before August 1 after July 31

0	3,000	\$1.50	\$1.50
3,000	5,000	3.50	1.75
5,000	7,000	4.50	2.25
7,000	9,000	0	0
9,000	12,000	18.50	9.25
12,000	16,000	24.50	12.25
16,000	22,000	44.50	22.25
22,000		59.50	19.75

(7) Any remaining amount to the motor vehicle highway account.

SECTION 84. IC 9-29-5-5 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 5. Except as otherwise provided in this chapter, the annual registration (a) The fee for to register a tractor used with a semitrailer is as follows: based on the declared gross weight of the tractor semitrailer combination:

Declared Gross Weight (Pounds)

Greater than	Equal to or less than	Fee
0	20,000	\$ 170
20,000	26,000	310
26,000	30,000	390
30,000	36,000	495
36,000	42,000	545
42,000	48,000	660
48,000	54,000	715
54,000	60,000	800
60,000	66,000	865
66,000	72,000	975
72,000	74,000	1,050
74,000	76,000	1,165

76,000..... 78,000..... 1,240
 78,000..... 1,350

Declared Gross Weight (Pounds)		Fee (\$)	Fee (\$)
Greater than	Equal to or less than	if registered before August 1	if registered after July 31
0	20,000	179.75	92.75
20,000	26,000	319.75	162.75
26,000	30,000	399.75	202.75
30,000	36,000	504.75	255.25
36,000	42,000	554.75	280.25
42,000	48,000	669.75	337.75
48,000	54,000	724.75	365.25
54,000	60,000	809.75	407.75
60,000	66,000	874.75	440.25
66,000	72,000	984.75	495.25
72,000	74,000	1,059.75	532.75
74,000	76,000	1,174.75	590.25
76,000	78,000	1,249.75	627.75
78,000		1,359.75	682.75

(b) A fee described in subsection (a) shall be distributed as follows:

- (1) Twenty-five cents (\$0.25) to the state police building account.
- (2) Fifty cents (\$0.50) to the state motor vehicle technology fund.
- (3) For a tractor registered before July 1, 2019, as follows:
 - (A) One dollar and twenty-five cents (\$1.25) to the integrated public safety communications fund.
 - (B) Five dollars (\$5) to the commission fund.
- (4) For a tractor registered after June 30, 2019, six dollars and twenty-five cents (\$6.25) to the commission fund.
- (5) To the crossroads 2000 fund as follows:
 - (A) For a tractor registered before August 1 of a year, four dollars (\$4).
 - (B) For a tractor registered after July 31 of a year, two dollars (\$2).
- (6) To the highway, road and street fund as follows:

Declared Gross Weight		Distribution	Distribution
Greater than	Equal to or less than	if registered before August 1	if registered after July 31
0	20,000	\$24.50	\$17.25
20,000	26,000	44.50	22.25
26,000	30,000	64.50	32.25
30,000	36,000	84.50	42.25
36,000	42,000	94.50	47.25
42,000	48,000	122.50	61.25
48,000	54,000	102.00	51.00
54,000	60,000	109.50	54.75
60,000	66,000	134.50	67.25
66,000	72,000	184.50	95.25

(7) Any remaining amount to the motor vehicle highway account.

SECTION 85. IC 9-29-5-6, AS AMENDED BY P.L.63-2007, SECTION 5, IS AMENDED TO READ AS

FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 6. (a) The registration fee for each to register a semitrailer to be used with a tractor licensed under this section for a calendar year is as follows:

- (1) Thirty dollars (\$30) for a one (1) year registration.
- (2) Sixty dollars (\$60) for a five (5) year registration. However, the five (5) year registration fee shall be reduced by twelve dollars (\$12) for each full year after the initial year of the five (5) year period provided in IC 9-18. However, the reduced fee may not be less than the registration fee for a one (1) year registration.
- (3) Sixty-five dollars (\$65) for a permanent registration.
- (1) For a semitrailer registered before August 1 of a year, forty-one dollars and seventy-five cents (\$41.75).
- (2) For a semitrailer registered after July 31 of a year, twenty-three dollars and seventy-five cents (\$23.75).

(b) A fee described in subsection (a) shall be distributed as follows:

- (1) Twenty-five cents (\$0.25) to the state police building account.
- (2) Fifty cents (\$0.50) to the state motor vehicle technology fund.
- (3) For a semitrailer registered before July 1, 2019, as follows:
 - (A) One dollar and twenty-five cents (\$1.25) to the integrated public safety communications fund.
 - (B) Five dollars (\$5) to the commission fund.
- (4) For a semitrailer registered after June 30, 2019, six dollars and twenty-five cents (\$6.25) to the commission fund.
- (5) To the crossroads 2000 fund as follows:
 - (A) For a semitrailer registered before August 1 of a year, six dollars (\$6).
 - (B) For a semitrailer registered after July 31 of a year, three dollars (\$3).
- (6) Any remaining amount to the motor vehicle highway account.

SECTION 86. IC 9-29-5-6.1 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A NEW SECTION TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 6.1. (a) The fee to register a semitrailer on a five (5) year cycle is as follows:

Year of cycle	Amount
1	\$77.75
2	63.75
3	49.75
4	41.75
5	41.75

(b) A fee under subsection (a) shall be distributed as follows:

- (1) Twenty-five cents (\$0.25) to the state police building account.
- (2) Fifty cents (\$0.50) to the state motor vehicle technology fund.
- (3) For a semitrailer registered before July 1, 2019, as follows:
 - (A) One dollar and twenty-five cents (\$1.25) to the integrated public safety communications fund.
 - (B) Five dollars (\$5) to the commission fund.

(4) For a semitrailer registered after June 30, 2019, six dollars and twenty-five cents (\$6.25) to the commission fund.

(5) To the crossroads 2000 fund as follows:

(A) For a semitrailer registered in year one (1), two (2), or three (3) of a cycle, five dollars (\$5).

(B) For a semitrailer registered in year four (4) of a cycle, ten dollars (\$10).

(C) For a semitrailer registered in year five (5) of a cycle, twelve dollars (\$12).

(6) Any remaining amount to the motor vehicle highway account.

SECTION 87. IC 9-29-5-6.2 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A NEW SECTION TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 6.2. (a) The fee for a permanent registration of a semitrailer is eighty-two dollars and seventy-five cents (\$82.75). The fee shall be distributed as follows:

(1) Twenty-five cents (\$0.25) to the state police building account.

(2) Fifty cents (\$0.50) to the state motor vehicle technology fund.

(3) For a semitrailer registered before July 1, 2019, as follows:

(A) One dollar and twenty-five cents (\$1.25) to the integrated public safety communications fund.

(B) Five dollars (\$5) to the commission fund.

(4) For a semitrailer registered after June 30, 2019, six dollars and twenty-five cents (\$6.25) to the commission fund.

(5) Twelve dollars (\$12) to the crossroads 2000 fund.

(6) Sixty-three dollars and seventy-five cents (\$63.75) to the motor vehicle highway account.

(b) The fee to renew a permanent registration of a semitrailer is eight dollars and seventy-five cents (\$8.75). The fee shall be distributed as follows:

(1) Twenty-five cents (\$0.25) to the state police building account.

(2) Fifty cents (\$0.50) to the state motor vehicle technology fund.

(3) Three dollars (\$3) to the crossroads 2000 fund.

(4) Five dollars (\$5) to the commission fund.

SECTION 88. IC 9-29-5-7 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 7. (a) Except as provided in subsection (b), the annual registration fee for each to register an intercity bus or intracity bus is as follows:

Declared Gross Weight (Pounds)	Intercity Fee	Intracity Fee
Greater than 0 or less than 11,000	\$ 50.	\$ 10
11,000 to 16,000	100.	20
16,000 to 20,000	125.	25
20,000 to 26,000	150.	30
26,000 to 30,000	220.	44
30,000 to 36,000	294.	59
36,000 to 42,000	382.	72

42,000	48,000	445.	89
48,000	54,000	540.	108
54,000	60,000	600.	120
60,000		660.	132

(b) An owner or a lessee of a fleet of intercity buses may register the fleet under and pay the fees provided in IC 9-18- is as follows:

Declared Gross Weight	Fee (\$)	
	Greater than	Equal to or less than
0	11,000	59.75
11,000	16,000	109.75
16,000	20,000	134.75
20,000	26,000	159.75
26,000	30,000	229.75
30,000	36,000	303.75
36,000	42,000	391.75
42,000	48,000	454.75
48,000	54,000	549.75
54,000	60,000	609.75
60,000		669.75

(b) A fee described in subsection (a) shall be distributed as follows:

(1) Twenty-five cents (\$0.25) to the state police building account.

(2) Fifty cents (\$0.50) to the state motor vehicle technology fund.

(3) For an intercity bus registered before July 1, 2019, as follows:

(A) One dollar and twenty-five cents (\$1.25) to the integrated public safety communications fund.

(B) Five dollars (\$5) to the commission fund.

(4) For an intercity bus registered after June 30, 2019, six dollars and twenty-five cents (\$6.25) to the commission fund.

(5) To the crossroads 2000 fund as follows:

(A) For an intercity bus registered before August 1 of a year, four dollars (\$4).

(B) For an intercity bus registered after July 31 of a year, two dollars (\$2).

(6) Any remaining amount to the motor vehicle highway account.

SECTION 89. IC 9-29-5-7.5 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A NEW SECTION TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 7.5. (a) The fee to register an intracity bus is as follows:

Declared Gross Weight (Pounds)	Fee (\$)
Greater than 0	18.75
16,000	28.75
36,000	67.76

(b) A fee described in subsection (a) shall be distributed as follows:

(1) Twenty-five cents (\$0.25) to the state police building account.

(2) Fifty cents (\$0.50) to the state motor vehicle technology fund.

(3) For an intracity bus registered before July 1, 2019, as follows:

(A) One dollar and twenty-five cents (\$1.25) to the integrated public safety communications fund.

(B) Five dollars (\$5) to the commission fund.

(4) For an intracity bus registered after June 30, 2019, six dollars and twenty-five cents (\$6.25) to the commission fund.

(5) Four dollars (\$4) to the crossroads 2000 fund.

(6) Any remaining amount to the motor vehicle highway account.

SECTION 90. IC 9-29-5-8 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 8. (a) The annual registration fee for to register a school bus is twenty dollars (\$20): as follows:

(1) For a school bus registered before August 1 of a year, twenty-nine dollars and seventy-five cents (\$29.75).

(2) For a school bus registered after July 31 of a year, seventeen dollars and seventy-five cents (\$17.75).

(b) A fee described in subsection (a) shall be distributed as follows:

(1) Twenty-five cents (\$0.25) to the state police building account.

(2) Fifty cents (\$0.50) to the state motor vehicle technology fund.

(3) Four dollars (\$4) to the crossroads 2000 fund.

(4) For a school bus registered before July 1, 2019, as follows:

(A) One dollar and twenty-five cents (\$1.25) to the state police building account.

(B) Five dollars and seventy-five cents (\$5.75) to the commission fund.

(5) For a school bus registered after June 30, 2019, seven dollars (\$7) to the commission fund.

(6) Six dollars (\$6) to the highway, road and street fund.

(7) Any remaining amount to the motor vehicle highway account.

SECTION 91. IC 9-29-5-9 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 9. (a) As used in this section, "church bus" means a bus that is:

(1) owned and operated by a religious or nonprofit youth organization; and

(2) used to transport persons to religious services or used for the benefit of the members of the religious or nonprofit youth organization.

(b) The annual registration fee for to register a church bus is twenty dollars (\$20): as follows:

(1) For a church bus registered before August 1 of a year, twenty-nine dollars and seventy-five cents (\$29.75).

(2) For a church bus registered after July 31 of a year, seventeen dollars and seventy-five cents (\$17.75).

(c) A fee described in subsection (b) shall be distributed as follows:

(1) Twenty-five cents (\$0.25) to the state police building account.

(2) Fifty cents (\$0.50) to the state motor vehicle technology fund.

(3) To the crossroads 2000 fund as follows:

(A) For a church bus registered before August 1 of a year, four dollars (\$4).

(B) For a church bus registered after July 31 of a year, two dollars (\$2).

(4) For a church bus registered before July 1, 2019:

(A) One dollar and twenty-five cents (\$1.25) to the integrated public safety communications fund.

(B) Five dollars (\$5) to the commission fund.

(5) For a church bus registered after June 30, 2019, six dollars and twenty-five cents (\$6.25) to the commission fund.

(6) Any remaining amount to the motor vehicle highway account.

SECTION 92. IC 9-29-5-10 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 10. (a) As used in this section, "other bus" means a bus that is not a church bus, an intercity bus, an intracity bus, or a school bus.

(b) The annual registration fee for to register any other bus is thirty dollars (\$30): as follows:

(1) For an other bus registered before August 1 of a year, thirty-nine dollars and seventy-five cents (\$39.75).

(2) For an other bus registered after July 31 of a year, twenty-two dollars and seventy-five cents (\$22.75).

(c) A fee described in subsection (b) shall be distributed as follows:

(1) Twenty-five cents (\$0.25) to the state police building account.

(2) Fifty cents (\$0.50) to the state motor vehicle technology fund.

(3) Four dollars (\$4) to the crossroads 2000 fund.

(4) For a bus registered before July 1, 2019, as follows:

(A) One dollar and twenty-five cents (\$1.25) to the integrated public safety communications fund.

(B) Five dollars (\$5) to the commission fund.

(5) For a bus registered after June 30, 2019, six dollars and twenty-five cents (\$6.25) to the commission fund.

(6) Any remaining amount to the motor vehicle highway account.

SECTION 93. IC 9-29-5-11, AS AMENDED BY P.L.125-2012, SECTION 314, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 11. (a) This section does not apply to a vehicle or person exempted from registration under IC 9-18.

(b) The registration fee for a piece of special machinery is five dollars (\$5): sixteen dollars and seventy-five cents (\$16.75). The fee shall be distributed as follows:

(1) Twenty-five cents (\$0.25) to the state police building account.

(2) Fifty cents (\$0.50) to the state motor vehicle technology fund.

(3) For a piece of special machinery registered before July 1, 2019, as follows:

(A) One dollar and twenty-five cents (\$1.25) to the integrated public safety communications fund.

(B) Three dollars and seventy-five cents (\$3.75) to

the commission fund.

(4) For a piece of special machinery registered after June 30, 2019, five dollars (\$5) to the commission fund.

(5) Five dollars (\$5) to the motor vehicle highway account.

(6) Six dollars (\$6) to the crossroads 2000 fund.

The motor vehicle piece of special machinery is exempt from other fees provided under IC 9-18 or this article.

(e) The owner of a vehicle listed in this section is not entitled to a reduction in the five dollar (\$5) registration fee because the license is granted at a time that the license period is less than a year.

SECTION 94. IC 9-29-5-13, AS AMENDED BY HEA 1219-2014, SECTION 9, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 13. (a) This section does not apply to a vehicle or person exempt from registration under IC 9-18.

(b) The registration fee for to register a farm truck farm trailer, or farm semitrailer and tractor: (1) having a declared gross weight of at least eleven thousand (11,000) pounds; and (2) used by the owner or guest occupant in connection with agricultural pursuits usual and normal to the user's farming operation is fifty percent (50%) of the amount listed in this chapter for a truck, trailer, or semitrailer and tractor of the same declared gross weight: as follows:

Greater than	Declared Gross Weight		Fee (\$)	Fee (\$)
	Equal to or less than	if registered before August 1		
0	11,000	45.25	45.25	
11,000	16,000	75.25	40.50	
16,000	20,000	95.25	50.50	
20,000	23,000	125.25	65.50	
23,000	26,000	125.25	65.50	
26,000	30,000	155.25	80.50	
30,000	36,000	214.25	110.00	
36,000	42,000	260.75	133.25	
42,000	48,000	321.25	163.50	
48,000	54,000	372.75	189.25	
54,000	60,000	412.75	209.25	
60,000	66,000	436.75	221.25	
66,000		485.75	245.75	

(c) A fee described in subsection (b) shall be distributed as follows:

(1) Twenty-five cents (\$0.25) to the state police building account.

(2) Fifty cents (\$0.50) to the state motor vehicle technology fund.

(3) For a farm truck registered before July 1, 2019, as follows:

(A) One dollar and twenty-five cents (\$1.25) to the integrated public safety communications fund.

(B) Five dollars (\$5) to the commission fund.

(4) For a farm truck registered after June 30, 2019, six dollars and twenty-five cents (\$6.25) to the commission fund.

(5) Two dollars (\$2) to the crossroads 2000 fund.

(6) Any remaining amount to the motor vehicle

highway account.

SECTION 95. IC 9-29-5-13.1 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A NEW SECTION TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 13.1. (a) The fee to register a farm trailer is as follows:

Greater than	Declared Gross Weight		Fee (\$)	Fee (\$)
	Equal to or less than	if registered before August 1		
0	12,000	42.75	24.25	
12,000	16,000	62.75	34.25	
16,000	22,000	92.75	49.25	
22,000		122.75	64.25	

(b) A fee described in subsection (a) shall be distributed as follows:

(1) Twenty-five cents (\$0.25) to the state police building account.

(2) Fifty cents (\$0.50) to the state motor vehicle technology fund.

(3) To the crossroads 2000 fund as follows:

(A) For a farm trailer registered before August 1 of a year, two dollars (\$2).

(B) For a farm trailer registered after July 31 of a year, one dollar (\$1).

(4) For a farm trailer registered before July 1, 2019, as follows:

(A) One dollar and twenty-five cents (\$1.25) to the integrated public safety communications fund.

(B) Five dollars (\$5) to the commission fund.

(5) For a farm trailer registered after June 30, 2019, six dollars and twenty-five cents (\$6.25) to the commission fund.

(6) Any remaining amount to the motor vehicle highway account.

SECTION 96. IC 9-29-5-13.2 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A NEW SECTION TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 13.2. (a) The fee to register a farm semitrailer for a calendar year is as follows:

(1) For a farm semitrailer registered before August 1 of a year, twenty-three dollars and seventy-five cents (\$23.75).

(2) For a farm semitrailer registered after July 31 of a year, fourteen dollars and seventy-five cents (\$14.75).

(b) A fee described in subsection (a) shall be distributed as follows:

(1) Twenty-five cents (\$0.25) to the state police building account.

(2) Fifty cents (\$0.50) to the state motor vehicle technology fund.

(3) To the crossroads 2000 fund as follows:

(A) For a farm semitrailer registered before July 1 of a year, three dollars (\$3).

(B) For a farm semitrailer registered after June 30 of a year, one dollar and fifty cents (\$1.50).

(4) For a farm semitrailer registered before July 1, 2019, as follows:

(A) One dollar and twenty-five cents (\$1.25) to the integrated public safety communications fund.

(B) Five dollars (\$5) to the commission fund.

(5) For a farm semitrailer registered after June 30, 2019, six dollars and twenty-five cents (\$6.25) to the commission fund.

(6) Any remaining amount to the motor vehicle highway account.

(c) The fee to register a farm semitrailer on a five (5) year cycle is as follows:

Year of cycle	Amount
1	\$41.75
2	34.75
3	27.75
4	23.75
5	23.75

(d) A fee described in subsection (c) shall be distributed as follows:

(1) Twenty-five cents (\$0.25) to the state police building account.

(2) Fifty cents (\$0.50) to the state motor vehicle technology fund.

(3) For a farm semitrailer registered before July 1, 2019, as follows:

(A) One dollar and twenty-five cents (\$1.25) to the integrated public safety communications fund.

(B) Five dollars (\$5) to the commission fund.

(4) For a farm semitrailer registered after June 30, 2019, six dollars and twenty-five cents (\$6.25) to the commission fund.

(5) To the crossroads 2000 fund as follows:

(A) For a farm semitrailer registered in year one (1), year two (2), year three (3), or year four (4) of a cycle, five dollars (\$5).

(B) For a farm semitrailer registered in year five (5) of a cycle, six dollars (\$6).

(6) Any remaining amount to the motor vehicle highway account.

(e) The fee for a permanent registration of a farm semitrailer is forty-four dollars and twenty-five cents (\$44.25). The fee shall be distributed as follows:

(1) Twenty-five cents (\$0.25) to the state police building account.

(2) Fifty cents (\$0.50) to the state motor vehicle technology fund.

(3) For a farm semitrailer registered before July 1, 2019, as follows:

(A) One dollar and twenty-five cents (\$1.25) to the integrated public safety communications fund.

(B) Four dollars (\$4) to the commission fund.

(4) For a farm semitrailer registered after June 30, 2019, five dollars and twenty-five cents (\$5.25) to the commission fund.

(5) Six dollars (\$6) to the crossroads 2000 fund.

(6) Thirty-two dollars and twenty-five cents (\$32.25) to the motor vehicle highway account.

(f) The fee to renew a permanent registration of a farm semitrailer is eight dollars and seventy-five cents (\$8.75). The

fee shall be distributed as follows:

(1) Twenty-five cents (\$0.25) to the state police building account.

(2) Fifty cents (\$0.50) to the state motor vehicle technology fund.

(3) Three dollars (\$3) to the crossroads 2000 fund.

(4) Five dollars (\$5) to the commission fund.

SECTION 97. IC 9-29-5-13.4 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A NEW SECTION TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 13.4. (a)

The fee to register a farm semitractor is as follows:

Declared Gross Weight	Greater than	Equal to or less than	Fee (\$)	Fee (\$)
			if registered after June 30	if registered before July 1
0	20,000	20,000	92.75	49.25
20,000	26,000	26,000	162.75	84.25
26,000	30,000	30,000	202.75	104.25
30,000	36,000	36,000	255.25	130.50
36,000	42,000	42,000	280.25	143.00
42,000	48,000	48,000	337.75	171.75
48,000	54,000	54,000	365.25	185.50
54,000	60,000	60,000	407.75	206.75
60,000	66,000	66,000	440.25	223.00
66,000	72,000	72,000	495.25	250.50
72,000	74,000	74,000	532.75	269.25
74,000	76,000	76,000	590.25	298.00
76,000	78,000	78,000	627.75	316.75
78,000			682.75	344.25

(b) A fee described in subsection (a) shall be distributed as follows:

(1) Twenty-five cents (\$0.25) to the state police building account.

(2) Fifty cents (\$0.50) to the state motor vehicle technology fund.

(3) For a farm semitractor registered before July 1, 2019, as follows:

(A) One dollar and twenty-five cents (\$1.25) to the integrated public safety communications fund.

(B) Five dollars (\$5) to the commission fund.

(4) For a farm semitractor registered after June 30, 2019, six dollars and twenty-five cents (\$6.25) to the commission fund.

(5) To the crossroads 2000 fund as follows:

(A) For a farm semitractor registered before July 1 of a year, two dollars (\$2).

(B) For a farm semitractor registered after June 30 of a year, one dollar (\$1).

(6) Any remaining amount to the motor vehicle highway account.

SECTION 98. IC 9-29-5-13.5, AS AMENDED BY P.L.125-2012, SECTION 317, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 13.5. (a)

This section applies to a truck, trailer, or semitrailer and tractor for which a registration fee provided in section ~~13(b)~~ 13, 13.1, 13.2, or 13.4 of this chapter has been paid.

(b) Except as provided in subsections (d) and (e), if the owner of a truck, trailer, or semitrailer and tractor described in

subsection (a) begins to operate the truck, trailer, or semitrailer and tractor in the conduct of a commercial enterprise or for the transportation of farm products after the commodities have entered the channels of commerce during a registration year for which the registration fee under section ~~13(b)~~ **13, 13.1, 13.2, or 13.4** of this chapter has been paid, the owner shall pay the amount listed in this chapter for a truck, trailer, or semitrailer and tractor of the same declared gross weight reduced by a credit determined under subsection (c) to license the truck, trailer, or semitrailer and tractor.

(c) The credit provided in subsection (b) equals:

- (1) the registration fee paid under section ~~13(b)~~ **13, 13.1, 13.2, or 13.4** of this chapter; reduced by
- (2) eight and thirty-three hundredths percent (8.33%) for each full or partial calendar month that has elapsed in the registration year for which the registration fee has been paid.

The credit may not exceed ninety percent (90%) of the registration fee paid under section ~~13(b)~~ **13, 13.1, 13.2, or 13.4** of this chapter.

(d) Notwithstanding subsections (b) and (e) and IC 9-18-2-4, a truck, trailer, or semitrailer and tractor described in subsection (a) may be operated intrastate for the transportation of seasonal, perishable fruit or vegetables to the first point of processing for a period that consists of not more than a thirty (30) day period in a registration year as provided by IC 9-21-21-4.3(a). Before a vehicle may be operated as provided in this subsection, the owner shall pay to the bureau:

- (1) any registration fee due under section ~~13(b)~~ **13, 13.1, 13.2, or 13.4** of this chapter; and
- (2) eight and one-half percent (8.5%) of the registration fee paid under section ~~13(b)~~ **13, 13.1, 13.2, or 13.4** of this chapter.

(e) Notwithstanding subsections (b) and (d) and IC 9-18-2-4, a truck, trailer, or semitrailer and tractor described in subsection (a) may be operated intrastate for the transportation of tomatoes or silage to the first point of processing for a period that consists of not more than one (1) seventy-one (71) day period in a registration year as provided by IC 9-21-21-4.3(b). Before a vehicle may be operated as provided in this subsection, the owner shall pay to the bureau:

- (1) any registration fee due under section ~~13(b)~~ **13, 13.1, 13.2, or 13.4** of this chapter; and
- (2) seventeen percent (17%) of the registration fee paid under section ~~13(b)~~ **13, 13.1, 13.2, or 13.4** of this chapter.

SECTION 99. IC 9-29-5-16 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 16. (a) **The fee for one (1) set of license plates for each transport operator is one hundred thirty-nine dollars and twenty-five cents (\$139.25). The fee shall be distributed as follows:**

- (1) **Twenty-five cents (\$0.25) to the state police building account.**
- (2) **Five dollars (\$5) to the crossroads 2000 fund.**
- (3) **Nine dollars (\$9) to the commission fund.**
- (4) **Thirty dollars (\$30) to the highway, road and street fund.**
- (5) **Ninety-five dollars (\$95) to the motor vehicle**

highway account.

~~(a)~~ (b) **The fee for the first two (2) sets of license plates for each transport operator is one hundred twenty-five dollars (\$125); one hundred fifty-eight dollars and twenty-five cents (\$158.25). The fee shall be distributed as follows:**

- (1) **Twenty-five cents (\$0.25) to the state police building account.**
- (2) **Fifteen dollars (\$15) to the crossroads 2000 fund.**
- (3) **Eighteen dollars (\$18) to the commission fund.**
- (4) **Thirty dollars (\$30) to the highway, road and street fund.**
- (5) **Ninety-five dollars (\$95) to the motor vehicle highway account.**

~~(b)~~ (c) **The fee for each additional set of license plates for a transport operator is fifteen dollars (\$15); thirty-four dollars and twenty-five cents (\$34.25). The fee shall be distributed as follows:**

- (1) **Twenty-five cents (\$0.25) to the state police building account.**
- (2) **Nine dollars (\$9) to the commission fund.**
- (3) **Ten dollars (\$10) to the crossroads 2000 fund.**
- (4) **Fifteen dollars (\$15) to the motor vehicle highway account.**

SECTION 100. IC 9-29-5-17, AS AMENDED BY P.L.262-2013, SECTION 118, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 17. **The fee for each duplicate or replacement license plate or sticker is three dollars (\$3); ten dollars and twenty-five cents (\$10.25). The fee shall be distributed as follows:**

- (1) **Twenty-five cents (\$0.25) to the state police building account.**
- (2) **Fifty cents (\$0.50) to the state motor vehicle technology fund.**
- (3) **One dollar and seventy-five cents (\$1.75) to the motor vehicle highway account.**
- (4) **Three dollars (\$3) to the crossroads 2000 fund.**
- (5) **For a license plate or sticker issued before July 1, 2019, as follows:**

(A) **One dollar and twenty-five cents (\$1.25) to the integrated public safety communications fund.**

(B) **Three dollars and fifty cents (\$3.50) to the commission fund.**

- (6) **For a license plate or sticker issued after June 30, 2019, four dollars and seventy-five cents (\$4.75) to the commission fund.**

SECTION 101. IC 9-29-5-17.1 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A NEW SECTION TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 17.1. (a) **Except as provided in subsection (b), the fee for a duplicate, an amended, or a replacement certificate of registration is six dollars and twenty-five cents (\$6.25). The fee shall be distributed as follows:**

- (1) **Twenty-five cents (\$0.25) to the state police building account.**
- (2) **Fifty cents (\$0.50) to the state motor vehicle technology fund.**
- (3) **For a certificate issued before July 1, 2019, as follows:**

(A) One dollar and twenty-five cents (\$1.25) to the integrated public safety communications fund.

(B) Four dollars and twenty-five cents (\$4.25) to the commission fund.

(4) For a certificate issued after June 30, 2019, five dollars and fifty cents (\$5.50) to the commission fund.

(b) The bureau may not impose or collect a fee for a duplicate, an amended, or a replacement certificate of registration that is a result of an error on the part of the bureau.

SECTION 102. IC 9-29-5-18, AS AMENDED BY P.L.125-2012, SECTION 318, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 18. The fee for to register a recreational vehicle which does not include truck campers (as defined in IC 6-6-5.1-8); is twenty dollars (~~\$20~~); is twenty-nine dollars and seventy-five cents (\$29.75). The fee shall be distributed as follows:

(1) Twenty-five cents (\$0.25) to the state police building account.

(2) Fifty cents (\$0.50) to the state motor vehicle technology fund.

(3) For a recreational vehicle registered before July 1, 2019, as follows:

(A) One dollar and twenty-five cents (\$1.25) to the integrated public safety communications fund.

(B) Five dollars (\$5) to the commission fund.

(4) For a recreational vehicle registered after June 30, 2019, six dollars and twenty-five cents (\$6.25) to the commission fund.

(5) Four dollars (\$4) to the crossroads 2000 fund.

(6) Five dollars and fifty cents (\$5.50) to the highway, road and street fund.

(7) Thirteen dollars and twenty-five cents (\$13.25) to the motor vehicle highway account.

SECTION 103. IC 9-29-5-20 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 20. (a) The fee for a temporary permit issued under IC 9-18-7-4 that is valid for not more than ninety-six (96) hours is two dollars (~~\$2~~); eighteen dollars and seventy-five cents (\$18.75). The fee shall be distributed as follows:

(1) Twenty-five cents (\$0.25) to the state police building account.

(2) One dollar (\$1) to the crossroads 2000 fund.

(3) Two dollars and fifty cents (\$2.50) to the state motor vehicle technology fund.

(4) For a temporary permit issued before July 1, 2019, as follows:

(A) One dollar and twenty-five cents (\$1.25) to the integrated public safety communications fund.

(B) Five dollars (\$5) to the commission fund.

(5) For a temporary permit issued after June 30, 2019, six dollars and twenty-five cents (\$6.25) to the commission fund.

(6) Eight dollars and seventy-five cents (\$8.75) to the motor vehicle highway account.

(b) The fee for a temporary permit issued under IC 9-18-7-1 that is valid for a period of thirty (30) days is eighteen dollars and seventy-five cents (\$18.75). The fee shall

be distributed as follows:

(1) Twenty-five cents (\$0.25) to the state police building account.

(2) One dollar (\$1) to the crossroads 2000 fund.

(3) Two dollars and fifty cents (\$2.50) to the state motor vehicle technology fund.

(4) For a temporary permit issued before July 1, 2019, as follows:

(A) One dollar and twenty-five cents (\$1.25) to the integrated public safety communications fund.

(B) Five dollars (\$5) to the commission fund.

(5) For a temporary permit issued after June 30, 2019, six dollars and twenty-five cents (\$6.25) to the commission fund.

(6) Eight dollars and seventy-five cents (\$8.75) to the motor vehicle highway account.

SECTION 104. IC 9-29-5-22 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 22. The fee for a special serial number is two dollars (~~\$2~~); thirteen dollars (\$13). The fee shall be distributed as follows:

(1) Fifty cents (\$0.50) to the state motor vehicle technology fund.

(2) One dollar (\$1) to the highway, road and street fund.

(3) One dollar (\$1) to the motor vehicle highway account.

(4) One dollar and fifty cents (\$1.50) to the integrated public safety communications fund.

(5) Four dollars (\$4) to the crossroads 2000 fund.

(6) Five dollars (\$5) to the commission fund.

SECTION 105. IC 9-29-5-23 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 23. (a) The fee to transfer a vehicle registration and register another vehicle of the same class under IC 9-18-6 is three dollars (~~\$3~~); IC 9-18-6-4(b) is nine dollars and seventy-five cents (\$9.75). The fee shall be distributed as follows:

(1) Twenty-five cents (\$0.25) to the state police building account.

(2) One dollar (\$1) to the highway, road and street fund.

(3) One dollar (\$1) to the motor vehicle highway account.

(4) Two dollars (\$2) to the crossroads 2000 fund.

(5) Five dollars and fifty cents (\$5.50) to the commission fund.

(b) The fee to transfer a vehicle registration and register another vehicle in a higher different fee class is described in under IC 9-18-6-4(c) is sixteen dollars and twenty-five cents (\$16.25). The fee shall be distributed as follows:

(1) Twenty-five cents (\$0.25) to the state police building account.

(2) One dollar (\$1) to the highway, road and street fund.

(3) Two dollars (\$2) to the crossroads 2000 fund.

(4) Five dollars and fifty cents (\$5.50) to the commission fund.

(5) Any remaining amount to the motor vehicle highway account.

(c) The fee to display a license plate described in IC 9-18-6-4(f) is ten dollars and twenty-five cents (\$10.25). The fee shall be distributed as follows:

- (1) Twenty-five cents (\$0.25) to the state police building account.
- (2) Fifty cents (\$0.50) to the state motor vehicle technology fund.
- (3) One dollar and seventy-five cents (\$1.75) to the motor vehicle highway account.
- (4) Two dollars (\$2) to the crossroads 2000 fund.
- (5) Five dollars and seventy-five cents (\$5.75) to the commission fund.

SECTION 106. IC 9-29-5-24 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 24. The fee for a nonresident transport vehicle decal under IC 9-18 is ~~twenty dollars (\$20)~~; **twenty-three dollars and seventy-five cents (\$23.75)**. The fee shall be distributed as follows:

- (1) Twenty-five cents (\$0.25) to the state police building account.
- (2) Fifty cents (\$0.50) to the state motor vehicle technology fund.
- (3) One dollar (\$1) to the motor vehicle highway account.
- (4) Two dollars (\$2) to the crossroads 2000 fund.
- (5) Twenty dollars (\$20) to the commission fund.

SECTION 107. IC 9-29-5-27 IS REPEALED [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]. Sec. 27. The fee for a license plate, sticker, or device issued for each proportionally registered bus is ~~one dollar (\$1)~~:

SECTION 108. IC 9-29-5-28, AS AMENDED BY P.L.1-2010, SECTION 50, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 28. Except as provided in IC 9-18-12-2.5(e) and section 32.5 of this chapter, (a) The registration fee for an antique motor vehicle under IC 9-18-12 is ~~twelve dollars (\$12)~~; **twenty dollars and seventy-five cents (\$20.75)**. The fee shall be distributed as follows:

- (1) Twenty-five cents (\$0.25) to the state police building account.
- (2) Fifty cents (\$0.50) to the state motor vehicle technology fund.
- (3) Three dollars (\$3) to the crossroads 2000 fund.
- (4) For an antique motor vehicle registered before July 1, 2019, as follows:
 - (A) One dollar and twenty-five cents (\$1.25) to the integrated public safety communications fund.
 - (B) Five dollars (\$5) to the commission fund.
- (5) For an antique motor vehicle registered after June 30, 2019, six dollars and twenty-five cents (\$6.25) to the commission fund.
- (6) Any remaining amount to the motor vehicle highway account.

(b) The fee imposed under subsection (a) is in addition to the fee to register and display an authentic license plate from the model year of the antique motor vehicle under section 32.5 of this chapter.

SECTION 109. IC 9-29-5-28.1 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A NEW SECTION TO READ AS

FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 28.1. The fee to register an antique motorcycle is twenty dollars and seventy-five cents (\$20.75). The fee shall be distributed as follows:

- (1) Twenty-five cents (\$0.25) to the state police building account.
- (2) Fifty cents (\$0.50) to the state motor vehicle technology fund.
- (3) Three dollars (\$3) to the crossroads 2000 fund.
- (4) For an antique motorcycle registered before July 1, 2019, as follows:
 - (A) One dollar and twenty-five cents (\$1.25) to the integrated public safety communications fund.
 - (B) Five dollars (\$5) to the commission fund.
- (5) For an antique motorcycle registered after June 30, 2019, six dollars and twenty-five cents (\$6.25) to the commission fund.
- (6) Any remaining amount to the motor vehicle highway account.

SECTION 110. IC 9-29-5-28.2 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A NEW SECTION TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 28.2. The fee to register an antique truck is twenty-one dollars and seventy-five cents (\$21.75). The fee shall be distributed as follows:

- (1) Twenty-five cents (\$0.25) to the state police building account.
- (2) Fifty cents (\$0.50) to the state motor vehicle technology fund.
- (3) Four dollars (\$4) to the crossroads 2000 fund.
- (4) For an antique truck registered before July 1, 2019, as follows:
 - (A) One dollar and twenty-five cents (\$1.25) to the integrated public safety communications fund.
 - (B) Five dollars (\$5) to the commission fund.
- (5) For an antique truck registered after June 30, 2019, six dollars and twenty-five cents (\$6.25) to the commission fund.
- (6) Any remaining amount to the motor vehicle highway account.

SECTION 111. IC 9-29-5-30 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 30. (a) The registration fee for to register a Class A recovery vehicle under IC 9-18-13 is as follows:

- (1) ~~Class A recovery vehicle, five hundred dollars (\$500)~~: For a Class A recovery vehicle registered before August 1 of a year, **five hundred nine dollars and seventy-five cents (\$509.75)**.
- (2) ~~Class B recovery vehicle, seventy-five dollars (\$75)~~: For a Class A recovery vehicle registered after July 31 of a year, **two hundred fifty-seven dollars and seventy-five cents (\$257.75)**.

(b) A vehicle registered under IC 9-18-13 is not subject to any other registration fee under IC 9-18. However, a vehicle registered under IC 9-18-13 is subject to a tax or service charge imposed on a vehicle registered under this title. A fee described in subsection (a) shall be distributed as follows:

- (1) Twenty-five cents (\$0.25) to the state police building account.
- (2) Fifty cents (\$0.50) to the state motor vehicle technology fund.
- (3) To the crossroads 2000 fund as follows:
 - (A) For a Class A recovery vehicle registered before August 1 of a year, four dollars (\$4).
 - (B) For a Class A recovery vehicle registered after July 31 of a year, two dollars (\$2).
- (4) For a Class A recovery vehicle registered before July 1, 2019:
 - (A) One dollar and twenty-five cents (\$1.25) to the integrated public safety communications fund.
 - (B) Five dollars (\$5) to the commission fund.
- (5) For a Class A recovery vehicle registered after June 30, 2019, six dollars and twenty-five cents (\$6.25) to the commission fund.
- (6) Any remaining amount to the motor vehicle highway account.

SECTION 112. IC 9-29-5-30.1 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A NEW SECTION TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 30.1. (a) The fee to register a Class B recovery vehicle under IC 9-18-13 is as follows:

- (1) For a Class B recovery vehicle registered before August 1 of a year, eighty-three dollars and seventy-five cents (\$83.75).
- (2) For a Class B recovery vehicle registered after July 31 of a year, forty-four dollars and seventy-five cents (\$44.75).

(b) A fee described in subsection (a) shall be distributed as follows:

- (1) Twenty-five cents (\$0.25) to the state police building account.
- (2) Fifty cents (\$0.50) to the state motor vehicle technology fund.
- (3) To the crossroads 2000 fund as follows:
 - (A) For a Class B recovery vehicle registered before August 1 of a year, three dollars (\$3).
 - (B) For a Class B recovery vehicle registered after July 31 of a year, one dollar and fifty cents (\$1.50).
- (4) For a Class B recovery vehicle registered before July 1, 2019, as follows:
 - (A) One dollar and twenty-five cents (\$1.25) to the integrated public safety communications fund.
 - (B) Five dollars (\$5) to the commission fund.
- (5) For a Class B recovery vehicle registered after June 30, 2019, six dollars and twenty-five cents (\$6.25) to the commission fund.
- (6) Any remaining amount to the motor vehicle highway account.

SECTION 113. IC 9-29-5-32.5, AS AMENDED BY P.L.79-2006, SECTION 8, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 32.5. (a) The fee for a personalized license plate under IC 9-18-15 or for the registration and display of an authentic license plate for the model year of an antique motor vehicle under IC 9-18-12-2.5 is as follows:

- (1) The applicable excise tax imposed under IC 6-6-5.
- (2) The regular vehicle registration fee imposed under this chapter.
- (3) A state fee of seven dollars (\$7) for the motor vehicle highway account established under IC 8-14-1.
- (4) A service charge of thirty dollars (\$30) for the state license branch fund established by IC 9-29-14-1. **forty-five dollars (\$45). The fee shall be distributed as follows:**
 - (1) Four dollars (\$4) to the crossroads 2000 fund.
 - (2) Seven dollars (\$7) to the motor vehicle highway account.
 - (3) Thirty-four dollars (\$34) to the commission fund.

(b) The fee for the registration and display of an authentic license plate for the model year of an antique motor vehicle under IC 9-18-12-2.5 is thirty-seven dollars (\$37). The fee shall be distributed as follows:

- (1) Seven dollars (\$7) to the motor vehicle highway account.
- (2) Thirty dollars (\$30) to the commission fund.

SECTION 114. IC 9-29-5-33 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 33. The fee for the registration of to register a vehicle owned by an eligible person under IC 9-18-18 is equal to the fees assessed the applicable fee for a vehicle of the same class under this chapter. **There is no additional fee for a license plate issued under IC 9-18-18.**

SECTION 115. IC 9-29-5-34.5, AS AMENDED BY P.L.87-2010, SECTION 37, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 34.5. A vehicle registered under IC 9-18-24.5 is subject to an annual registration fee and any other fee or tax required of a person registering a vehicle under this title. **There is no additional fee for a license plate issued under IC 9-18-24.5.**

SECTION 116. IC 9-29-5-36 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 36. The fee to register a vehicle under IC 9-18-23 is as follows:

- (1) The applicable excise tax imposed under IC 6-6-5.
- (2) The regular vehicle registration fee imposed under this chapter.
- (3) ~~Two dollars (\$2):~~ **Eight dollars (\$8), distributed as follows:**

- (A) Two dollars (\$2) to the motor vehicle highway account.
- (B) Two dollars (\$2) to the crossroads 2000 fund.
- (C) For a vehicle registered before July 1, 2019, as follows:

- (i) One dollar and twenty-five cents (\$1.25) to the integrated public safety communications fund.
- (ii) Two dollars and seventy-five cents (\$2.75) to the commission fund.

- (D) For a vehicle registered after June 30, 2019, four dollars (\$4) to the commission fund.

SECTION 117. IC 9-29-5-38, AS AMENDED BY P.L.214-2005, SECTION 57, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 38. (a) Except as provided in subsections (c) and (d), vehicles registered under IC 9-18-25 are subject to the following:

- (1) ~~An~~ **The appropriate annual registration fee under this**

chapter for the vehicle.

(2) An annual supplemental fee of ~~ten dollars (\$10)~~ **fifteen dollars (\$15).**

(3) The applicable special group recognition license plate fee under IC 9-18-25-17.5 or IC 9-18-25-17.7.

~~(3) (4) Any other fee or tax required of a person registering to register a vehicle under this title.~~

(b) The bureau shall distribute ~~all the~~ money collected under the annual supplemental fee under subsection (a)(2) or (d)(2) as follows:

(1) Five dollars (\$5) from each registration is appropriated to the bureau of motor vehicles for the purpose of administering IC 9-18-25.

(2) Five dollars (\$5) from each registration shall be deposited in the ~~state license branch commission~~ fund under IC 9-29-14.

(3) Five dollars (\$5) from each supplemental fee under subsection (a)(2) shall be distributed as follows:

(A) One dollar (\$1) to the crossroads 2000 fund.

(B) For a vehicle registered before July 1, 2019, as follows:

(i) One dollar and twenty-five cents (\$1.25) to the integrated public safety communications fund.

(ii) Two dollars and seventy-five cents (\$2.75) to the commission fund.

(C) For a vehicle registered after June 30, 2019, four dollars (\$4) to the commission fund.

(c) A vehicle registered under IC 9-18-25 that is owned by a former prisoner of war or by the prisoner's surviving spouse is exempt from the ~~annual registration fee and the annual supplemental fee; fees described in subsection (a). However, the vehicle is subject to a service charge of five dollars and seventy-five cents (\$5.75). The fee shall be distributed as follows:~~

(1) Twenty-five cents (\$0.25) to the state police building account.

(2) Fifty cents (\$0.50) to the state motor vehicle technology fund.

(3) For a vehicle registered before July 1, 2019, as follows:

(A) One dollar and twenty-five cents (\$1.25) to the integrated public safety communications fund.

(B) Three dollars and seventy-five cents (\$3.75) to the commission fund.

(4) For a vehicle registered after June 30, 2019, five dollars (\$5) to the commission fund.

(d) A motor vehicle that is registered and for which is issued a special group recognition license plate under IC 9-18-25 and IC 9-18-49 is subject to the following:

~~(1) An~~ **The appropriate annual registration fee under this chapter for the vehicle.**

(2) An annual supplemental fee of ten dollars (\$10).

~~(3) Any other fee or tax required of a person registering a vehicle under this title.~~

(3) The applicable special group recognition license plate fee under IC 9-18-25-17.5 or IC 9-18-25-17.7.

(4) The annual fee of twenty dollars (\$20) imposed by IC 9-18-49-4(a)(2).

(5) Any other fee or tax required to register a vehicle under this title.

SECTION 118. IC 9-29-5-42, AS AMENDED BY P.L.107-2008, SECTION 15, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 42. (a) Except as provided in subsection (c), vehicles not subject to IC 9-18-2-8 or IC 9-18-2-8.5 shall be registered at ~~one-half (1/2) of the regular rate, the appropriate rate established in this chapter,~~ subject to IC 9-18-2-7, if the vehicle is registered after July 31 of any year. This subsection does not apply to the following:

(1) Special machinery.

(2) Semitrailers registered on a five (5) year or permanent basis under IC 9-18-10-2.

(3) An implement of agriculture designed to be operated primarily on a highway.

(b) Except as provided in subsection (c), subsection (a) and IC 9-18-2-7 determine the registration fee for the registration of a vehicle subject to registration under IC 9-18-2-8(c) and acquired by an owner subsequent to the date required for the annual registration of vehicles by an owner set forth in IC 9-18-2-8.

(c) Subject to subsection (d), a vehicle subject to the International Registration Plan that is registered after September 30 shall be registered at a rate determined by the following formula:

STEP ONE: Determine the number of months before April 1 of the following year beginning with the date of registration. A partial month shall be rounded to one (1) month.

STEP TWO: Multiply the STEP ONE result by one-twelfth (1/12).

STEP THREE: Multiply the annual registration fee for the vehicle by the STEP TWO result.

(d) If the department of state revenue adopts rules under IC 9-18-2-7 to implement staggered registration for motor vehicles subject to the International Registration Plan, a motor vehicle subject to the International Registration Plan that is registered after the date designated for registration of the motor vehicle in rules adopted under IC 9-18-2-7 shall be registered at a rate determined by the following formula:

STEP ONE: Determine the number of months before the motor vehicle must be re-registered. A partial month shall be rounded to one (1) month.

STEP TWO: Multiply the STEP ONE result by one-twelfth (1/12).

STEP THREE: Multiply the annual registration fee for the vehicle by the STEP TWO result.

(e) A school bus subject to registration under IC 9-18-2-8.5 that is registered after January 31 for the prior calendar year shall be registered at one-half (1/2) the regular rate.

SECTION 119. IC 9-29-5-43 IS REPEALED [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]. Sec. 43: (a) Except as otherwise provided by this chapter, subsection (b), and IC 9-29-1-2, registration fees collected under this chapter shall be paid into the state general fund for credit to the motor vehicle highway account under ~~IC 8-14-1.~~

(b) Fees collected for the registration of off-road vehicles and snowmobiles under IC 9-18-2.5 and collected as set forth in section 44 of this chapter shall be deposited in the off-road vehicle and snowmobile fund established under IC 14-16-1-30.

SECTION 120. IC 9-29-5-45 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A NEW SECTION TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: **Sec. 45. The bureau may adopt rules under IC 4-22-2 to impose a pull service charge. However, the bureau may not impose a pull service charge of more than fifteen dollars (\$15) for a requested motor vehicle registration plate issued under IC 9-18-25 for a special group recognition license plate that commemorates the Lewis and Clark expedition.**

SECTION 121. IC 9-29-7-2.3, AS ADDED BY P.L.110-2006, SECTION 4, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: **Sec. 2.3. (a) The fee for a certificate of salvage title is four dollars (\$4). The fee shall be deposited in the motor vehicle highway account.**

(b) The fee for a delinquent certificate of salvage title is ten dollars (\$10). The bureau shall collect this fee if:

- (1) a purchaser or transferee of a salvage motor vehicle fails to apply for a certificate of salvage title or a transfer of title, by assignment, not later than thirty-one (31) days after the salvage motor vehicle is purchased or otherwise acquired; or
- (2) the owner of a salvage motor vehicle retains possession of the salvage motor vehicle and the owner fails to apply for a certificate of salvage title not later than thirty-one (31) days after the settlement of loss with the insurance company.

The fee shall be deposited in the motor vehicle highway account.

SECTION 122. IC 9-29-7-2.5 IS REPEALED [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]. **Sec. 2-5. The fee for a duplicate or corrected certificate of salvage title is four dollars (\$4).**

SECTION 123. IC 9-29-7-7 IS REPEALED [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]. **Sec. 7. The revenues from the certificate of salvage titles collected under IC 9-22-3 shall be deposited in the motor vehicle highway account under IC 8-14-1-3.**

SECTION 124. IC 9-29-9-1 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: **Sec. 1. (a) The fee for a an original learner's permit issued under IC 9-24-7 is two dollars (\$2); nine dollars and fifty cents (\$9.50). The fee shall be distributed as follows:**

- (1) Fifty cents (\$0.50) to the motor vehicle highway account.
- (2) Fifty cents (\$0.50) to the state motor vehicle technology fund.
- (3) Two dollars (\$2) to the crossroads 2000 fund.
- (4) For an original learner's permit issued before July 1, 2019, as follows:
 - (A) One dollar and seventy-five cents (\$1.75) to the integrated public safety communications fund.
 - (B) Four dollars and seventy-five cents (\$4.75) to the commission fund.
- (5) For an original learner's permit issued after June 30, 2019, six dollars and fifty cents (\$6.50) to the commission fund.

(b) The fee for a duplicate learner's permit issued under IC 9-24-7 is ten dollars and fifty cents (\$10.50). The fee shall be distributed as follows:

- (1) Fifty cents (\$0.50) to the state motor vehicle technology fund.
- (2) Two dollars (\$2) to the motor vehicle highway account.
- (3) Two dollars (\$2) to the crossroads 2000 fund.
- (4) For a duplicate learner's permit issued before July 1, 2019, as follows:
 - (A) One dollar and twenty-five cents (\$1.25) to the integrated public safety communications fund.
 - (B) Four dollars and seventy-five cents (\$4.75) to the commission fund.
- (5) For a duplicate learner's permit issued after June 30, 2019, six dollars (\$6) to the commission fund.

SECTION 125. IC 9-29-9-2 IS REPEALED [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]. **Sec. 2. (a) Except as provided in subsection (c); the fee for an operator's license issued under IC 9-24-3 or renewed under IC 9-24-12 to an individual who is:**

- (1) less than seventy-five (75) years of age is nine dollars (\$9); and
- (2) at least seventy-five (75) years of age is six dollars (\$6).

(b) The fee for a probationary license issued under IC 9-24-11-3 or IC 9-24-11-3.3 is six dollars (\$6).

(c) Notwithstanding subsection (a); the fee for the renewal of an operator's license issued under IC 9-24 that contains a 2012 expiration date is as follows:

- (1) If the license was previously issued or renewed after May 14, 2007, and before January 1, 2008, the fee is seven dollars and fifty cents (\$7.50).
- (2) If the license was previously issued or renewed after December 31, 2007, and before January 1, 2009, the fee is nine dollars (\$9).
- (3) If the license was previously issued or renewed after December 31, 2005, and before January 1, 2007, the fee is six dollars (\$6).

This subsection does not apply to the issuance or renewal of an operator's license that contains an expiration date after 2012.

SECTION 126. IC 9-29-9-2.1 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A NEW SECTION TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: **Sec. 2.1. (a) The fee for an operator's license issued under IC 9-24-3 or renewed under IC 9-24-12 to an individual who is less than seventy-five (75) years of age is seventeen dollars and fifty cents (\$17.50). The fee shall be distributed as follows:**

- (1) Fifty cents (\$0.50) to the state motor vehicle technology fund.
- (2) Two dollars (\$2) to the crossroads 2000 fund.
- (3) Four dollars and fifty cents (\$4.50) to the motor vehicle highway account.
- (4) For an operator's license issued or renewed before July 1, 2019, as follows:
 - (A) One dollar and twenty-five cents (\$1.25) to the integrated public safety communications fund.
 - (B) Nine dollars and twenty-five cents (\$9.25) to the commission fund.
- (5) For an operator's license issued or renewed after

June 30, 2019, ten dollars and fifty cents (\$10.50) to the commission fund.

(b) The fee for an operator's license issued under IC 9-24-3 or renewed under IC 9-24-12 to an individual who is at least seventy-five (75) years of age and less than eighty-five (85) years of age is eleven dollars (\$11). The fee shall be distributed as follows:

- (1) Fifty cents (\$0.50) to the state motor vehicle technology fund.
- (2) One dollar and fifty cents (\$1.50) to the crossroads 2000 fund.
- (3) Three dollars (\$3) to the motor vehicle highway account.
- (4) For an operator's license issued or renewed before July 1, 2019, as follows:

(A) One dollar and twenty-five cents (\$1.25) to the integrated public safety communications fund.

(B) Four dollars and seventy-five cents (\$4.75) to the commission fund.

(5) For an operator's license issued or renewed after June 30, 2019, six dollars (\$6) to the commission fund.

(c) The fee for an operator's license issued under IC 9-24-3 or renewed under IC 9-24-12 to an individual who is at least eighty-five (85) years of age is seven dollars (\$7). The fee shall be distributed as follows:

- (1) Fifty cents (\$0.50) to the state motor vehicle technology fund.
- (2) One dollar (\$1) to the crossroads 2000 fund.
- (3) Two dollars (\$2) to the motor vehicle highway account.
- (4) For an operator's license issued or renewed before July 1, 2019, as follows:

(A) One dollar and twenty-five cents (\$1.25) to the integrated public safety communications fund.

(B) Two dollars and twenty-five cents (\$2.25) to the commission fund.

(5) For an operator's license issued or renewed after June 30, 2019, three dollars and fifty cents (\$3.50) to the commission fund.

SECTION 127. IC 9-29-9-2.5, AS AMENDED BY P.L.109-2011, SECTION 31, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 2.5. (a) Except as provided in subsection (b), the bureau may adopt rules under IC 4-22-2 to impose a service charge for the issuance of fee for an amended operator's license or permit issued under IC 9-24-13-4 is ten dollars and fifty cents (\$10.50). The fee shall be distributed as follows:

- (1) Fifty cents (\$0.50) to the state motor vehicle technology fund.
- (2) One dollar and fifty cents (\$1.50) to the crossroads 2000 fund.
- (3) One dollar and fifty cents (\$1.50) to the motor vehicle highway account.
- (4) For an amended or duplicate license or permit issued before July 1, 2019, as follows:

(A) One dollar and twenty-five cents (\$1.25) to the integrated public safety communications fund.

(B) Five dollars and seventy-five cents (\$5.75) to the

commission fund.

(5) For an amended or duplicate license or permit issued after June 30, 2019, seven dollars (\$7) to the commission fund.

(b) The fee for an amended or a duplicate commercial driver's license is five dollars and fifty cents (\$5.50). The fee shall be distributed as follows:

- (1) Fifty cents (\$0.50) to the state motor vehicle technology fund.
- (2) One dollar (\$1) to the crossroads 2000 fund.
- (3) One dollar and fifty cents (\$1.50) to the motor vehicle highway account.
- (4) Two dollars and fifty cents (\$2.50) to the commission fund.

SECTION 128. IC 9-29-9-3 IS REPEALED [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]. Sec. 3: The fee for a three (3) year operator's license issued under IC 9-24-3 is three dollars (\$3).

SECTION 129. IC 9-29-9-4, AS AMENDED BY P.L.1-2007, SECTION 89, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 4. (a) The fee for a chauffeur's license issued under IC 9-24-4 or renewed under IC 9-24-12 to an individual who is ~~(1)~~ at least ~~seventy-five (75)~~ years of age is eight dollars (\$8); and ~~(2)~~ less than seventy-five (75) years of age is ~~twelve dollars (\$12);~~ twenty-two dollars and fifty cents (\$22.50). The fee shall be distributed as follows:

- (1) Fifty cents (\$0.50) to the state motor vehicle technology fund.
- (2) Four dollars (\$4) to the crossroads 2000 fund.
- (3) For a chauffeur's license issued or renewed before July 1, 2019, as follows:

(A) One dollar and twenty-five cents (\$1.25) to the integrated public safety communications fund.

(B) Seven dollars and seventy-five cents (\$7.75) to the commission fund.

(4) For a chauffeur's license issued or renewed after June 30, 2019, nine dollars (\$9) to the commission fund.

(5) Nine dollars (\$9) to the motor vehicle highway account.

(b) The fee for a chauffeur's license issued under IC 9-24-4 or renewed under IC 9-24-12 to an individual who is at least seventy-five (75) years of age and less than eighty-five (85) years of age is eighteen dollars and fifty cents (\$18.50). The fee shall be distributed as follows:

- (1) Fifty cents (\$0.50) to the state motor vehicle technology fund.
- (2) Four dollars (\$4) to the crossroads 2000 fund.
- (3) Six dollars (\$6) to the motor vehicle highway account.
- (4) For a chauffeur's license issued or renewed before July 1, 2019, as follows:

(A) One dollar and twenty-five cents (\$1.25) to the integrated public safety communications fund.

(B) Six dollars and seventy-five cents (\$6.75) to the commission fund.

(5) For a chauffeur's license issued or renewed after June 30, 2019, eight dollars (\$8) to the commission fund.

SECTION 130. IC 9-29-9-5, AS AMENDED BY P.L.206-2007, SECTION 3, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 5. The fee for a public passenger chauffeur's license issued under IC 9-24-5 is ~~eight dollars (\$8);~~ **eighteen dollars and fifty cents (\$18.50).** The fee shall be distributed as follows:

- (1) **Fifty cents (\$0.50) to the state motor vehicle technology fund.**
- (2) **Four dollars (\$4) to the crossroads 2000 fund.**
- (3) **Six dollars (\$6) to the motor vehicle highway account.**
- (4) **For a public passenger chauffeur's license issued or renewed before July 1, 2019, as follows:**
 - (A) **One dollar and twenty-five cents (\$1.25) to the integrated public safety communications fund.**
 - (B) **Six dollars and seventy-five cents (\$6.75) to the commission fund.**
- (5) **For a public passenger chauffeur's license issued or renewed after June 30, 2019, eight dollars (\$8) to the commission fund.**

SECTION 131. IC 9-29-9-7, AS AMENDED BY HEA 1343-2014, SECTION 76, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 7. (a) The fee for validation of a motorcycle endorsement or motorcycle endorsement with a Class A motor driven cycle restriction under IC 9-24-8-4 and IC 9-24-12-7 of an operator's license issued to an individual who is ~~(1) at least seventy-five (75) years of age is three dollars (\$3); and (2) less than seventy-five (75) years of age is four dollars and fifty cents (\$4.50);~~ **twelve dollars (\$12).** The fee shall be distributed as follows:

- (1) **One dollar (\$1) to the crossroads 2000 fund.**
- (2) **Two dollars and twenty-five cents (\$2.25) to the motor vehicle highway account.**
- (3) **One dollar (\$1) to the state motor vehicle technology fund.**
- (4) **For a motorcycle endorsement or motorcycle endorsement with a Class A motor driven cycle restriction validated before July 1, 2019, as follows:**
 - (A) **One dollar and twenty-five cents (\$1.25) to the integrated public safety communications fund.**
 - (B) **Six dollars and fifty cents (\$6.50) to the commission fund.**
- (5) **For a motorcycle endorsement or motorcycle endorsement with a Class A motor driven cycle restriction validated after June 30, 2019, seven dollars and seventy-five cents (\$7.75) to the commission fund.**

(b) The fee for validation of a motorcycle endorsement or motorcycle endorsement with a Class A motor driven cycle restriction under IC 9-24-8-4 and IC 9-24-12-7 of an operator's license issued to an individual who is at least seventy-five (75) years of age is **ten dollars and fifty cents (\$10.50).** The fee shall be distributed as follows:

- (1) **Seventy-five cents (\$0.75) to the motor vehicle highway account.**
- (2) **One dollar (\$1) to the state motor vehicle technology fund.**
- (3) **One dollar (\$1) to the crossroads 2000 fund.**
- (4) **For a motorcycle endorsement or motorcycle**

endorsement with a Class A motor driven cycle restriction validated before July 1, 2019, as follows:

- (A) **One dollar and twenty-five cents (\$1.25) to the integrated public safety communications fund.**
- (B) **Six dollars and fifty cents (\$6.50) to the commission fund.**

(5) **For a motorcycle endorsement or motorcycle endorsement with a Class A motor driven cycle restriction validated after June 30, 2019, seven dollars and seventy-five cents (\$7.75) to the commission fund.**

SECTION 132. IC 9-29-9-8, AS AMENDED BY HEA 1343-2014, SECTION 77, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 8. (a) The fee for validation of a motorcycle endorsement or motorcycle endorsement with a Class A motor driven cycle restriction under IC 9-24-8-4 and IC 9-24-12-7 of a chauffeur's license issued to an individual who is ~~(1) at least seventy-five (75) years of age is three dollars (\$3); and (2) less than seventy-five (75) years of age is four dollars and fifty cents (\$4.50);~~ **twelve dollars (\$12).** The fee shall be distributed as follows:

- (1) **One dollar (\$1) to the crossroads 2000 fund.**
 - (2) **Two dollars and twenty-five cents (\$2.25) to the motor vehicle highway account.**
 - (3) **Fifty cents (\$0.50) to the state motor vehicle technology fund.**
 - (4) **For a motorcycle endorsement or motorcycle endorsement with a Class A motor driven cycle restriction validated before July 1, 2019, as follows:**
 - (A) **One dollar and twenty-five cents (\$1.25) to the integrated public safety communications fund.**
 - (B) **Seven dollars (\$7) to the commission fund.**
 - (5) **For a motorcycle endorsement or motorcycle endorsement with a Class A motor driven cycle restriction validated after June 30, 2019, eight dollars and twenty-five cents (\$8.25) to the commission fund.**
- (b) The fee for validation of a motorcycle endorsement or motorcycle endorsement with a Class A motor driven cycle restriction under IC 9-24-8-4 and IC 9-24-12-7 of a chauffeur's license issued to an individual who is at least seventy-five (75) years of age is **ten dollars and fifty cents (\$10.50).** The fee shall be distributed as follows:

- (1) **Seventy-five cents (\$0.75) to the motor vehicle highway account.**
- (2) **One dollar (\$1) to the crossroads 2000 fund.**
- (3) **One dollar (\$1) to the state motor vehicle technology fund.**
- (4) **For a motorcycle endorsement or motorcycle endorsement with a Class A motor driven cycle restriction validated before July 1, 2019, as follows:**
 - (A) **One dollar and twenty-five cents (\$1.25) to the integrated public safety communications fund.**
 - (B) **Six dollars and fifty cents (\$6.50) to the commission fund.**
- (5) **For a motorcycle endorsement or motorcycle endorsement with a Class A motor driven cycle restriction validated after June 30, 2019, seven dollars and seventy-five cents (\$7.75) to the commission fund.**

SECTION 133. IC 9-29-9-9, AS AMENDED BY HEA 1343-2014, SECTION 78, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 9. The fee for **validation of a motorcycle endorsement or motorcycle endorsement with a Class A motor driven cycle restriction of a public passenger chauffeur's license is ~~one dollar and fifty cents (\$1.50)~~; eight dollars and fifty cents (\$8.50)**. The fee shall be distributed as follows:

- (1) Fifty cents (\$0.50) to the state motor vehicle technology fund.
- (2) One dollar (\$1) to the crossroads 2000 fund.
- (3) One dollar and fifty cents (\$1.50) to the motor vehicle highway account.
- (4) Five dollars and fifty cents (\$5.50) to the commission fund.

SECTION 134. IC 9-29-9-11 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 11. The fee for a motorcycle learner's permit issued under IC 9-24-8 is ~~two dollars (\$2)~~; **nine dollars and fifty cents (\$9.50)**. The fee shall be distributed as follows:

- (1) One dollar (\$1) to the state motor vehicle technology fund.
- (2) One dollar (\$1) to the motor vehicle highway account.
- (3) Two dollars (\$2) to the crossroads 2000 fund.
- (4) For a motorcycle learner's permit issued before July 1, 2019, as follows:
 - (A) One dollar and twenty-five cents (\$1.25) to the integrated public safety communications fund.
 - (B) Four dollars and twenty-five cents (\$4.25) to the commission fund.
- (5) For a motorcycle learner's permit issued after June 30, 2019, five dollars and fifty cents (\$5.50) to the commission fund.

SECTION 135. IC 9-29-9-15, AS AMENDED BY P.L.109-2011, SECTION 35, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 15. The fees (a) **Except as provided in subsection (b) or (c), the fee for the issuance, renewal, amendment, or replacement of an identification card under IC 9-24-16 are as follows: (1) For an individual at least sixty-five (65) years of age or an individual with a physical disability and not entitled to obtain a driver's license, three dollars and fifty cents (\$3.50); (2) For any other individual, six dollars (\$6); is eleven dollars and fifty cents (\$11.50)**. The fee shall be distributed as follows:

- (1) Fifty cents (\$0.50) to the state motor vehicle technology fund.
- (2) One dollar and twenty-five cents (\$1.25) deposited as follows:
 - (A) For an identification card issued, renewed, amended, or replaced before July 1, 2019, into the integrated public safety communications fund.
 - (B) For an identification card issued, renewed, amended, or replaced after June 30, 2019, into the commission fund.
- (3) Two dollars and seventy-five cents (\$2.75) to the motor vehicle highway account.
- (4) Seven dollars (\$7) to the commission fund.

(b) **The fee for the issuance, renewal, amendment, or replacement of an identification card under IC 9-24-16 issued to an individual who is at least sixty-five (65) years of age or to an individual with a physical disability who is not entitled to obtain a driver's license is nine dollars (\$9)**. The fee shall be distributed as follows:

- (1) Fifty cents (\$0.50) to the state motor vehicle technology fund.
- (2) One dollar and fifty cents (\$1.50) to the motor vehicle highway account.
- (3) For an identification card issued, renewed, amended, or replaced before July 1, 2019, as follows:
 - (A) One dollar and twenty-five cents (\$1.25) to the integrated public safety communications fund.
 - (B) Five dollars and seventy-five cents (\$5.75) to the commission fund.
- (4) For an identification card issued, renewed, amended, or replaced after June 30, 2019, seven dollars (\$7) to the commission fund.

(c) **There is no fee for an identification card issued under IC 9-24-16-10 for purposes of voting in an election.**

SECTION 136. IC 9-29-9-15.1 IS REPEALED [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]. ~~Sec. 15.1: The fee and charge provisions of IC 9-24-16-10 apply notwithstanding IC 9-29-3-14 and section 15 of this chapter.~~

SECTION 137. IC 9-29-9-16 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A NEW SECTION TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 16. **The fee for a commercial driver's license issued under IC 9-24-6 is thirty-six dollars (\$36)**. The fee shall be distributed as follows:

- (1) One dollar and fifty cents (\$1.50) to the state motor vehicle technology fund.
- (2) Fifteen dollars (\$15) to the motor vehicle highway account.
- (3) For a commercial driver's license issued before July 1, 2019, as follows:
 - (A) Five dollars (\$5) to the integrated public safety communications fund.
 - (B) Fourteen dollars and fifty cents (\$14.50) to the commission fund.
- (4) For a commercial driver's license issued after June 30, 2019, nineteen dollars and fifty cents (\$19.50) to the commission fund.

SECTION 138. IC 9-29-9-17 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A NEW SECTION TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 17. **The fee for a commercial driver's license learner's permit issued under IC 9-24-6 is seventeen dollars (\$17)**. The fee shall be distributed as follows:

- (1) Fifty cents (\$0.50) to the motor vehicle highway account.
- (2) Fifty cents (\$0.50) to the state motor vehicle technology fund.
- (3) Two dollars (\$2) to the crossroads 2000 fund.
- (4) For a commercial driver's license learner's permit issued before July 1, 2019, as follows:

(A) One dollar and twenty-five cents (\$1.25) to the integrated public safety communications fund.

(B) Twelve dollars and seventy-five cents (\$12.75) to the commission fund.

(5) For a commercial driver's license learner's permit issued after June 30, 2019, fourteen dollars (\$14) to the commission fund.

SECTION 139. IC 9-29-14-1 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 1. The ~~state license branch bureau of motor vehicles commission~~ fund is established for the purpose of paying the expenses incurred in administering IC 9-16. The fund shall be administered by the commission.

SECTION 140. IC 9-29-14-5 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 5. The fund consists of the following:

(1) ~~Service charges collected by license branches. Money deposited in or distributed to the fund under this article.~~

(2) Money received from any other source, including appropriations.

SECTION 141. IC 9-29-15-0.3 IS REPEALED [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]. ~~Sec. 0.3. If P.L.291-2001 imposes an additional service fee under section 1 or 4 of this chapter that is payable into a fund other than the state motor vehicle technology fund established by IC 9-29-16, the general assembly intends that both the service fees imposed under P.L.291-2001 and P.L.176-2001 shall be collected.~~

SECTION 142. IC 9-29-15-1 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 1. (a) The fee for a certificate of title or a duplicate certificate of title under IC 9-31-2 is ~~nine fifteen~~ dollars and fifty cents (~~\$9.50~~): **(\$15.50).**

(b) The fee is distributed as follows:

(1) Fifty cents (\$0.50) to the state motor vehicle technology fund.

(2) Two dollars (\$2) to the crossroads 2000 fund.

(3) For a certificate of title issued before July 1, 2019, as follows:

(A) One dollar and twenty-five cents (\$1.25) to the integrated public safety communications fund.

(B) Four dollars and seventy-five cents (\$4.75) to the commission fund.

(4) For a certificate of title issued after June 30, 2019, six dollars (\$6) to the commission fund.

~~(1) (5) Seven dollars (\$7) to the department of natural resources.~~

~~(2) Two dollars and fifty cents (\$2.50) to the bureau.~~

~~(c) Fifty cents (\$0.50) of each fee distributed under subsection (b)(2) shall be deposited in the state motor vehicle technology fund established by IC 9-29-16-1.~~

SECTION 143. IC 9-29-15-2 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 2. (a) The fee for the assignment of a hull identification number under IC 9-31-2-8 is ~~two ten~~ dollars and fifty cents (~~\$2.50~~): **(\$10.50).**

(b) ~~The fee is retained by the bureau. shall be distributed as follows:~~

(1) Two dollars and fifty cents (\$2.50) to the department of natural resources.

(2) Four dollars (\$4) to the crossroads 2000 fund.

(3) Four dollars (\$4) to the commission fund.

SECTION 144. IC 9-29-15-3 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 3. (a) The fee for a late application for title under IC 9-31-2-17 is ~~ten dollars (\$10)~~: **twenty dollars (\$20).**

(b) The fee is distributed as follows:

(1) Eight dollars (\$8) to the department of natural resources.

~~(2) Two dollars (\$2) to the bureau. Three dollars (\$3) to the crossroads 2000 fund.~~

(3) Nine dollars (\$9) to the commission fund.

SECTION 145. IC 9-29-15-4 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 4. (a) The fees to register a motorboat under IC 9-31-3 are as follows:

(1) ~~Twelve Sixteen~~ dollars and fifty cents (~~\$12.50~~) **(\$16.50)** for a Class 1 motorboat.

(2) ~~Fourteen Eighteen~~ dollars and fifty cents (~~\$14.50~~) **(\$18.50)** for a Class 2, Class 3, or Class 4 motorboat.

(3) ~~Seventeen Twenty-one~~ dollars and fifty cents (~~\$17.50~~) **(\$21.50)** for a Class 5 motorboat.

(4) ~~Twenty-two Twenty-six~~ dollars and fifty cents (~~\$22.50~~) **(\$26.50)** for a Class 6 or Class 7 motorboat.

(b) The department of natural resources receives:

~~(1) twelve dollars (\$12) for a Class 1 motorboat;~~

~~(2) fourteen dollars (\$14) for a Class 2, Class 3, or Class 4 motorboat;~~

~~(3) seventeen dollars (\$17) for a Class 5 motorboat; and~~

~~(4) twenty-two dollars (\$22) for a Class 6 or Class 7 motorboat;~~

of the fee collected under subsection (a):

~~(c) Fifty cents (\$0.50) of each fee collected under subsection~~

~~(a) shall be deposited in the state motor vehicle technology fund established by IC 9-29-16-1.~~

(b) A fee described in subsection (a) shall be distributed as follows:

(1) Fifty cents (\$0.50) to the state motor vehicle technology fund.

(2) One dollar (\$1) to the commission fund.

(3) Three dollars (\$3) to the crossroads 2000 fund.

(4) Any remaining amount to the department of natural resources.

SECTION 146. IC 9-29-15-5 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 5. (a) The fee for the reissuance of a certificate of registration under IC 9-31-3-13 is one dollar (\$1).

(b) ~~The fee is retained by the bureau. shall be deposited in the commission fund.~~

SECTION 147. IC 9-29-15-6 IS REPEALED [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]. ~~Sec. 6: (a) The fee to obtain a dealer certificate of number under IC 9-31-3-19 is ten dollars (\$10).~~

~~(b) The fee is retained by the bureau.~~

SECTION 148. IC 9-29-15-9, AS ADDED BY P.L.46-2006, SECTION 2, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 9. (a) The fee to collect the excise tax on a motorboat registered in another state under IC 6-6-11-13(4) is two dollars (\$2).

(b) The fee shall be deposited in the ~~state license branch commission~~ fund established under IC 9-29-14.

SECTION 149. IC 9-29-16-5 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 5. The fund consists of the following:

(1) ~~Fifty cents (\$0.50) of each service charge or fee collected by license branches under the following:~~

(A) ~~IC 9-29-3-4.~~

(B) ~~IC 9-29-3-6.~~

(C) ~~IC 9-29-3-7.~~

(D) ~~IC 9-29-3-8.~~

(E) ~~IC 9-29-3-9.~~

(F) ~~IC 9-29-3-10.~~

(G) ~~IC 9-29-3-11.~~

(H) ~~IC 9-29-3-12.~~

(I) ~~IC 9-29-3-14.~~

(J) ~~IC 9-29-3-18.~~

(K) ~~IC 9-29-15-1.~~

(L) ~~IC 9-29-15-4.~~

(1) **Money deposited in or distributed to the fund under this article.**

(2) ~~Money deposited with the approval of the budget agency in the fund from any part of:~~

(A) ~~a service fee established under IC 9-29-3-19; or~~

(B) ~~an increase of a service fee increased under IC 9-29-3-19.~~

(3) **(2) Money received from any other source, including appropriations.**

SECTION 150. IC 9-29-17-1, AS ADDED BY P.L.92-2013, SECTION 74, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 1. (a) Except as provided in section 3 of this chapter, the fee for the first two (2) license plates issued under IC 9-32-6-1 to a manufacturer or dealer is forty dollars (\$40). **There is an additional service charge of five dollars (\$5).**

(b) The fee for each additional license plate under IC 9-32-6-5 for a manufacturer or dealer is fifteen dollars (\$15). **There is an additional service charge of five dollars (\$5).**

(c) The fee for a dealer promotional license plate established under IC 9-32-6-2(b) is forty dollars (\$40).

(d) The fee for the first two (2) dealer-wholesale license plates issued to an applicant under IC 9-32-6-2(a)(4) is one hundred twenty-five dollars (\$125). The fee for each additional dealer-wholesale license plate issued to the applicant is fifteen dollars (\$15).

(e) Fees collected under this section shall be deposited as set forth in section 14(b) of this chapter.

(f) Service charges collected under this section shall be deposited in the crossroads 2000 fund.

SECTION 151. IC 9-29-17-3, AS ADDED BY P.L.92-2013, SECTION 74, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 3. (a) The fee for the first two (2) license plates under IC 9-32-6-1 for a manufacturer or dealer of motorcycles is fifteen dollars (\$15). **There is an additional service charge of five dollars (\$5).**

(b) The fee for each additional license plate under IC 9-32-6-5 for a manufacturer or dealer of motorcycles is seven dollars and fifty cents (\$7.50). **There is an additional service**

charge of two dollars and fifty cents (\$2.50).

(c) Fees collected under this section shall be deposited as set forth in section 14(b) of this chapter.

(d) Service charges collected under this section shall be deposited in the crossroads 2000 fund.

SECTION 152. IC 9-29-17-4, AS ADDED BY P.L.92-2013, SECTION 74, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 4. (a) The fee for the issuance of an interim dealer license plate under IC 9-32-6-11 is three dollars (\$3). **There is an additional service charge of two dollars (\$2).**

(b) Fees collected under subsection (a) shall be deposited as set forth in section 14(c) of this chapter.

(c) Service charges collected under this section shall be deposited in the crossroads 2000 fund.

SECTION 153. IC 9-29-17-11, AS ADDED BY P.L.92-2013, SECTION 74, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 11. The fee for a business name or location change under IC 9-32-11-6 is five dollars (\$5). ~~The fees collected shall be deposited as set forth in IC 9-32-7-3. The secretary of state shall retain the fees collected.~~

SECTION 154. IC 9-29-17-14, AS ADDED BY P.L.92-2013, SECTION 74, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 14. (a) Except as otherwise provided in ~~subsection (b); subsection (c); and IC 9-29-1-2;~~ **subsections (b) and (c)**, registration fees collected under IC 9-32 and fees collected under section 7 of this chapter shall be paid into the state general fund for credit to the motor vehicle highway account under IC 8-14-1.

(b) Fees collected under this chapter for license plates issued under IC 9-32-6 by the secretary of state shall be deposited as follows:

(1) The following shall be deposited in the dealer compliance account established by IC 9-32-7-1:

(A) Thirty percent (30%) of the fees collected for license plates issued under IC 9-32-6, except for license plates issued under IC 9-32-6-2(b).

(B) One hundred percent (100%) of the fees collected for license plates issued under IC 9-32-6-2(b).

(2) Seventy percent (70%) of the fees collected for license plates issued under IC 9-32-6, except for license plates issued under IC 9-32-6-2(b), shall be deposited in the motor vehicle highway account.

(c) Notwithstanding subsection (b), fees collected under this chapter for interim license plates issued under IC 9-32-6-11 by the secretary of state shall be deposited as follows:

(1) ~~Sixty-six and seven-tenths percent (66.7%)~~ **Forty percent (40%)** to the crossroads 2000 fund established by IC 8-14-10-9.

(2) ~~Thirty percent (30%)~~ **Forty-nine percent (49%)** to the dealer compliance account established by IC 9-32-7-1.

(3) ~~Three and three-tenths percent (3.3%)~~ **Eleven percent (11%)** to the motor vehicle highway account under IC 8-14-1.

SECTION 155. IC 9-29-17-16 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A **NEW SECTION TO READ AS**

FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: **Sec. 16. (a) The fee to obtain a dealer plate under IC 9-31-3-19 is ten dollars (\$10).**

(b) The fee is retained by the secretary of state.

SECTION 156. IC 9-30-10-18, AS AMENDED BY HEA 1279-2014, SECTION 145, AND AS AMENDED BY HEA 1343-2014, SECTION 84, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 18. (a) In a criminal action brought under section 16 or 17 of this chapter, it is a defense that the operation of a motor vehicle was necessary to save life or limb in an extreme emergency. The defendant must bear the burden of proof by a preponderance of the evidence to establish this defense.

(b) In an action brought under section 16 or 17 or ~~17-5~~ of this chapter, it is a defense that the defendant was operating a Class B motor driven cycle, unless the defendant was operating the Class B motor driven cycle in violation of IC 9-21-11-12. The defendant must bear the burden of proof by a preponderance of the evidence to establish this defense.

SECTION 157. IC 9-31-3-13 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 13. The bureau shall charge and collect the fee provided under IC 9-29-15-5 for the reissuance of a certificate of registration if:

- (1) the original certificate has been lost or destroyed;
- (2) **a duplicate certificate is needed;** or
- (3) **an amendment or** a correction is needed to the registration information.

SECTION 158. IC 9-32-3-3 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A **NEW SECTION** TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE UPON PASSAGE]: **Sec. 3. (a) Notwithstanding any other law or rules, and not later than October 1, 2014, the secretary shall adopt emergency rules under IC 4-22-2-37.1 to do the following:**

- (1) **Eliminate dealer-wholesale license plates and wholesale dealer licenses.**
- (2) **Administer the transition process from wholesale dealer to dealer.**

(b) This section expires July 1, 2015.

SECTION 159. IC 9-32-16-1, AS AMENDED BY SEA 24-2014, SECTION 49, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 1. (a) This chapter shall be administered by the secretary.

(b) The secretary:

- (1) shall employ employees, including a director, investigators, or attorneys, necessary for the administration of this article; and
- (2) shall fix the compensation of the employees with the approval of the budget agency.

(c) It is unlawful for the director or an officer, employee, or designee of the secretary to use for personal benefit or the benefit of others records or other information obtained by or filed with the dealer services division under this article that are confidential. This article does not authorize the director or an officer, employee, or designee of the secretary to disclose the record or information, except in accordance with this chapter.

(d) This article does not create or diminish a privilege or exemption that exists at common law, by statute or rule, or otherwise.

(e) The secretary may develop and implement dealer's and vehicle purchaser's education initiatives to inform dealers and the public about the offer or sale of vehicles, with particular emphasis on the prevention and detection of fraud involving vehicle sales. In developing and implementing these initiatives, the secretary may collaborate with public and nonprofit organizations with an interest in consumer education. The secretary may accept a grant or donation from a person that is not affiliated with the dealer industry or from a nonprofit organization, regardless of whether the organization is affiliated with the dealer industry, to develop and implement consumer education initiatives. This subsection does not authorize the secretary to require participation or monetary contributions of a registrant in an education program.

(f) Fees and funds accruing from the administration of this article:

- (1) described in IC 9-32-7-1(d) shall be accounted for by the secretary and shall be deposited with the treasurer of state to be deposited in the dealer compliance account established by IC 9-32-7-1(a);
- (2) described in IC 9-32-7-2(b) shall be accounted for by the secretary and shall be deposited with the treasurer of state to be deposited in the dealer enforcement account established by IC 9-32-7-2(a);
- (3) described in IC 9-29-17-14(b)(2), ~~IC 9-29-17-14(c)(2)~~, **IC 9-29-17-14(c)(3)**, IC 9-29-17-15, and IC 9-32-7-3(2) shall be accounted for by the secretary and shall be deposited with the treasurer of state to be deposited in the motor vehicle highway account under IC 8-14-1;
- (4) described in IC 9-32-7-3(3) shall be accounted for by the secretary and shall be deposited with the treasurer of state to be deposited with the state police department, and these fees and funds are continuously appropriated to the department for its use in enforcing odometer laws;
- (5) described in IC 9-32-7-3(4) shall be accounted for by the secretary and shall be deposited with the treasurer of state to be deposited with the attorney general, and these fees and funds are continuously appropriated to the attorney general for use in enforcing odometer laws; and
- (6) described in IC 9-29-1-4(a) (**before its amendment January 1, 2015**) shall be accounted for by the secretary and shall be deposited with the treasurer of state to be deposited in the state police building account.

Expenses incurred in the administration of this article shall be paid from the state general fund upon appropriation being made for the expenses in the manner provided by law for the making of those appropriations. However, grants and donations under subsection (e), costs of investigations, and civil penalties recovered under this chapter shall be deposited by the treasurer of state in the dealer enforcement account established by IC 9-32-7-2. The funds in the dealer compliance account established by IC 9-32-7-1 must be available, with the approval of the budget agency, to augment and supplement the funds appropriated for the administration of this article.

(g) In connection with the administration and enforcement of this article, the attorney general shall render all necessary assistance to the director upon the request of the director. To that

end, the attorney general shall employ legal and other professional services as are necessary to adequately and fully perform the service under the direction of the director as the demands of the division require. Expenses incurred by the attorney general for the purposes stated under this subsection are chargeable against and shall be paid out of funds appropriated to the attorney general for the administration of the attorney general's office. The attorney general may authorize the director and the director's designee to represent the director and the division in any proceeding involving enforcement or defense of this article.

(h) The secretary, director, and employees of the division are not liable in an individual capacity, except to the state, for an act done or omitted in connection with the performance of their duties under this article.

(i) The director and each attorney or investigator designated by the secretary:

- (1) are police officers of the state;
- (2) have all the powers and duties of police officers in conducting investigations for violations of this article, or in serving any process, notice, or order issued by an officer, authority, or court in connection with the enforcement of this article; and
- (3) comprise the enforcement department of the division.

The division is a criminal justice agency for purposes of IC 5-2-4-1(3) and IC 10-13-3-6.

(j) The provisions of this article delegating and granting power to the secretary, division, and director shall be liberally construed to the end that:

- (1) the practice or commission of fraud may be prohibited and prevented; and
- (2) disclosure of sufficient and reliable information in order to afford reasonable opportunity for the exercise of independent judgment of the persons involved may be assured.

(k) Copies of any statements and documents filed in the office of the secretary and of any records of the secretary certified by the director are admissible in any prosecution, action, suit, or proceeding based on, arising out of, or under this article to the same effect as the original of the statement, document, or record would be if actually produced.

SECTION 160. IC 35-51-9-1, AS AMENDED BY P.L.262-2013, SECTION 143, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015]: Sec. 1. The following statutes define crimes in IC 9:

- IC 9-14-3.5-15 (Concerning bureau of motor vehicles).
- IC 9-14-5-9 (Concerning parking placards for persons with physical disabilities).
- IC 9-17-2-15 (Concerning certificates of title).
- IC 9-17-2-16 (Concerning certificates of title).
- IC 9-17-3-3.2 (Concerning certificates of title).
- IC 9-17-3-7 (Concerning certificates of title).
- IC 9-17-4-14 (Concerning special identification numbers).
- IC 9-17-4-15 (Concerning special identification numbers).
- IC 9-17-4-16 (Concerning special identification numbers).
- IC 9-17-4-17 (Concerning identification numbers).
- IC 9-17-4-18 (Concerning identification numbers).

IC 9-18-2-42 (Concerning motor vehicle registration and license plates).

IC 9-18-2-44 (Concerning motor vehicle registration and license plates).

IC 9-18-2-45 (Concerning motor vehicle registration and license plates).

IC 9-18-2.5-16 (Concerning off-road vehicles and snowmobiles).

IC 9-18-4-8 (Concerning motor vehicle registration and license plates).

IC 9-18-13-9 (Concerning motor vehicle registration and license plates).

IC 9-18-19-4 (Concerning vehicle registration and license plates).

IC 9-18-22-6 (Concerning motor vehicle registration and license plates).

IC 9-19-9-5 (Concerning motor vehicle equipment).

IC 9-19-10.5-4 (Concerning motor vehicle equipment).

IC 9-19-10.5-5 (Concerning motor vehicle equipment).

IC 9-20-18-4 (Concerning motor vehicle size and weight regulation).

IC 9-21-5-13 (Concerning traffic regulation).

IC 9-21-6-3 (Concerning traffic regulation).

IC 9-21-8-50 (Concerning traffic regulation).

IC 9-21-8-52 (Concerning traffic regulation).

IC 9-21-8-55 (Concerning traffic regulation).

IC 9-21-8-56 (Concerning traffic regulation).

IC 9-21-8-58 (Concerning traffic regulation).

IC 9-21-12-9 (Concerning traffic regulation).

IC 9-21-12-11 (Concerning traffic regulation).

IC 9-22-3-31 (Concerning abandoned, salvaged, and scrap vehicles).

IC 9-22-3-32 (Concerning abandoned, salvaged, and scrap vehicles).

IC 9-22-3-33 (Concerning abandoned, salvaged, and scrap vehicles).

IC 9-22-5-18.2 (Concerning buying a motor vehicle without a certificate of title).

IC 9-22-5-19 (Concerning scrapping and dismantling vehicles).

IC 9-22-6-3 (Concerning mechanic's liens for vehicles).

IC 9-24-1-8 (Concerning driver's licenses).

IC 9-24-6-16 (Concerning driver's licenses).

IC 9-24-6-17 (Concerning driver's licenses).

IC 9-24-11-8 (Concerning driver's licenses).

IC 9-24-15-11 (Concerning driver's licenses).

IC 9-24-16-12 (Concerning driver's licenses).

IC 9-24-16-13 (Concerning driver's licenses).

IC 9-24-18-1 (Concerning driver's licenses).

IC 9-24-18-2 (Concerning driver's licenses).

IC 9-24-18-7 (Concerning driver's licenses).

IC 9-24-19-2 (Concerning driver's licenses).

IC 9-24-19-3 (Concerning driver's licenses).

IC 9-24-19-4 (Concerning driver's licenses).

IC 9-25-6-18 (Concerning financial responsibility).

IC 9-25-8-2 (Concerning financial responsibility).

IC 9-26-1-8 (Concerning accidents and accident reports).

IC 9-26-1-9 (Concerning accidents and accident reports).

IC 9-26-6-4 (Concerning accidents and accident reports).
 IC 9-30-4-7 (Concerning licenses and registrations).
 IC 9-30-4-8 (Concerning licenses and registrations).
 IC 9-30-4-13 (Concerning licenses and registrations).
 IC 9-30-5-1 (Concerning operating a vehicle while intoxicated).
 IC 9-30-5-2 (Concerning operating a vehicle while intoxicated).
 IC 9-30-5-3 (Concerning operating a vehicle while intoxicated).
 IC 9-30-5-4 (Concerning operating a vehicle while intoxicated).
 IC 9-30-5-5 (Concerning operating a vehicle while intoxicated).
 IC 9-30-5-7 (Concerning operating a vehicle while intoxicated).
 IC 9-30-5-8 (Concerning operating a vehicle while intoxicated).
 IC 9-30-6-8.7 (Concerning implied consent).
 IC 9-30-9-7.5 (Concerning alcohol abuse deterrent programs).
 IC 9-30-10-16 (Concerning habitual violator of traffic laws).
 IC 9-30-10-17 (Concerning habitual violator of traffic laws).
 IC 9-30-10-17.5 (Concerning habitual violator of traffic laws).
 IC 9-31-2-26 (Concerning watercraft titling and registration).
 IC 9-31-2-27 (Concerning watercraft titling and registration).
 IC 9-31-2-28 (Concerning watercraft titling and registration).
 IC 9-32-17-2 (Concerning certificates of title).
 IC 9-32-17-3 (Concerning dealer license plates).
 IC 9-32-17-4 (Concerning licensing of vehicle salvaging).
 IC 9-32-17-5 (Concerning regulation of vehicle merchandising).
 IC 9-32-17-6 (Concerning unfair practices by dealers).

SECTION 161. [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015] (a) The following rules are void:

140 IAC 8-3-3 (forms service charge)
140 IAC 8-3-4 (speed title service charge)
140 IAC 8-3-5 (duplicate or corrected registration service charges)
140 IAC 8-3-8 (vehicle registration service charge)
140 IAC 8-3-9 (operator's license service charge)
140 IAC 8-3-11 (excise tax collection service charges)
140 IAC 8-3-12 (title service charges and fees)
140 IAC 8-3-13 (delinquent title service charge)
140 IAC 8-3-15 (transfer of vehicle registration service charge)
140 IAC 8-3-16 (miscellaneous special license plate service charge)
140 IAC 8-3-17 (civic event license plate fee and service charge)
140 IAC 8-3-18 (additional service charge for permits and licenses)

140 IAC 8-3-19 (commercial driver's license service charge)
140 IAC 8-3-20 (identification card service charge)
140 IAC 8-3-21 (duplicate or replacement license plate service charge increase)
140 IAC 8-3-22 (duplicate title service charge increase)
140 IAC 8-3-23 (watercraft certificate of title service charge)
140 IAC 8-3-24 (late application for watercraft certificate of title service charge)
140 IAC 8-3-25 (hull identification number service charge)
140 IAC 8-3-26 (delinquent registration service charge)
140 IAC 8-3-27 (delinquent license renewal service charge)
140 IAC 8-3-28 (transactions service charge)
140 IAC 8-3-30 (commercial driver's license fees)
140 IAC 8-4-1 (vehicle certificate of title fee increase)
140 IAC 8-4-2 (passenger motor vehicle registration fee increase)
140 IAC 8-4-3 (motorcycle registration fee increase)
140 IAC 8-4-4 (truck or tractor registration fee increase)
140 IAC 8-4-5 (trailer used with motor vehicle fee increase)
140 IAC 8-4-6 (semitrailer used with tractor registration fee increase)
140 IAC 8-4-7 (bus registration fee increase)
140 IAC 8-4-8 (special machinery registration fee increase)
140 IAC 8-4-9 (qualified IC 9-29-5-13 farm vehicle fee increase)
140 IAC 8-4-10 (manufacturer or dealer license plate fee increase)
140 IAC 8-4-11 (motorcycle manufacturer or dealer license plate fee increase)
140 IAC 8-4-12 (transport operator fee increase)
140 IAC 8-4-13 (duplicate or replacement license plate fee increase)
140 IAC 8-4-14 (recreational vehicle registration fee increase)
140 IAC 8-4-15 (farm tractor used in transportation fee increase)
140 IAC 8-4-16 (temporary registration fee increase)
140 IAC 8-4-17 (special motor vehicle identification number fee increase)
140 IAC 8-4-18 (transfer of vehicle registration fee increase)
140 IAC 8-4-19 (recovery vehicle registration fee increase)
140 IAC 8-4-20 (personalized license plate registration fee increase)
140 IAC 8-4-21 (amateur radio operator license plate fee increase)
140 IAC 8-4-22 (civic event license plate fee increase)
140 IAC 8-4-23 (special group recognition license plate fee increase)
140 IAC 8-4-24 (interim dealer or manufacturer

transport license plate fee increase)
 140 IAC 8-4-25 (permit or license fee increase)
 140 IAC 8-4-26 (motorcycle endorsement fee increase)
 140 IAC 8-4-27 (watercraft certificate of title fee increase)
 140 IAC 8-4-28 (hull identification number fee increase)
 140 IAC 8-4-29 (late application for watercraft certificate of title fee increase)
 140 IAC 8-4-30 (watercraft registration fee increase).

The publisher of the Indiana Administrative Code and Indiana Register shall remove these provisions from the Indiana Administrative Code.

(b) A rule that the bureau of motor vehicles determines is contrary to this act is void. The bureau of motor vehicles shall submit a statement to the publisher of the Indiana Administrative Code and Indiana Register under IC 4-22-7-7 indicating which rules the bureau determines are contrary to this act and void. These rules, if any, are void effective thirty (30) days after submission of the statement. The bureau of motor vehicles must make the determination under this subsection not later than August 31, 2015.

(c) This SECTION expires December 31, 2015.

SECTION 162. [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015] (a) This act applies to transactions under IC 9 that occur after December 31, 2014.

(b) This SECTION expires December 31, 2015.

SECTION 163. [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015] (a) The general assembly recognizes that HEA 1343-2014 amends IC 9-24-8-6 and that HEA 1279-2014 repeals that section. The general assembly intends to repeal IC 9-24-8-6.

(b) The general assembly recognizes that HEA 1279-2014 amends IC 9-29-1-2 and that this act repeals that section. The general assembly intends to repeal IC 9-29-1-2.

(c) The general assembly recognizes that:

- (1) HEA 1019-2014 amends IC 9-29-3-19;
- (2) HEA 1343-2014 amends IC 9-29-3-10 and IC 9-29-3-11; and
- (3) this act repeals IC 9-29-3.

The general assembly intends to repeal IC 9-29-3.

(d) The general assembly recognizes that SEA 24-2014 amends IC 9-29-5-43 and that this act repeals that section. The general assembly intends to repeal IC 9-29-5-43.

(e) The general assembly recognizes that HEA 1343-2014 amends IC 9-30-10-9 and that HEA 1279-2014 repeals that section. The general assembly intends to repeal IC 9-30-10-9.

(f) The general assembly recognizes that HEA 1343-2014 amends IC 9-30-10-13 and that HEA 1279-2014 repeals that section. The general assembly intends to repeal IC 9-30-10-13.

(g) The general assembly recognizes that HEA 1343-2014 amends IC 9-30-10-15 and that HEA 1279-2014 repeals that section. The general assembly intends to repeal IC 9-30-10-15.

(h) The general assembly recognizes that HEA 1343-2014 amends IC 9-30-10-17.5 and that HEA 1279-2014 repeals that section. The general assembly intends to repeal IC 9-30-10-17.5.

SECTION 164. An emergency is declared for this act.

(Reference is to EHB 1237 as printed February 19, 2014.)

Soliday, Chair	Wyss
Smaltz	Arnold
House Conferees	Senate Conferees

Roll Call 400: yeas 37, nays 8. Report adopted.

CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT EHB 1323-1

Madam President: Your Conference Committee appointed to confer with a like committee from the House upon Engrossed Senate Amendments to Engrossed House Bill 1323 respectfully reports that said two committees have conferred and agreed as follows to wit:

that the House recede from its dissent from all Senate amendments and that the House now concur in all Senate amendments to the bill and that the bill be further amended as follows:

Delete everything after the enacting clause and insert the following:

SECTION 1. IC 21-44.5 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A NEW ARTICLE TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE UPON PASSAGE]:

ARTICLE 44.5. EPINEPHRINE ADMINISTRATION PROGRAM

Chapter 1. Definitions

Sec. 1. The definitions in this chapter apply throughout this article.

Sec. 2. "Licensed campus medical professional" means any of the following individuals who are employed by or have contracted with a postsecondary educational institution and are designated by the postsecondary educational institution to serve in such a capacity under IC 21-44.5-2-2(b):

- (1) A physician licensed under IC 25-22.5.
- (2) A physician assistant licensed under IC 25-27.5.
- (3) An advanced practice nurse or registered nurse who is licensed under IC 25-23.

Sec. 3. "Member of the campus community" refers to an individual who is a student, faculty member, or staff member of a postsecondary educational institution.

Sec. 4. "Trained designee" means a member of the campus community trained by a licensed campus medical professional in the emergency administration of auto-injectable epinephrine.

Chapter 2. Emergency Administration of Epinephrine Policies and Guidelines

Sec. 1. A postsecondary educational institution may develop a policy in accordance with this chapter and guidelines issued under section 4 of this chapter for the emergency administration of auto-injectable epinephrine to a member of the campus community for anaphylaxis when a medical professional is not available.

Sec. 2. (a) A policy described in section 1 of this chapter must include the following:

- (1) Permission for a trained designee to do the following:

(A) Under the guidance of a licensed campus medical professional, administer auto-injectable epinephrine

to a member of the campus community for anaphylaxis when a licensed campus medical professional is unavailable.

(B) When responsible for the safety of at least one (1) member of the campus community, carry in a secure but accessible location a supply of auto-injectable epinephrine that is prescribed under a standing protocol from a health care provider who is licensed in Indiana and whose scope of practice includes the prescribing of medication.

(2) Provisions that a licensed campus medical professional has responsibility for training designees in the following:

(A) The administration of auto-injectable epinephrine.

(B) Identification of an anaphylactic reaction and indications for when to use epinephrine.

(b) Each postsecondary educational institution that develops a policy under this chapter shall designate a licensed campus medical professional.

(c) A licensed campus medical professional may do the following:

(1) Establish and administer a standardized training protocol for the emergency administration of epinephrine by trained designees.

(2) Ensure that trained designees have satisfactorily completed the training protocol.

(3) Obtain a supply of auto-injectable epinephrine under a standing protocol from a physician licensed under IC 25-22.5.

(4) Control distribution to trained designees of auto-injectable epinephrine.

Sec. 3. An individual must meet the following requirements in order to be a trained designee:

(1) Be at least eighteen (18) years of age.

(2) Have, or reasonably expect to have, responsibility for at least one (1) other member of the campus community as a result of the individual's employment.

(3) Have satisfactorily completed the standardized training protocol established and administered by a licensed campus medical professional in accordance with guidelines developed under section 4 of this chapter.

Sec. 4. The state department of health, in consultation with the commission for higher education, shall establish guidelines for the development of a policy by a postsecondary educational institution for the emergency administration of epinephrine to a member of the campus community for anaphylaxis when a medical professional is unavailable. In the emergency administration of epinephrine, the guidelines must address the responsibilities of the following:

(1) The postsecondary educational institution.

(2) The licensed campus medical professional.

(3) The trained designee.

Sec. 5. (a) A postsecondary educational institution may fill a prescription for auto-injectable epinephrine and store the auto-injectable epinephrine on the campus if a health care provider who is licensed in Indiana and whose scope of

practice includes the prescribing of medication writes the prescription for auto-injectable epinephrine for the postsecondary educational institution.

(b) The postsecondary educational institution shall store the auto-injectable epinephrine in a safe location in which only postsecondary educational institution personnel have access.

(c) A health care provider who is licensed in Indiana and whose scope of practice includes the prescribing of medication may write a prescription, drug order, or protocol for auto-injectable epinephrine for the postsecondary educational institution.

(d) A pharmacist licensed under IC 25-26 may dispense a valid prescription, drug order, or protocol for auto-injectable epinephrine issued in the name of a postsecondary educational institution.

Sec. 6. (a) A licensed campus medical professional who acts in accordance with this chapter is not liable for civil damages for any act or omission committed in accordance with this chapter unless the act or omission constitutes gross negligence or willful or wanton misconduct.

(b) A trained designee who administers auto-injectable epinephrine in accordance with this chapter is not liable for civil damages resulting from the administration of auto-injectable epinephrine under this chapter unless the act or omission constitutes gross negligence or willful or wanton misconduct.

(c) A licensed health care provider who writes a prescription, drug order, or protocol under this chapter is not liable for civil damages resulting from the administration of auto-injectable epinephrine under this chapter unless the act or omission constitutes gross negligence or willful or wanton misconduct.

Sec. 7. Nothing in this chapter may be construed to:

(1) permit a trained designee to perform the duties or fill the position of a licensed campus medical professional;

(2) prohibit the administration of a pre-filled auto-injector of epinephrine by a person acting under a lawful prescription; or

(3) prevent a licensed and qualified member of a health care profession from acting within the individual's scope of practice in administering auto-injectable epinephrine.

SECTION 2. IC 34-30-2-86.4 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A NEW SECTION TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE UPON PASSAGE]: Sec. 86.4. IC 21-44.5-2-6 (Concerning licensed campus medical professionals, trained designees, and licensed health care providers and the administration of auto-injectable epinephrine).

SECTION 3. An emergency is declared for this act.

(Reference is to EHB 1323 as printed February 14, 2014.)

Ober, Chair	Patricia Miller
V. Smith	Randolph
House Conferees	Senate Conferees

Roll Call 401: yeas 45, nays 0. Report adopted.

MESSAGE FROM THE HOUSE

Madam President: I am directed by the House to inform the Senate that the House has reconsidered its dissent on the Senate amendments to Engrossed House Bill 1403 and has now concurred in those amendments.

M. CAROLINE SPOTTS
Principal Clerk of the House

MESSAGE FROM THE HOUSE

Madam President: I am directed by the House to inform the Senate that the House has adopted conference committee report 1 on Engrossed Senate Bills 233 and 308.

M. CAROLINE SPOTTS
Principal Clerk of the House

MESSAGE FROM THE HOUSE

Madam President: I am directed by the House to inform the Senate that the House has passed Senate Concurrent Resolutions 17, 22, 35, 37, 38, 39, 45, 48, 49, and 50 and the same are herewith returned to the Senate.

M. CAROLINE SPOTTS
Principal Clerk of the House

MESSAGE FROM THE HOUSE

Madam President: I am directed by the House to inform the Senate that the House has adopted conference committee report 1 on Engrossed Senate Bill 255.

M. CAROLINE SPOTTS
Principal Clerk of the House

MESSAGE FROM THE HOUSE

Madam President: I am directed by the House to inform the Senate that the House has passed Senate Concurrent Resolutions 19, 51, and 52 and the same are herewith returned to the Senate.

M. CAROLINE SPOTTS
Principal Clerk of the House

MESSAGE FROM THE HOUSE

Madam President: I am directed by the House to inform the Senate that the House has adopted conference committee report 1 on Engrossed House Bills 1141, 1237, and 1361.

M. CAROLINE SPOTTS
Principal Clerk of the House

JOINT RULE 20 COMMITTEE REPORTS

COMMITTEE REPORT

Madam President: Pursuant to Joint Rule 20, your Committee on Rules and Legislative Procedure, to which was referred Engrossed Senate Bill 343-2014 because it conflicts with SEA 227-2014 without properly recognizing the existence of SEA 227-2014, has had Engrossed Senate Bill 343-2014 under consideration and begs leave to report back to the Senate with the

recommendation that Engrossed Senate Bill 343-2014 be corrected as follows:

Page 10, line 39, delete "P.L.77-2012," and insert "SEA 227-2014, SECTION 7,".

Page 10, line 40, delete "SECTION 18,".

Page 11, between lines 11 and 12, begin a new line block indented and insert:

"(5) Standards for distribution, administration, use, and training in the use of an overdose intervention drug."

Page 11, line 12, delete "(5)" and insert "(6)".

(Reference is to ESB 343 as reprinted February 28, 2014.)

LONG, Chair
LANANE, R.M.M.
LANANE

Report adopted.

COMMITTEE REPORT

Madam President: Pursuant to Joint Rule 20, your Committee on Rules and Legislative Procedure, to which was referred Engrossed Senate Bill 334-2014 because it conflicts with HEA 1245-2014 without properly recognizing the existence of HEA 1245-2014, has had Engrossed Senate Bill 334-2014 under consideration and begs leave to report back to the Senate with the recommendation that Engrossed Senate Bill 334-2014 be corrected as follows:

Page 1, line 1, delete "P.L.13-2013," and insert "HEA 1245-2014, SECTION 2,".

Page 1, line 2, delete "SECTION 65,".

Page 3, line 22, after "Subsidiaries" insert "that are not licensed under this article and".

Page 6, line 28, delete "P.L.216-2013," and insert "HEA 1245-2014, SECTION 4,".

Page 6, line 29, delete "SECTION 3,".

Page 7, line 2, delete "licensed" and insert "licensed".

(Reference is to ESB 334 as printed February 21, 2014.)

LONG, Chair
LANANE, R.M.M.
WALKER

Report adopted.

COMMITTEE REPORT

Madam President: Pursuant to Joint Rule 20, your Committee on Rules and Legislative Procedure, to which was referred Engrossed House Bill 1279-2014 because it conflicts with Senate Enrolled Act 24-2014 without properly recognizing the existence of SEA 24-2014, has had EHB 1279-2014 under consideration and begs leave to report back to the Senate with the recommendation that EHB 1279-2014 be corrected as follows:

Page 73, line 12, delete "P.L.207-2013,".

Page 73, delete lines 13 through 14.

Page 73, line 15, delete "AND" and insert "SEA 24-2014, SECTION 46, IS".

(Reference is to EHB 1279 as reprinted March 4, 2014.)

LONG, Chair
LANANE, R.M.M.
M. YOUNG

Report adopted.

COMMITTEE REPORT

Madam President: Pursuant to Joint Rule 20, your Committee on Rules and Legislative Procedure, to which was referred Engrossed House Bill 1290-2014 because it conflicts with Senate Enrolled Act 31-2014 without properly recognizing the existence of SEA 31-2014, has had EHB 1290-2014 under consideration and begs leave to report back to the Senate with the recommendation that EHB 1290-2014 be corrected as follows:

Page 8, delete lines 3 through 42, begin a new paragraph and insert:

"SECTION 5. IC 25-0.5-1-2.5 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A NEW SECTION TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2014]: **Sec. 2.5. IC 25-1-1.1-4 applies to an individual licensed or certified under IC 25-5.1 (athletic trainers).**"

Delete page 9.

Renumber all SECTIONS consecutively.

(Reference is to EHB 1290 as reprinted March 4, 2014.)

LONG, Chair
LANANE, R.M.M.
KRUSE

Report adopted.

COMMITTEE REPORT

Madam President: Pursuant to Joint Rule 20, your Committee on Rules and Legislative Procedure, to which was referred Engrossed House Bill 1253-2014 because it conflicts with House Enrolled Act 1190-2014 without properly recognizing the existence of HEA 1190-2014, has had EHB 1253-2014 under consideration and begs leave to report back to the Senate with the recommendation that EHB 1253-2014 be corrected as follows:

Page 1, line 15, delete "IC 16-21-11," and insert "**IC 16-21-11.2,**"

Page 2, line 7, delete "IC 16-21-11," and insert "**IC 16-21-11.2,**"

Page 2, line 8, delete "IC 16-21-11-1." and insert "**IC 16-21-11.2-1.**"

Page 2, line 12, delete "IC 16-21-11" and insert "IC 16-21-11.2".

Page 2, line 15, delete "11." and insert "**11.2.**"

Page 6, line 6, delete "IC 16-21-11-5" and insert "**IC 16-21-11.2-5**".

Page 6, line 13, delete "(IC 16-21-11," and insert "**(IC 16-21-11.2,**"

Page 6, line 19, delete "(IC 16-21-11," and insert "**(IC 16-21-11.2,**"

Page 6, line 23, delete "(IC 16-21-11," and insert "**(IC 16-21-11.2,**"

(Reference is to EHB 1253 as printed February 14, 2014.)

LONG, Chair
LANANE, R.M.M.
PATRICIA MILLER

Report adopted.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Randolph be added as

coauthor of Senate Resolution 13.

WATERMAN

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Randolph be added as coauthor of Senate Resolution 59.

WATERMAN

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Randolph be added as coauthor of Senate Resolution 55.

STEELE

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Zakas be added as coauthor of Senate Bill 354.

PAUL

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senators Randolph, Broden, Skinner, Taylor, Breaux, and Lanane be added as coauthors of Senate Resolution 61.

STEELE

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that the Senate rescind its action whereby it adopted the Motion to Dissent on Engrossed Senate Bill 118 and that said Motion be withdrawn.

PETE MILLER

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senators Alting, Arnold, Banks, Becker, Boots, Bray, Breaux, Broden, Buck, Charbonneau, Crider, Eckerty, Glick, Grooms, Head, Hershman, Holdman, Hume, Kenley, Kruse, Lanane, Landske, Leising, Long, Merritt, Patricia Miller, Pete Miller, Mishler, Mrvan, Nugent, Paul, Randolph, Rogers, Schneider, Skinner, Smith, Steele, Stoops, Tallian, Taylor, Tomes, Walker, Waltz, Waterman, Wyss, Yoder, M. Young, R. Young, and Zakas be added as coauthors of Senate Concurrent Resolution 50.

DELPH

Motion prevailed.

3:12 p.m.

The Chair declared a recess until the fall of the gavel.

RECESS

The Senate reconvened at 5:10 p.m., with the President of the Senate in the Chair.

**MOTIONS TO CONCUR
IN HOUSE AMENDMENTS**

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that the Senate do concur with the House amendments to Engrossed Senate Bill 350.

WYSS

Roll Call 402: yeas 28, nays 20. Motion prevailed.

CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORTS

CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

EHB 1020-1

Madam President: Your Conference Committee appointed to confer with a like committee from the House upon Engrossed Senate Amendments to Engrossed House Bill 1020 respectfully reports that said two committees have conferred and agreed as follows to wit:

that the House recede from its dissent from all Senate amendments and that the House now concur in all Senate amendments to the bill and that the bill be further amended as follows:

Page 5, delete lines 26 through 42.

Delete pages 6 through 53.

(Reference is to EHB 1020 as printed February 19, 2014.)

Koch, Chair	Hershman
Austin	Broden
House Conferees	Senate Conferees

Roll Call 403: yeas 48, nays 0. Report adopted.

CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

EHB 1346-1

Madam President: Your Conference Committee appointed to confer with a like committee from the House upon Engrossed Senate Amendments to Engrossed House Bill 1346 respectfully reports that said two committees have conferred and agreed as follows to wit:

that the House recede from its dissent from all Senate amendments and that the House now concur in all Senate amendments to the bill and that the bill be further amended as follows:

Delete the title and insert the following:

A BILL FOR AN ACT to amend the Indiana Code concerning local government.

Delete everything after the enacting clause and insert the following:

SECTION 1. IC 3-5-2-22 IS AMENDED TO READ AS

FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE UPON PASSAGE]: Sec. 22. "Executive" means **the:**

(1) board of county commissioners, for a county **not having that:**

(A) does not have a consolidated city; and

(B) is not subject to IC 36-2-2.5;

(2) single county executive elected under IC 3-10-2-13, for a county that:

(A) does not have a consolidated city; and

(B) is subject to IC 36-2-2.5;

~~(2)~~ (3) mayor of the consolidated city, for a county having a consolidated city;

~~(3)~~ (4) mayor, for a city;

~~(4)~~ (5) president of the town council, for a town; or

~~(5)~~ (6) trustee, for a township.

SECTION 2. IC 3-8-1-21 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE UPON PASSAGE]: Sec. 21. **(a)** A candidate for the office of county commissioner must:

(1) have resided in the county for at least one (1) year before the election, as provided in Article 6, Section 4 of the Constitution of the State of Indiana; and

(2) have resided in the district in which seeking election, if applicable, for at least six (6) months before the election.

(b) This subsection applies only to elections in a county in which a single county executive under IC 36-2-2.5 is elected under IC 3-10-2-13. A candidate for the office of single county executive must have resided in the county for at least one (1) year before the election, as provided in Article 6, Section 4 of the Constitution of the State of Indiana.

SECTION 3. IC 3-10-1-19, AS AMENDED BY P.L.6-2012, SECTION 8, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE UPON PASSAGE]: Sec. 19. (a) The ballot for a primary election shall be printed in substantially the following form for all the offices for which candidates have qualified under IC 3-8:

OFFICIAL PRIMARY BALLOT

_____ Party

For paper ballots, print: To vote for a person, make a voting mark (X or ✓) on or in the box before the person's name in the proper column. For optical scan ballots, print: To vote for a person, darken or shade in the circle, oval, or square (or draw a line to connect the arrow) that precedes the person's name in the proper column. For optical scan ballots that do not contain a candidate's name, print: To vote for a person, darken or shade in the oval that precedes the number assigned to the person's name in the proper column. For electronic voting systems, print: To vote for a person, touch the screen (or press the button) in the location indicated.

Vote for one (1) only

Representative in Congress

(1) AB _____

(2) CD _____

(3) EF _____

(4) GH _____

(b) Local public questions shall be placed on the primary election ballot after the voting instructions described in subsection (a) and before the offices described in subsection (c).

(c) The local public questions described in subsection (b) shall be placed:

- (1) in a separate column on the ballot if voting is by paper ballot;
- (2) after the voting instructions described in subsection (a) and before the offices described in subsection (e), in the form specified in IC 3-11-13-11 if voting is by ballot card; or
- (3) as provided by either of the following if voting is by an electronic voting system:

- (A) On a separate screen for a public question.
- (B) After the voting instructions described in subsection (a) and before the offices described in subsection (e), in the form specified in IC 3-11-14-3.5.

(d) A public question shall be placed on the primary election ballot in the following form:

(The explanatory text for the public question,
if required by law.)

"Shall (insert public question)?"

- YES
- NO

(e) The offices with candidates for nomination shall be placed on the primary election ballot in the following order:

- (1) Federal and state offices:
 - (A) President of the United States.
 - (B) United States Senator.
 - (C) Governor.
 - (D) United States Representative.
- (2) Legislative offices:
 - (A) State senator.
 - (B) State representative.
- (3) Circuit offices and county judicial offices:
 - (A) Judge of the circuit court, and unless otherwise specified under IC 33, with each division separate if there is more than one (1) judge of the circuit court.
 - (B) Judge of the superior court, and unless otherwise specified under IC 33, with each division separate if there is more than one (1) judge of the superior court.
 - (C) Judge of the probate court.
 - (D) Prosecuting attorney.
 - (E) Circuit court clerk.
- (4) County offices:
 - (A) County auditor.
 - (B) County recorder.
 - (C) County treasurer.
 - (D) County sheriff.
 - (E) County coroner.
 - (F) County surveyor.
 - (G) County assessor.
 - (H) County commissioner. **This clause applies only to a county that is not subject to IC 36-2-2.5.**
 - (I) **Single county executive. This clause applies only to a county that is subject to IC 36-2-2.5.**
 - (~~J~~) **(J) County council member.**
- (5) Township offices:
 - (A) Township assessor (only in a township referred to in IC 36-6-5-1(d)).
 - (B) Township trustee.

- (C) Township board member.
- (D) Judge of the small claims court.
- (E) Constable of the small claims court.

(6) City offices:

- (A) Mayor.
- (B) Clerk or clerk-treasurer.
- (C) Judge of the city court.
- (D) City-county council member or common council member.

(7) Town offices:

- (A) Clerk-treasurer.
- (B) Judge of the town court.
- (C) Town council member.

(f) The political party offices with candidates for election shall be placed on the primary election ballot in the following order after the offices described in subsection (e):

- (1) Precinct committeeman.
- (2) State convention delegate.

(g) The local offices to be elected at the primary election shall be placed on the primary election ballot after the offices described in subsection (f).

(h) The offices described in subsection (g) shall be placed:

- (1) in a separate column on the ballot if voting is by paper ballot;
- (2) after the offices described in subsection (f) in the form specified in IC 3-11-13-11 if voting is by ballot card; or
- (3) either:
 - (A) on a separate screen for each office or public question; or
 - (B) after the offices described in subsection (f) in the form specified in IC 3-11-14-3.5;
 if voting is by an electronic voting system.

SECTION 4. IC 3-10-2-13, AS AMENDED BY P.L.146-2008, SECTION 5, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE UPON PASSAGE]: Sec. 13. The following public officials shall be elected at the general election before their terms of office expire and every four (4) years thereafter:

- (1) Clerk of the circuit court.
- (2) County auditor.
- (3) County recorder.
- (4) County treasurer.
- (5) County sheriff.
- (6) County coroner.
- (7) County surveyor.
- (8) County assessor.
- (9) County commissioner. **This subdivision applies only to a county that is not subject to IC 36-2-2.5.**
- (10) Single county executive. This subdivision applies only to a county that is subject to IC 36-2-2.5.**
- ~~(11)~~ **(11) County council member.**
- ~~(12)~~ **(12) Township trustee.**
- ~~(13)~~ **(13) Township board member.**
- ~~(14)~~ **(14) Township assessor (only in a township referred to in IC 36-6-5-1(d)).**
- ~~(15)~~ **(15) Judge of a small claims court.**
- ~~(16)~~ **(16) Constable of a small claims court.**

SECTION 5. IC 3-11-2-12, AS AMENDED BY P.L.6-2012, SECTION 9, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE UPON PASSAGE]: Sec. 12. The following offices shall be placed on the general election ballot in the following order after the public questions described in section 10(a) of this chapter:

- (1) Federal and state offices:
 - (A) President and Vice President of the United States.
 - (B) United States Senator.
 - (C) Governor and lieutenant governor.
 - (D) Secretary of state.
 - (E) Auditor of state.
 - (F) Treasurer of state.
 - (G) Attorney general.
 - (H) Superintendent of public instruction.
 - (I) United States Representative.
- (2) Legislative offices:
 - (A) State senator.
 - (B) State representative.
- (3) Circuit offices and county judicial offices:
 - (A) Judge of the circuit court, and unless otherwise specified under IC 33, with each division separate if there is more than one (1) judge of the circuit court.
 - (B) Judge of the superior court, and unless otherwise specified under IC 33, with each division separate if there is more than one (1) judge of the superior court.
 - (C) Judge of the probate court.
 - (D) Prosecuting attorney.
 - (E) Clerk of the circuit court.
- (4) County offices:
 - (A) County auditor.
 - (B) County recorder.
 - (C) County treasurer.
 - (D) County sheriff.
 - (E) County coroner.
 - (F) County surveyor.
 - (G) County assessor.
 - (H) County commissioner. **This clause applies only to a county that is not subject to IC 36-2-2.5.**
 - (I) **Single county executive. This clause applies only to a county that is subject to IC 36-2-2.5.**
 - (J) County council member.
- (5) Township offices:
 - (A) Township assessor (only in a township referred to in IC 36-6-5-1(d)).
 - (B) Township trustee.
 - (C) Township board member.
 - (D) Judge of the small claims court.
 - (E) Constable of the small claims court.
- (6) City offices:
 - (A) Mayor.
 - (B) Clerk or clerk-treasurer.
 - (C) Judge of the city court.
 - (D) City-county council member or common council member.
- (7) Town offices:
 - (A) Clerk-treasurer.
 - (B) Judge of the town court.

(C) Town council member.

SECTION 6. IC 13-11-2-74 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE UPON PASSAGE]: Sec. 74. "Executive" means the:

- (1) board of commissioners of a county ~~not having that:~~
 - (A) **does not have** a consolidated city; and
 - (B) **is not subject to IC 36-2-2.5;**
- (2) **single county executive elected under IC 3-10-2-13, for a county that:**
 - (A) **does not have a consolidated city; and**
 - (B) **is subject to IC 36-2-2.5;**
- ~~(3)~~ (3) mayor of the consolidated city, for a county having a consolidated city;
- ~~(4)~~ (4) mayor of a city; or
- ~~(5)~~ (5) president of the town council of a town.

SECTION 7. IC 20-24-2.3-2, AS ADDED BY P.L.280-2013, SECTION 19, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE UPON PASSAGE]: Sec. 2. As used in this chapter, "executive" has the meaning set forth in ~~IC 36-1-2-5(2);~~ **IC 36-1-2-5(3).**

SECTION 8. IC 35-51-36-1, AS AMENDED BY P.L.132-2012, SECTION 9, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE UPON PASSAGE]: Sec. 1. The following statutes define crimes in IC 36:

- IC 36-2-2-13 (Concerning county government).
- IC 36-2-2.5-15 (Concerning single county executives).**
- IC 36-2-6-8 (Concerning county government).
- IC 36-2-6-12 (Concerning county government).
- IC 36-2-7-18 (Concerning county government).
- IC 36-2-8-6 (Concerning county government).
- IC 36-2-9-13 (Concerning county government).
- IC 36-2-9-14 (Concerning county government).
- IC 36-2-9.5-7 (Concerning county government).
- IC 36-2-9.5-9 (Concerning county government).
- IC 36-2-13-5 (Concerning county government).
- IC 36-2-14-10 (Concerning county government).
- IC 36-2-14-17 (Concerning county government).
- IC 36-2-14-21 (Concerning county government).
- IC 36-4-8-13 (Concerning government of cities and towns).
- IC 36-7-12-27.5 (Concerning planning and development).
- IC 36-7-14-40 (Concerning planning and development).
- IC 36-7-15.1-27 (Concerning planning and development).
- IC 36-7-30-28 (Concerning planning and development).
- IC 36-7-30.5-36 (Concerning planning and development).
- IC 36-8-3.5-23 (Concerning public safety).
- IC 36-8-10-9 (Concerning public safety).
- IC 36-8-16.7-41 (Concerning public safety).
- IC 36-8-16.7-45 (Concerning public safety).
- IC 36-8-16.7-46 (Concerning public safety).
- IC 36-9-14-7 (Concerning transportation and public works).
- IC 36-10-3-39 (Concerning recreation, culture, and community facilities).
- IC 36-10-4-5 (Concerning recreation, culture, and community facilities).
- IC 36-10-4-40 (Concerning recreation, culture, and community facilities).

SECTION 9. IC 36-1-2-5 IS AMENDED TO READ AS

FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE UPON PASSAGE]: Sec. 5. "Executive" means **the:**

- (1) board of commissioners, for a county ~~not having that:~~
 - (A) **does not have** a consolidated city; **and**
 - (B) **is not subject to IC 36-2-2.5;**
- (2) **single county executive elected under IC 3-10-2-13, for a county that:**
 - (A) **does not have a consolidated city; and**
 - (B) **is subject to IC 36-2-2.5;**
- ~~(2)~~ (3) mayor of the consolidated city, for a county having a consolidated city;
- ~~(3)~~ (4) mayor, for a city;
- ~~(4)~~ (5) president of the town council, for a town;
- ~~(5)~~ (6) trustee, for a township;
- ~~(6)~~ (7) superintendent, for a school corporation; or
- ~~(7)~~ (8) chief executive officer, for any other political subdivision.

SECTION 10. IC 36-1-2-9, AS AMENDED BY P.L.186-2006, SECTION 3, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE UPON PASSAGE]: Sec. 9. "Legislative body" means the:

- (1) board of county commissioners, for a county not subject to **IC 36-2-2.5**, IC 36-2-3.5, or IC 36-3-1;
- (2) county council, for a county subject to **IC 36-2-2.5** or IC 36-2-3.5;
- (3) city-county council, for a consolidated city or county having a consolidated city;
- (4) common council, for a city other than a consolidated city;
- (5) town council, for a town;
- (6) township board, for a township;
- (7) governing body of any other political subdivision that has a governing body; or
- (8) chief executive officer of any other political subdivision that does not have a governing body.

SECTION 11. IC 36-1-2-24 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE UPON PASSAGE]: Sec. 24. "Works board" means **the:**

- (1) board of commissioners, for a county:
 - (A) not having a consolidated city; **and**
 - (B) **not subject to IC 36-2-2.5;**
- (2) **single county executive for a county:**
 - (A) **not having a consolidated city; and**
 - (B) **subject to IC 36-2-2.5;**
- ~~(2)~~ (3) board of public works or board of public works and safety, for a city; or
- ~~(3)~~ (4) town council, for a town.

SECTION 12. IC 36-1-3-6 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE UPON PASSAGE]: Sec. 6. (a) If there is a constitutional or statutory provision requiring a specific manner for exercising a power, a unit wanting to exercise the power must do so in that manner.

(b) If there is no constitutional or statutory provision requiring a specific manner for exercising a power, a unit wanting to exercise the power must either:

- (1) if the unit is a county or municipality, adopt an ordinance prescribing a specific manner for exercising the

power;

- (2) if the unit is a township, adopt a resolution prescribing a specific manner for exercising the power; or
- (3) comply with a statutory provision permitting a specific manner for exercising the power.

(c) An ordinance under subsection (b)(1) must be adopted as follows:

- (1) In a municipality, by the legislative body of the municipality.
- (2) In a county subject to **IC 36-2-2.5**, IC 36-2-3.5, or IC 36-3-1, by the legislative body of the county.
- (3) In any other county, by the executive of the county.

(d) A resolution under subsection (b)(2) must be adopted by the legislative body of the township.

SECTION 13. IC 36-2-2-1 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE UPON PASSAGE]: Sec. 1. **Except as specifically provided, this chapter applies to all counties not does not apply to the following:**

- (1) A county having a consolidated city.
- (2) A county in which a single county executive has been elected and is serving under **IC 36-2-2.5.**

SECTION 14. IC 36-2-2-4 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A NEW CHAPTER TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE UPON PASSAGE]:

Chapter 2.4. Determination of County Government Structure

Sec. 1. This chapter applies only to a county having a population of more than three hundred thousand (300,000) but less than four hundred thousand (400,000).

Sec. 2. A public question shall be held in the county on whether the executive and legislative structure and functions of the county should be reorganized under IC 36-2-2.5.

Sec. 3. The county election board shall place the following public question on the ballot at the general election held in November 2014:

"Shall the county government of (insert the name of the county) County be reorganized to place all executive powers in a single county executive and to place all legislative and fiscal powers in the county council?"

Sec. 4. IC 3, except where inconsistent with this chapter, applies to a public question placed on the ballot under this chapter. A public question under this chapter must be certified in accordance with IC 3-10-9-3 and shall be placed on the ballot in accordance with IC 3-10-9.

Sec. 5. If a majority of the voters of a county who vote on a public question placed on the ballot under this chapter vote in favor of the public question, the executive and legislative structure and functions of the county shall be reorganized under IC 36-2-2.5.

SECTION 15. IC 36-2-2.5 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A NEW CHAPTER TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE UPON PASSAGE]:

Chapter 2.5. Single County Executive

Sec. 1. Except as specifically provided by law, this chapter applies only to a county:

- (1) that has a population of more than three hundred thousand (300,000) but less than four hundred thousand (400,000); and

(2) in which a public question under IC 36-2-2.4 making the county executive a single county executive has been approved by the voters of the county.

Sec. 2. As used in this chapter, "single county executive" means the single county executive elected under IC 3-10-2-13.

Sec. 3. In a county to which this chapter applies:

(1) the voters of the county:

(A) shall elect one (1) single county executive in the 2018 general election and every four (4) years thereafter; and

(B) beginning with the 2018 general election, shall not elect a board of county commissioners;

(2) the board of county commissioners for the county is abolished January 1, 2019;

(3) notwithstanding IC 36-2-2-3, the term of each county commissioner serving on December 31, 2018, expires January 1, 2019;

(4) the county council shall divide the county into nine (9) contiguous, single-member county council districts as required by IC 36-2-3-4.1; and

(5) beginning January 1, 2019, the county council must consist of nine (9) members elected from single-member county council districts.

Sec. 4. (a) The term of office of a single county executive is four (4) years, beginning January 1 after election and continuing until a successor is elected and qualified.

(b) To be eligible for election as the single county executive, an individual must meet the qualifications under IC 3-8-1-21. If an individual does not remain a resident of the county after taking office as the single county executive, the individual forfeits the office. The county legislative body shall declare the office vacant whenever the single county executive forfeits the office under this subsection.

(c) If the office of single county executive becomes vacant, the county council shall appoint an individual to serve as the single county executive until the office is filled under IC 3-13.

Sec. 5. (a) On January 1, 2019, all property, assets, funds, equipment, records, rights, contracts, obligations, and liabilities of the board of county commissioners of a county are transferred to or assumed by the single county executive.

(b) The abolishment of the board of county commissioners of a county on January 1, 2019, does not invalidate any:

(1) ordinances, resolutions, fees, schedules, or other actions adopted or taken by the board of county commissioners before the board is abolished; or

(2) appointments made by the board of county commissioners before the board is abolished.

Sec. 6. (a) Notwithstanding any other provision, a single county executive has the power to make any appointments that the board of county commissioners made before the board was abolished.

(b) All powers and duties of the county that are executive or administrative in nature (including any power of appointment related to executive or administrative functions) shall be exercised or performed by the single county executive, except to the extent that these powers and duties are expressly assigned by law to another elected or appointed officer. The single county executive shall transact the

business of the county in the name of the county.

(c) For purposes of a county subject to this chapter, after December 31, 2018, any reference in:

(1) the Indiana Code;

(2) the Indiana Administrative Code;

(3) an ordinance or resolution; or

(4) any deed, lease, contract, or other official document or instrument;

to the board of county commissioners pertaining to the executive powers of a county shall be considered a reference to the single county executive of the county.

(d) For purposes of a county subject to this chapter, after December 31, 2018, any reference in:

(1) the Indiana Code;

(2) the Indiana Administrative Code;

(3) an ordinance or resolution; or

(4) any deed, lease, contract, or other official document or instrument;

related to the executive powers and duties of the board of county commissioners shall be considered a reference to the powers and duties of the single county executive of the county.

(e) For purposes of a county subject to this chapter, after December 31, 2018, the county council has the legislative and fiscal powers and duties of the county under IC 36-2-3.7.

Sec. 7. The single county executive shall do the following:

(1) Report on the condition of the county before March 1 of each year to the county legislative body and to the county residents.

(2) Recommend before March 1 of each year to the county legislative body any action or program the single county executive considers necessary for the improvement of the county and the welfare of county residents.

(3) Submit to the county legislative body an annual budget in accordance with IC 36-2-5.

(4) Establish procedures to be followed by all county departments, offices, and agencies under the single county executive's jurisdiction to the extent these procedures are not expressly assigned by law to another elected or appointed officer.

(5) Administer all statutes, ordinances, and regulations applicable to the county, to the extent the administration of these matters is not expressly assigned by law to another elected or appointed officer.

(6) Supervise the care and custody of all county property.

(7) Supervise the collection of revenues, control all disbursements and expenditures, and prepare a complete account of all expenditures, to the extent these matters are not expressly assigned by law to another elected or appointed officer.

(8) Review, analyze, and forecast trends for county services and finances and programs of all county governmental entities, and report on and make recommendations concerning the services, finances, and programs to the county legislative body by March 15 of each year.

- (9) Negotiate contracts for the county.
- (10) Make recommendations concerning the nature and location of county improvements, and provide for the execution of those improvements.
- (11) Supervise county administrative offices, except for the offices of elected officers.
- (12) Do the following in January of each year:
 - (A) Make a settlement with the county treasurer for the preceding calendar year, and include a copy of the settlement sheet in the order book of the single county executive.
 - (B) Make an accurate statement of the county's receipts and expenditures during the preceding calendar year. The statement must include the name of and total compensation paid to each county officer, deputy, and employee. The single county executive shall post this statement at the courthouse door and two (2) other places in the county and shall publish it in the manner prescribed by IC 5-3-1.
- (13) Perform other duties and functions that are assigned to the single county executive by statute or ordinance.

Sec. 8. The single county executive may do any of the following:

- (1) Order any department, office, or agency under the single county executive's jurisdiction to undertake any task for another department, office, or agency under the single county executive's jurisdiction on a temporary basis, if necessary for the proper and efficient administration of county government.
- (2) Establish and administer centralized budgeting, centralized personnel selection, and centralized purchasing.
- (3) Audit the accounts of officers who deal with money belonging to or appropriated for the benefit of the county.
- (4) Approve accounts chargeable against the county and direct the raising of money necessary for county expenses.
- (5) Make orders concerning county property, including orders for:
 - (A) the sale of the county's public buildings and the acquisition of land in the county seat on which to build new public buildings; and
 - (B) the acquisition of land for a public square and the maintenance of that square.

However, a conveyance or purchase by a county of land having a value of one thousand dollars (\$1,000) or more must be authorized by an ordinance of the county legislative body fixing the terms and conditions of the transaction.

Sec. 9. (a) The single county executive shall maintain a county courthouse, county jail, and public offices for the county clerk, the county auditor, the county recorder, the county treasurer, the county sheriff, and the county surveyor.

(b) Offices for the county surveyor must be in the courthouse or at the county seat.

- (c) Offices for the county sheriff may be located:
 - (1) in the courthouse;
 - (2) inside the corporate limits of the county seat; or
 - (3) outside the corporate limits of the county seat but within the limits of the county.

Sec. 10. (a) The single county executive may grant licenses, permits, or franchises for the use of county property if the licenses, permits, or franchises:

- (1) are not exclusive;
- (2) are of a definite duration; and
- (3) are assignable only with the consent of the single county executive.

(b) If a public utility or municipally owned or operated utility that carries on business outside the corporate boundaries of municipalities in the county is engaged in an activity substantially similar to that for which a license, permit, or franchise for the use of county property is sought, the single county executive may grant the license, permit, or franchise only with the consent of the Indiana utility regulatory commission. The commission may give its consent only if the commission determines, after a public hearing of all interested parties, that public necessity and convenience require the substantially similar activity.

(c) The provisions of this section that concern securing the consent of the Indiana utility regulatory commission do not apply to municipally owned or operated utilities.

Sec. 11. Notwithstanding any other law, if a statute requires a county executive to take an executive action by ordinance or resolution, a single county executive shall instead take the action by issuing an executive order.

Sec. 12. (a) If the single county executive is disqualified from acting in a quasi-judicial proceeding, the single county executive shall cease to act in that proceeding. Not later than ten (10) days after the finding that the single county executive is disqualified to act in a proceeding, the county auditor shall send a certified copy of the record of the proceeding to the judge of the circuit court for the county. If the judge affirms the disqualification of the single county executive, the judge shall appoint a disinterested and competent person to serve as a special executive in the proceeding.

(b) A person who consents to serve as a special executive must have the same qualifications as an elected single county executive. The person's appointment and oath shall be filed with the county auditor and entered on the records of the single county executive. A person appointed as a special executive may conduct the proceeding until a final determination is reached.

Sec. 13. The single county executive shall keep the single county executive's office open on each business day.

Sec. 14. Appointments made by the single county executive under section 6(a) of this chapter shall be attested to by the county auditor, under the seal of the single county executive.

Sec. 15. (a) The single county executive may employ a person:

- (1) to perform a duty required of a county officer by statute; or
- (2) on a commission or percentage basis;

only if the employment is expressly authorized by statute or is found by the single county executive to be necessary to the public interest.

(b) If a person's employment under subsection (a) is not expressly authorized by statute, the contract for the person's employment must be filed with the circuit court for the county, and the person must file the person's claims for compensation with that court. Any taxpayer may contest a claim under this section.

(c) A single county executive who knowingly, intentionally, or recklessly violates this section commits a Class C misdemeanor and forfeits the single county executive's office.

Sec. 16. (a) If a party to a proceeding before the single county executive is aggrieved by a decision of the single county executive, the party may appeal that decision to the circuit court for the county.

(b) A person who is not a party to a proceeding before the single county executive may appeal a decision of the single county executive only if the person files with the county auditor an affidavit:

- (1) specifically setting forth the person's interest in the matter decided; and
- (2) alleging that the person is aggrieved by the decision of the single county executive.

(c) An appeal under this section must be taken not later than thirty (30) days after the single county executive makes the decision by which the appellant is aggrieved.

(d) An appellant under this section must file with the county auditor a bond conditioned on due prosecution of the appeal. The bond is subject to approval by the county auditor and must be in an amount sufficient to provide security for court costs.

(e) Not later than twenty (20) days after the county auditor receives the appeal bond, the county auditor shall prepare a complete transcript of the proceedings of the single county executive related to the decision appealed from and shall deliver the transcript, all documents filed during the proceedings, and the appeal bond to the clerk of the circuit court.

Sec. 17. (a) An appeal under section 16 of this chapter shall be docketed among the other causes pending in the circuit court and shall be tried as an original cause.

(b) A court may decide an appeal under section 16 of this chapter by:

- (1) affirming the decision of the single county executive; or
- (2) remanding the cause to the single county executive with directions as to how to proceed;

and may require the single county executive to comply with this decision.

Sec. 18. (a) The county auditor or the single county executive may administer any oaths required by this chapter.

(b) The sheriff or a county police officer may attend any meeting with the single county executive at the request of the single county executive.

Sec. 19. (a) Appointments made by the single county executive shall be certified by the county auditor, under the seal of the single county executive.

(b) If a copy of the single county executive's proceedings has been signed and sealed by the county auditor and introduced into evidence in court, that copy is presumed to be an accurate record of the single county executive's proceedings.

Sec. 20. (a) The single county executive may employ and fix the compensation of an attorney to represent and advise the executive.

(b) For purposes of Article 2, Section 9 of the Constitution of the State of Indiana, employment by a single county executive as an attorney does not constitute a lucrative office.

SECTION 16. IC 36-2-2.7 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A NEW CHAPTER TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE UPON PASSAGE]:

Chapter 2.7. Reversion to Previous County Government Structure

Sec. 1. This chapter applies only to a county that has a population of more than three hundred thousand (300,000) but less than four hundred thousand (400,000).

Sec. 2. As used in this chapter, "single county executive" means the single county executive elected under IC 3-10-2-13.

Sec. 3. A county that elects a single county executive under IC 36-2-2.5 may, as provided in this chapter, revert to a county government structure that has a board of county commissioners rather than a single county executive.

Sec. 4. (a) Subject to subsection (b), the county council may adopt an ordinance providing that the voters of the county shall elect:

- (1) a three (3) member board of county commissioners that has the executive and legislative powers and duties of the county; and
- (2) a county council that has the fiscal powers and duties of the county.

(b) An ordinance described in subsection (a) may be adopted under this chapter only:

- (1) during an odd-numbered year; or
- (2) before July 1 of an even-numbered year.

(c) If an ordinance is adopted under this section:

- (1) the county auditor shall certify the adoption of the ordinance to the county election board; and
- (2) a vote on a public question shall be held in the county under section 5 of this chapter on whether the executive and legislative structure and functions of the county should be reorganized under section 6 of this chapter.

Sec. 5. (a) If an ordinance is certified under section 4 of this chapter, the county election board shall place the following public question on the ballot at the next general election held in the county after the ordinance is certified:

"Shall the county government of (insert the name of the county) County be reorganized to elect a board of county commissioners rather than a single county executive?"

(b) IC 3, except where inconsistent with this chapter, applies to a public question placed on the ballot under this chapter. A public question under this chapter must be certified in accordance with IC 3-10-9-3 and shall be placed on the ballot in accordance with IC 3-10-9.

(c) If a majority of the voters of a county who vote on a public question placed on the ballot under this section vote in favor of the public question, the executive and legislative structure and functions of the county shall be reorganized under section 6 of this chapter.

Sec. 6. The following apply if a majority of the voters of a county who vote on a public question placed on the ballot under section 5 of this chapter vote in favor of the public question:

(1) The executive, the executive and legislative structure, and the functions of the county are reorganized as provided in this section.

(2) The voters of the county shall elect:

(A) a three (3) member board of county commissioners that has the executive and legislative powers and duties of the county; and

(B) a county council that has the fiscal powers and duties of the county.

(3) The office of the board of county commissioners shall be placed on the primary election ballot for the county in the year of the second general election after the public question is approved. The office of single county executive shall not be placed on the primary election ballot for the county in the year of the second general election after the public question is approved.

(4) The office of the board of county commissioners shall be placed on the general election ballot for the county at the second general election after the public question is approved and, except as provided in subdivision (6) to provide for staggered terms, every four (4) years thereafter. Beginning with the second general election after the public question is approved, the county shall not elect a single county executive.

(5) On January 1 in the year following the year that the board of county commissioners is elected under this chapter, the following occur:

(A) The office of single county executive is abolished, and the term of the single county executive expires.

(B) The county is not subject to IC 36-2-2.5 and IC 36-2-3.7.

(C) The county executive is the board of county commissioners elected under IC 36-2-2. The board of county commissioners has all powers that are executive or administrative in nature.

(D) The county legislative body is the board of county commissioners, and all powers that are legislative in nature are transferred from the county fiscal body to the board of county commissioners.

(E) The county council is the county fiscal body.

(F) All property, assets, funds, equipment, records, rights, contracts, obligations, and liabilities of the single county executive are transferred to or assumed by the board of county commissioners.

(6) Notwithstanding IC 36-2-2-3, to provide for staggered terms of the members of the board of county commissioners elected after the structure and functions of the county are reorganized under this chapter, the county council may, before the primary election

described in subdivision (3), adopt an ordinance specifying which of the three (3) board of county commissioner members to be elected at the second general election after the public question is approved shall serve an initial term of two (2) years rather than four (4) years.

(7) The abolishment of the office of the single county executive on January 1 following the year in which the board of county commissioners is elected does not invalidate:

(A) any resolutions, fees, schedules, or other actions adopted or taken by the single county executive before the office is abolished; or

(B) any appointments made by the single county executive before the office is abolished.

(8) Effective with the second general election after the public question is approved under section 5 of this chapter, the county council shall be elected with four (4) single-member county council districts and three (3) at-large members under IC 36-2-3-4. The county council shall divide the county into the four (4) contiguous, single-member county council districts in the manner specified in IC 36-2-3-4. The terms of all county council members serving at the time of the second general election after the public question is approved under section 5 of this chapter expire January 1 following the election. Notwithstanding any other law, to provide for staggered terms of the members of the county council, the county council may, before the primary election preceding the general election at which county council members will be elected as provided in this subdivision, adopt an ordinance specifying which of the members of the county council to be elected at the second general election after the public question is approved shall serve an initial term of two (2) years rather than four (4) years.

SECTION 17. IC 36-2-3-4, AS AMENDED BY P.L.271-2013, SECTION 47, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE UPON PASSAGE]: Sec. 4. (a) This subsection does not apply to a county having a population of:

(1) more than four hundred thousand (400,000) but less than seven hundred thousand (700,000); or

(2) more than two hundred fifty thousand (250,000) but less than two hundred seventy thousand (270,000).

Except as provided in section 4.1 of this chapter, the county executive shall, by ordinance, divide the county into four (4) contiguous, single-member districts that comply with subsection (d). If necessary, the county auditor shall call a special meeting of the executive to establish or revise districts. One (1) member of the fiscal body shall be elected by the voters of each of the four (4) districts. Three (3) at-large members of the fiscal body shall be elected by the voters of the whole county.

(b) This subsection applies to a county having a population of more than four hundred thousand (400,000) but less than seven hundred thousand (700,000). The county redistricting commission established under IC 36-2-2-4 shall divide the county into seven (7) single-member districts that comply with

subsection (d). One (1) member of the fiscal body shall be elected by the voters of each of these seven (7) single-member districts.

(c) This subsection applies to a county having a population of more than two hundred fifty thousand (250,000) but less than two hundred seventy thousand (270,000). The fiscal body shall divide the county into nine (9) single-member districts that comply with subsection (d). Three (3) of these districts must be contained within each of the three (3) districts established under IC 36-2-2-4(c). One (1) member of the fiscal body shall be elected by the voters of each of these nine (9) single-member districts.

(d) Single-member districts established under subsection (a), (b), or (c) must:

- (1) be compact, subject only to natural boundary lines (such as railroads, major highways, rivers, creeks, parks, and major industrial complexes);
- (2) not cross precinct boundary lines;
- (3) contain, as nearly as possible, equal population; and
- (4) include whole townships, except when a division is clearly necessary to accomplish redistricting under this section.

(e) Except as provided by subsection (g), a division under subsection (a), (b), or (c) shall be made:

- (1) during the first year after a year in which a federal decennial census is conducted; and
- (2) when the county executive adopts an order declaring a county boundary to be changed under IC 36-2-1-2.

(f) A division under subsection (a), (b), or (c) may be made in any odd-numbered year not described in subsection (e). **In a county in which a public question is approved under IC 36-2-2.7-5, a division under subsection (a) shall be made by the county council during the year before county council members will be elected under IC 36-2-2.7-6(8).**

(g) This subsection applies during the first year after a year in which a federal decennial census is conducted. If the county executive, county redistricting commission, or county fiscal body determines that a division under subsection (e) is not required, the county executive, county redistricting commission, or county fiscal body shall adopt an ordinance recertifying that the districts as drawn comply with this section.

(h) Each time there is a division under subsection (e) or (f) or a recertification under subsection (g), the county executive, county redistricting commission, or county fiscal body shall file with the circuit court clerk of the county, not later than thirty (30) days after the division or recertification occurs, a map of the district boundaries:

- (1) adopted under subsection (e) or (f); or
- (2) recertified under subsection (g).

(i) The limitations set forth in this section are part of the ordinance, but do not have to be specifically set forth in the ordinance. The ordinance must be construed, if possible, to comply with this chapter. If a provision of the ordinance or an application of the ordinance violates this chapter, the invalidity does not affect the other provisions or applications of the ordinance that can be given effect without the invalid provision or application. The provisions of the ordinance are severable.

(j) If a conflict exists between:

- (1) a map showing the boundaries of a district; and
- (2) a description of the boundaries of that district set forth in the ordinance;

the district boundaries are the description of the boundaries set forth in the ordinance, not the boundaries shown on the map, to the extent there is a conflict between the description and the map.

SECTION 18. IC 36-2-3-4.1 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A NEW SECTION TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE UPON PASSAGE]: **Sec. 4.1. (a) This section applies only to a county:**

- (1) that has a population of more than three hundred thousand (300,000) but less than four hundred thousand (400,000); and**
- (2) in which a public question under IC 36-2-2.4 making the county executive a single county executive has been approved by the voters of the county.**

(b) Effective for the 2018 general election, the county fiscal body shall by ordinance divide the county into nine (9) contiguous, single-member districts that comply with subsection (c). One (1) member of the fiscal body shall be elected by the voters of each of the nine (9) districts.

(c) Single-member districts established under subsection (b) must:

- (1) be compact, subject only to natural boundary lines (such as railroads, major highways, rivers, creeks, parks, and major industrial complexes);**
- (2) not cross precinct boundary lines;**
- (3) contain, as nearly as possible, equal population;**
- (4) include whole townships, except when a division is clearly necessary to accomplish redistricting under this section;**
- (5) consider how communities of interest within the county can best be represented; and**
- (6) be drawn so as to provide at least one (1) representative to each distinct community of interest to the extent practicable and not inconsistent with other applicable law.**

(d) A division under subsection (b) shall be made:

- (1) effective for the 2018 general election; and**
- (2) whenever the county executive adopts an order declaring a county boundary to be changed under IC 36-2-1-2.**

(e) After a division is initially made under subsection (b), another division may be made in any odd-numbered year not described in subsection (d).

SECTION 19. IC 36-2-3.7 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A NEW CHAPTER TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE UPON PASSAGE]:

Chapter 3.7. County Council as the County Legislative Body

Sec. 1. Except as specifically provided by law, this chapter applies only to a county:

- (1) having a population of more than three hundred thousand (300,000) but less than four hundred thousand (400,000); and**
- (2) in which a public question under IC 36-2-2.4 making the county executive a single county executive has been approved by the voters of the county.**

Sec. 2. As used in this chapter, "single county executive" means the single county executive elected under IC 3-10-2-13.

Sec. 3. (a) In a county to which this chapter applies:

(1) the voters of the county shall continue to elect members of the county council;

(2) beginning on January 1, 2019:

(A) the executive and legislative powers of the county are divided between separate branches of county government, and a power belonging to one (1) branch of county government may not be exercised by the other branch of county government;

(B) the county council is the county legislative body as well as the county fiscal body; and

(C) the single county executive is the county executive of the county and has the executive and administrative powers and duties of the county as provided in IC 36-2-2.5; and

(3) the county council must consist of nine (9) members elected by the voters of each of the nine (9) districts.

(b) The following apply in a county to which this chapter applies:

(1) Nine (9) county council members shall be elected at the 2018 general election.

(2) The terms of all county council members serving on December 31, 2018, expire January 1, 2019.

(3) Notwithstanding any other law, to provide for staggered terms of the members of the county council, the county council may, before the 2018 primary election, adopt an ordinance specifying which of the nine (9) members of the county council to be elected at the 2018 general election shall serve an initial term of two (2) years rather than four (4) years.

Sec. 4. (a) All powers and duties of the county that are legislative in nature, including any power of appointment related to legislative functions, shall be exercised or performed by the county council functioning as the county legislative body.

(b) The county council has the same legislative powers and duties that the board of county commissioners in the county had before the board of county commissioners was abolished.

(c) For purposes of a county subject to this chapter, after December 31, 2018, any reference in:

(1) the Indiana Code;

(2) the Indiana Administrative Code;

(3) an ordinance or resolution; or

(4) any deed, lease, contract, or other official document or instrument;

to the board of county commissioners pertaining to the legislative powers of a county shall be considered a reference to the county council of the county.

(d) For purposes of a county subject to this chapter, after December 31, 2018, any reference in:

(1) the Indiana Code;

(2) the Indiana Administrative Code;

(3) an ordinance or resolution; or

(4) any deed, lease, contract, or other official document or instrument;

related to the legislative powers and duties of the board of

county commissioners shall be considered a reference to the powers and duties of the county council of the county.

Sec. 5. The county council may do any of the following:

(1) Establish committees that are necessary to carry out the county council's functions.

(2) Employ legal and administrative personnel necessary to carry out the county council's functions.

(3) Pass all ordinances, orders, resolutions, and motions for the government of the county, in the manner prescribed by IC 36-2-4.

(4) Receive gifts, bequests, and grants from public or private sources.

(5) Conduct investigations into the conduct of county business for the purpose of correcting deficiencies and ensuring adherence to law and county ordinances and policies.

(6) Establish, by ordinance, new county departments, divisions, or agencies whenever necessary to promote efficient county government.

SECTION 20. IC 36-2-4-8, AS AMENDED BY P.L.159-2011, SECTION 44, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE UPON PASSAGE]: Sec. 8. (a) An ordinance, order, or resolution is considered adopted when it is signed by the presiding officer. If required, an adopted ordinance, order, or resolution must be promulgated or published according to statute before it takes effect.

(b) An ordinance prescribing a penalty or forfeiture for a violation must, before it takes effect, be published once each week for two (2) consecutive weeks, according to IC 5-3-1. However, if such an ordinance is adopted by the legislative body of a county subject to IC 36-2-2.5 or IC 36-2-3.5 and there is an urgent necessity requiring its immediate effectiveness, it need not be published if:

(1) the county executive proclaims the urgent necessity; and

(2) copies of the ordinance are posted in three (3) public places in each of the districts of the county before it takes effect.

(c) The following apply in addition to the other requirements of this section:

(1) An ordinance or resolution passed by the legislative body of a county subject to IC 36-2-2.5 or IC 36-2-3.5 is considered adopted only if it is:

(A) approved by signature of a majority of the county executive (in the case of a county subject to IC 36-2-3.5) or by signature of the single county executive (in the case of a county subject to IC 36-2-2.5);

(B) neither approved nor vetoed by a majority of the executive (in the case of a county subject to IC 36-2-3.5) or by the single county executive (in the case of a county subject to IC 36-2-2.5), within ten (10) days after passage by the legislative body; or

(C) passed over the veto of the executive by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the legislative body, within sixty (60) days after presentation of the ordinance or resolution to the executive.

(2) Subject to subsection (g), the legislative body of a county shall:

(A) subject to subdivision (3), give written notice to the department of environmental management not later than sixty (60) days before amendment or repeal of an environmental restrictive ordinance; and

(B) give written notice to the department of environmental management not later than thirty (30) days after passage, amendment, or repeal of an environmental restrictive ordinance.

(3) Upon written request by the legislative body, the department of environmental management may waive the notice requirement of subdivision (2)(A).

(4) An environmental restrictive ordinance passed or amended after 2009 by the legislative body must state the notice requirements of subdivision (2).

(5) The failure of an environmental restrictive ordinance to comply with subdivision (4) does not void the ordinance.

(d) After an ordinance or resolution passed by the legislative body of a county subject to **IC 36-2-2.5** or IC 36-2-3.5 has been signed by the presiding officer, the county auditor shall present it to the county executive, and record the time of the presentation. Within ten (10) days after an ordinance or resolution is presented to it, the executive shall:

(1) approve the ordinance or resolution, by signature of a majority of the executive (**in the case of a county subject to IC 36-2-3.5**) or by signature of the single county executive (**in the case of a county subject to IC 36-2-2.5**), and send the legislative body a message announcing its approval; or

(2) veto the ordinance or resolution, by returning it to the legislative body with a message announcing its veto and stating its reasons for the veto.

(e) This section (other than subsection (c)(2)) does not apply to a zoning ordinance or amendment to a zoning ordinance, or a resolution approving a comprehensive plan, that is adopted under IC 36-7.

(f) An ordinance increasing a building permit fee on new development must:

(1) be published:

(A) one (1) time in accordance with IC 5-3-1; and

(B) not later than thirty (30) days after the ordinance is adopted by the legislative body in accordance with IC 5-3-1; and

(2) delay the implementation of the fee increase for ninety (90) days after the date the ordinance is published under subdivision (1).

(g) The notice requirements of subsection (c)(2) apply only if the municipal corporation received under IC 13-25-5-8.5(f) written notice that the department is relying on the environmental restrictive ordinance referred to in subsection (c)(2) as part of a risk based remediation proposal:

(1) approved by the department; and

(2) conducted under IC 13-22, IC 13-23, IC 13-24, IC 13-25-4, or IC 13-25-5.

SECTION 21. IC 36-5-1-20 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE UPON PASSAGE]: Sec. 20. (a) This

section does not apply to a town described by IC 36-5-1-11.5.

(b) A town subject to this chapter may be dissolved if the county election board of the county in which the greatest percentage of population of the town is located conducts a public hearing and finds that the town has not elected town officers or had a functioning town government during the preceding ten (10) years.

(c) The county election board shall certify the board's findings to the county executive, who may adopt an ordinance or (in a county subject to **IC 36-2-2.5** or IC 36-2-3.5) issue an order to dissolve the town.

SECTION 22. IC 36-9-13-2 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE UPON PASSAGE]: Sec. 2. For purposes of this chapter, the following are considered the governing bodies of their respective eligible entities:

(1) Board of commissioners, for a county not subject to **IC 36-2-2.5**, IC 36-2-3.5, or IC 36-3-1.

(2) County council, for a county subject to **IC 36-2-2.5** or IC 36-2-3.5.

(3) City-county council, for a consolidated city or county having a consolidated city.

(4) Common council, for a city other than a consolidated city.

(5) Town council, for a town.

(6) Trustee and township board, for a civil or school township.

(7) Board of school trustees, board of school commissioners, or school board, for a school corporation.

(8) Board of trustees, for a health and hospital corporation.

SECTION 23. IC 36-9-27-5 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE UPON PASSAGE]: Sec. 5. (a) Except in a county having a consolidated city **or as provided in subsection (d)**, the drainage board consists of either:

(1) the county executive; or

(2) three (3) or five (5) persons, at least one (1) of whom must be a member of the executive, appointed by the executive;

at the option of the executive. Appointees under subdivision (2) must be resident freeholders of the county who are knowledgeable in drainage matters. Freeholders appointed to the board serve for terms of three (3) years, with their initial appointments made so as to provide for staggering of terms on an annual basis. In addition, the county surveyor serves on the board as an ex officio, nonvoting member.

(b) In a county having a consolidated city, the board of public works of the consolidated city comprises the drainage board, subject to IC 36-3-4-23.

(c) In a county having a consolidated city, the department of public works of the consolidated city has all the powers, duties, and responsibilities of the county surveyor under this chapter, subject to IC 36-3-4-23.

(d) The following apply in a county that is subject to IC 36-2-2.5:

(1) The drainage board consists of:

(A) the single county executive; and

(B) two (2) or four (4) persons (as determined by the single county executive) who are appointed by the

single county executive.

(2) Appointees under subdivision (1)(B) must be resident freeholders of the county who are knowledgeable in drainage matters.

(3) The freeholders appointed to the drainage board serve for terms of three (3) years, with the freeholders' initial appointments made so as to provide for staggering of terms on an annual basis.

(4) The county surveyor serves on the drainage board as an ex officio, nonvoting member.

(5) The terms of members serving on the drainage board at the time the first single county executive is elected under IC 36-2-2.5 expire on January 1, 2019, and the single county executive shall make the appointments to the board as provided in this subsection.

SECTION 24. An emergency is declared for this act. (Reference is to EHB 1346 as reprinted March 4, 2014.)

Leonard, Chair	Wyss
GiaQuinta	Arnold
House Conferees	Senate Conferees

Roll Call 404: yeas 40, nays 8. Report adopted.

CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

EHB 1361-1

Madam President: Your Conference Committee appointed to confer with a like committee from the House upon Engrossed Senate Amendments to Engrossed House Bill 1361 respectfully reports that said two committees have conferred and agreed as follows to wit:

that the House recede from its dissent from all Senate amendments and that the House now concur in all Senate amendments to the bill and that the bill be further amended as follows:

- Page 6, line 13, strike "other than Ivy".
 - Page 6, line 14, strike "Tech Community College".
 - Page 6, strike lines 25 through 28.
 - Page 6, line 40, delete "eight (8)" and insert "**ten (10)**".
- (Reference is to EHB 1361 as printed February 21, 2014.)

Morrison, Chair	Kenley
Pierce	Tallian
House Conferees	Senate Conferees

Roll Call 405: yeas 48, nays 0. Report adopted.

PRESIDENT PRO TEMPORE'S REPORT
OF CONFEREE REMOVALS

Pursuant to Rule 84(c), of the Standing Rules and Orders of the Senate, President Pro Tempore David C. Long has removed the following senator(s) as conferee(s) or advisor(s) on Engrossed Senate Bill 321:

Conferee: Rogers
Advisor: Kruse

LONG
Date: 3/12/2014
Time: 5:20 p.m.

Report adopted.

PRESIDENT PRO TEMPORE'S REPORT
OF CONFEREE CHANGES

Pursuant to Rule 84(c) of the Standing Rules and Orders of the Senate, President Pro Tempore David C. Long has made the following change in conferee (or advisor) appointments to Engrossed Senate Bill 321:

Kruse to replace Rogers as conferee

LONG
Date: 3/12/2014
Time: 5:20 p.m.

Report adopted.

PRESIDENT PRO TEMPORE'S REPORT
OF CONFEREE REMOVALS

Pursuant to Rule 84(c), of the Standing Rules and Orders of the Senate, President Pro Tempore David C. Long has removed the following senator(s) as conferee(s) or advisor(s) on Engrossed House Bill 1002:

Conferee: Skinner
Advisor: Hershman

LONG
Date: 3/12/2014
Time: 5:19 p.m.

Report adopted.

PRESIDENT PRO TEMPORE'S REPORT
OF CONFEREE CHANGES

Pursuant to Rule 84(c) of the Standing Rules and Orders of the Senate, President Pro Tempore David C. Long has made the following change in conferee (or advisor) appointments to Engrossed House Bill 1002:

Hershman to replace Skinner as conferee

LONG
Date: 3/12/2014
Time: 5:18 p.m.

Report adopted.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that the following resolutions be adopted:

- SR 91 Senator Merritt
Congratulating Cody Coldren, the 2014 Indiana High School Athletic Association one-meter diving state champion.
- SCR 56 Senator Breaux
Congratulating the Episcopal Church of All Saints, Indianapolis on its one hundred fiftieth anniversary.
- HCR 59 Senator Steele
Congratulating the Bedford North Lawrence High School girls basketball team for winning the Class 4Astate basketball championship.
- HCR 60 Senator Becker
Honoring Scott Haffner.

LONG

Motion prevailed.

RESOLUTIONS ON FIRST READING**Senate Resolution 91**

Senate Resolution 91, introduced by Senator Merritt:

A SENATE RESOLUTION congratulating Cody Coldren, the 2014 Indiana High School Athletic Association one-meter diving state champion.

Whereas, Cody Coldren, son of Eric and Sheri Coldren, is a senior diver at Hamilton Southeastern High School in Fishers, Indiana;

Whereas, Cody has had a distinguished diving career at Hamilton Southeastern, earning four varsity letters, achieving the number one ranking in the state among high school divers during the 2013-2014 season, earning All-Hoosier Crossroads Conference honors, and serving on the Hamilton Southeastern Student Athletic Council;

Whereas, On March 1, 2014, Cody culminated his high school diving career by winning the Indiana High School Athletic Association one-meter diving state championship at the IU Natatorium in Indianapolis, Indiana, with a score of 536.20 points;

Whereas, Cody will continue his diving career at the collegiate level, diving for the Indiana University Hoosiers under the tutelage of coach Drew Johanssen; and

Whereas, Cody's title is a testament to his hard work and dedication: Therefore,

Be it resolved by the Senate of the General Assembly of the State of Indiana:

SECTION 1. That the Indiana Senate congratulates Cody Coldren on his title as the 2014 Indiana High School Athletic Association one-meter diving state champion.

SECTION 2. The Secretary of the Senate is hereby directed to transmit copies of this Resolution to Cody Coldren and his parents, Eric and Sheri Coldren.

The resolution was read in full and adopted by voice vote.

Senate Concurrent Resolution 56

Senate Concurrent Resolution 56, introduced by Senator Breaux:

A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION congratulating the Episcopal Church of All Saints, Indianapolis on its one hundred fiftieth anniversary.

Whereas, Grace Church, which was later to become All Saints Church, was organized in November 1864, and is the second oldest Episcopal parish in the city of Indianapolis;

Whereas, The Church served as the Cathedral Church for the Episcopal Diocese of Indiana and the Diocese of Indianapolis for approximately sixty years;

Whereas, All Saints is noted for its tradition of high Anglo-Catholic liturgy and activism;

Whereas, All Saints embraced racial integration early in the 1950s, when it placed a sign above its front doors declaring "Everyone is Welcome";

Whereas, In 1977, All Saints became the site of the first regular ordination of a woman to the priesthood in the Episcopal Church;

Whereas, During the 1980s, All Saints opened the doors of its sanctuary to the homeless, allowed guests to sleep in the pews of the church, and permitted its parish hall to be turned into the Dayspring Center for homeless families;

Whereas, In 1985, All Saints called an African-American woman to serve as the Rector in a time when there were no other African-American priests in the Diocese;

Whereas, During the 1990s, All Saints had a special ministry to those diagnosed with HIV and AIDS;

Whereas, All Saints remains an intentionally diverse congregation, and a vibrant part of the Old Northside Neighborhood of Indianapolis by engaging in issues of social justice, exploring the connection between theology and the arts, and always focusing on the Worship of God in ancient, solemn liturgy, coupled with a joyful focus on the promises of Christ; and

Whereas, The Episcopal Church of All Saints will observe its one hundred fiftieth anniversary on September 21, 2014: Therefore,

Be it resolved by the Senate of the General Assembly of the State of Indiana, the House of Representatives concurring:

SECTION 1. That the Indiana General Assembly congratulates the Episcopal Church of All Saints in Indianapolis on celebrating its one hundred fiftieth anniversary, and wishes its congregation continued success.

SECTION 2. That the Secretary of the Senate is hereby directed to transmit copies of the resolution to the Episcopal Church of All Saints.

The resolution was read in full and adopted by voice vote. The Chair instructed the Secretary to inform the House of the passage of the resolution. House sponsor: Representative Porter.

House Concurrent Resolution 59

House Concurrent Resolution 59, sponsored by Senator Steele:

A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION congratulating the Bedford North Lawrence High School girls basketball team for winning the Class 4A state basketball championship.

Whereas, The Bedford North Lawrence High School Lady Stars, under first year head coach Damon Bailey, completed the 2013-14 season with a perfect record in the Hoosier Hills Conference and a 27-1 overall record;

Whereas, The Bedford North Lawrence Lady Stars faced the Penn Kingsmen in the state final after emerging victorious in an overtime win in the semi-state game;

Whereas, Juniors Dominique McBryde and Jenna Allen each achieved a double-double and Senior Brittani Rizzi scored a game-high 17 points in the championship game;

Whereas, In the game, the Lady Stars never surrendered the lead, from the opening tip-off through the final buzzer, to secure the 51-41 win;

Whereas, The Bedford North Lawrence High School Lady Stars have now won back-to-back 4A basketball championships, joining the membership of the few elite teams that have won consecutive state titles;

Whereas, Whitney Wilson brought additional honor to the team by winning the Indiana High School Athletic Association Executive Committee's 2014 Patricia L. Roy Mental Attitude Award; and

Whereas, The Bedford North Lawrence Lady Stars return many talented players next year to bring excitement to high school basketball and to defend their state title: Therefore,

Be it resolved by the House of Representatives of the General Assembly of the State of Indiana, the Senate concurring:

SECTION 1. That on behalf of the people of Indiana, we congratulate the Bedford North Lawrence High School girls basketball team, its managers, and its coaches on their outstanding season, capped by winning the IHSAA Girls Class 4A Championship.

SECTION 2. That the Principal Clerk of the House of Representatives transmit copies of this resolution to players Kennedy Wall, Lauren Boshears, Sammy Dillman, Whitney Wilson, Dominique McBryde, Erin Bradley, Alexa Bailey, Brittani Rizzi, Loren Bailey, Emily Riley, Abbie Price, Jenna Allen, and Kaitlyn Poole; team managers Allen Lewis, Callie Schulenburg, Patricia Garland, Kaleb Figg, and Cody Martin; head coach Damon Bailey; assistant coaches Jeff Allen, Brett Holtz, Mandy Harrell, D.J. Horton, and Mike Dowell; athletic director Jeff Callahan; and principal Roger Dean of Bedford

North Lawrence High School.

The resolution was read in full and adopted by voice vote. The Chair instructed the Secretary to inform the House of the passage of the resolution.

House Concurrent Resolution 60

House Concurrent Resolution 60, sponsored by Senator Becker:

A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION honoring Scott Haffner.

Whereas, The University of Evansville Athletics Department announced that it retired Scott Haffner's basketball jersey at the men's basketball game against Southern Illinois on Saturday, February 22, 2014;

Whereas, Scott Haffner wore jersey number 3 and played at the University of Evansville from 1986 through 1989, scoring 1,686 points in three seasons;

Whereas, Scott Haffner scored a program-best 65 points in a 109-83 victory over Dayton at Roberts Stadium;

Whereas, Scott Haffner also led the Evansville Aces to their first NCAA Division I Tournament victory in the school's history that same year;

Whereas, February 18, 2014, marked the 25th anniversary of that monumental victory over Dayton;

Whereas, Haffner was awarded numerous accolades, including Midwestern Collegiate Conference Player of the Year;

Whereas, Scott Haffner was selected by the Miami Heat in the second round of the 1989 National Basketball Association draft and later played for Charlotte; and

Whereas, Scott Haffner's post-basketball career has been equally successful, working for Eli Lilly and Company as a District Sales Manager, as well as being inducted into the Indiana Basketball Hall of Fame: Therefore,

Be it resolved by the House of Representatives of the General Assembly of the State of Indiana, the Senate concurring:

SECTION 1. That the Indiana General Assembly congratulates Scott Haffner for his life's work and accomplishments.

SECTION 2. That the Principal Clerk of the House of Representatives shall transmit copies of this resolution to Scott Haffner and his family.

The resolution was read in full and adopted by voice vote. The Chair instructed the Secretary to inform the House of the passage of the resolution.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move we adjourn until 9:30 a.m.,
Thursday, March 13, 2014.

LONG

Motion prevailed.

The Senate adjourned at 5:51 p.m.

JENNIFER L. MERTZ
Secretary of the Senate

SUE ELLSPERMANN
President of the Senate